Strategy and Resources Committee
11 February 2019
7.30 pm at the
Civic Offices, St Nicholas Way, Sutton SM1 1EA

To all members of the Strategy and Resources Committee:Chair:
Vice-Chair:
Councillors:

Councillor Ruth Dombey
Councillor Jayne McCoy
Manuel Abellan, Jean Crossby, Sunita Gordon, Amy Haldane,
Marlene Heron, Marian James, Steve Penneck, Tim Crowley,
Neil Garratt, David Hicks, Holly Ramsey, Tom Drummond and
Tim Foster

Substitutes:

Councillors David Bartolucci, Jenny Batt, Chris Williams,
Jane Pascoe, Elliot Colburn, Param Nandha, Jillian Green and
Nick Mattey

This is a Council meeting held in public. Additional representations are at the invitation of the Chair
of the Committee. If you are a relevant organisation and you wish to submit representations on a
proposal contained within the reports to this agenda please submit a request via Committee
Services three working days before the meeting date.
The council allows and welcomes any recording, photographing or filming of the proceedings of a
council meeting or use of social media by any member of the public, media or councillor subject to
it focusing on, and not disrupting, the meeting. Mobile devices can interfere with the wireless
microphones and induction loop, and if that is the case the Chair may require that such devices are
turned off. In order to facilitate the recording of meetings, members of the public or media are
encouraged to contact committeeservices@sutton.gov.uk in advance of the meeting
This meeting will be recorded and made available on the Council’s website.
PLEASE NOTE: Any decision taken at this meeting does not become definitive until 10am on the
third working day after the meeting. Any four members of the Council may notify the Chief
Executive by then if they require a decision to be reviewed by the appropriate committee at its next
meeting. Please contact the Committee Services representative shown on the front page for
further information.

Mary Morrissey
Chief Executive (Interim)
Date: 1 February 2019
Enquiries to: Alexa Coates, Head of Committee and Management Support Tel: 020 8770
4990 | Email: committeeservices@sutton.gov.uk

Copies of reports are available in large print on request

AGENDA

1.

Apologies for absence

2.

Declarations of Interest

3.

Any Items the Chair deems urgent

4.

Minutes

1-4

To agree the minutes of the meeting held on 14 January 2019.
5.

Quarter 3 Performance and Finance Report

5 - 24

This report provides an overview of the Council’s performance and finance
during April - December 2018 as reported through the new Corporate Plan and
financial monitoring arrangements. The projected revenue outturn position for
General Fund services is for a £1.1m net overspend representing 0.8% of the
approved budget. The report also sets out the financial position on capital
spending.
6.

Commissioning & Financial Planning 2019-20 to 2022-23
This report seeks approval for the Council’s Annual Commissioning and
Financial Plan for 2019/20 to 2022/23.

7.

Exclusion of the public and press
The following motion should be moved, seconded and approved if the
committee wishes to exclude the press and public to deal with reports
revealing exempt information:
“That the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of
business on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt
information as defined in paragraph X Schedule 12A of the Local Government
Act 1972.”

25 - 174

CIVIC OFFICES, SUTTON
GROUND FLOOR MEETING ROOMS
FIRE PRECAUTIONS
If there is a FIRE in the building the fire alarm will sound. Leave the building
immediately by the most direct route, either back through reception or the fire exit
into Lower Square. Take your coat and any bags with you. Assemble in the car
park in front of the Holiday Inn.

Toilet

Toilet
Room 1
Toilet

Toilet

Reception

Room
5

Room
4

Fire
Exit

Room
2

Room
3

Entrance
Lower Square

Exit

Holiday Inn
Car Park

Reminder – Declarations of Interests
Members should consider the following interests and whether they have any they
should declare.
Disclosable Pecuniary Interests
Where you have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in any business of the Authority at
this meeting and you have either declared it beforehand in the Register of Members’
Interests or to the Monitoring Officer for entry in the Register you must state at this
meeting that you have such an interest and then withdraw from the room or chamber
where the meeting is being held whilst that business is considered.
Where you have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in any business of the Authority at
this meeting and have not previously declared it you must declare the nature of that
interest at this meeting and then withdraw from the room or chamber where the
meeting is being held whilst that business is considered.
Other Pecuniary and Non-Pecuniary Interests
Where you have any other pecuniary or non-pecuniary interest in any business at
this meeting you must declare that interest, but may continue to speak and vote on
the matter. However, if the interest is one which a member of the public, with
knowledge of the relevant facts, would reasonably regard as so significant that it is
likely to prejudice your judgement of the public interest then you should declare the
interest and withdraw from the room or chamber where the meeting is being held
whilst that business is considered.
Further information on these matters can be found in the Council's Code of Conduct
and Constitution. If you are in any doubt as to whether you have an interest you
should seek advice before the committee meeting from Alexa Coates.
If, during the course of the committee meeting, you consider you may have an
interest you should always declare it.

Page 1

Agenda Item 4
Strategy and Resources Committee
14 January 2019

STRATEGY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE
14 January 2019 at 7.30 pm
MEMBERS:

Councillor Ruth Dombey (Chair), Councillor Jayne McCoy (Vice-Chair)
and Councillors Manuel Abellan, Sunita Gordon, Amy Haldane,
Marlene Heron, Steve Penneck, Tim Crowley, Neil Garratt,
David Hicks, Tom Drummond and Tim Foster

ABSENT

Councillor(s) Jean Crossby, Marian James and Holly Ramsey

29. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Marian James and Holly Ramsey.
Councillors Chris Williams and Param Nandha attended as a substitutes for Councillors
Marian James and Holly Ramsey respectively.

30. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
There were no declarations of interest made.

31. MINUTES
The minutes of the meeting held on 29 October 2018 were agreed as a correct record and
signed by the Chair.

32. ANY ITEMS THE CHAIR DEEMS URGENT
There were no urgent items.

33. CUSTOMER ACCESS STRATEGY
The Head of Customer Experience introduced the report. Members asked officers to explain
the difference between citizen rather than service focus. Officers explained that this was
about facilitating residents’ access to services based on their needs rather than being
focused on the structures of the Council. Members discussed the difference in cost of face
to face rather than online contact, and the need to support digital access to services.
Officers advised that the library service and the voluntary sector would be important in
supporting residents to access services digitally. Members also discussed email response
rates and how the aim of responding within 10 working days would be achieved - Officers
advised that in part this was about being open with residents on timescales of dealing with
issues and communicating to residents about progress.
RESOLVED: 1. That the draft Customer Access Strategy attached as Appendix A, be approved.

1

Agenda Item 4

Page 2
Strategy and Resources Committee
14 January 2019

34. DIGITAL STRATEGY
The Assistant Director, Digital and ICT introduced the report. Members discussed whether
third party applications had been considered as part of the digital strategy and how the
Council can make use of different apps - such as reporting tools. In addition Members also
asked about whether the Council’s performance data could be made available to the public.
In relation to reporting tools members supported developing use of GIS data to identify the
location of issues and reducing duplicate reports.
Officers advised that part of the strategy was making the Council’s data open and
transparent and this would include looking at what performance data could be available.
RESOLVED: 1. That the updated Digital Strategy attached at Appendix A, be approved, as the
Council’s main strategy to deliver improvements for the residents and businesses of,
and visitors to the borough through the use of digital and smart place technology,
and improved use of data.

35. PROPOSAL TO APPLY FOR EMPLOYER WITH HEART CHARTER MARK IN
SUPPORT OF EMPLOYEES WITH PREMATURE BABIES
The Head of HR Consultancy introduced the report. Members requested that any
subsequent policies changes be promoted to staff.
RESOLVED: 1. That the proposal to apply for the Employer with Heart Charter Mark be endorsed
and the required changes to the Council’s policies be made.

36. PORTAGE SPIN OUT
The Assistant Director - Customers, Commissioning and Governance introduced the report.
Members discussed support from the Council for the proposed company and whether this
would be proactive or reactive. Officers advised that as this would not be a local authority
owned company, there would be a key role for the advisory board in supporting the
company.
The chair moved to exclude the public and press.
RESOLVED: That the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on the
grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraph
3 Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.
As part of an exempt session Members discussed company directors, marketing, income
generation, the availability of grants and the risks in supporting the transition of the service.
Members requested additional resolutions in relation to the provision of professional advice
and the terms of the loan repayment. The recommendations were put to the vote and
unanimously carried.

2

Page 3

Agenda Item 4
Strategy and Resources Committee
14 January 2019

RESOLVED: 1. That the Council’s support for the transition of the internal Portage service into the
Community Interest Company (CIC) based on the externally validated business plan,
be confirmed.
2. That authority to negotiate contractual arrangements as part of the transfer needed
(see appendix A) be delegated to the Strategic Director of People’s Services.
3. That authority to negotiate the transfer of office assets, buy-back support and cashflow loan arrangements based on similar lines with other previous new delivery
models be delegated to the Strategic Director of Resources
4. That the CIC be recommended to secure professional advice formally as part of its
governance arrangements
5. That the confirmation received that the loan to the CIC will begin to be paid back from
year 3, be noted.

The meeting ended at 9.06 pm

Chair:
Date:

3

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 5

Agenda Item 5

Report to:

Strategy and Resources Committee

Report title:

Performance and Finance Report - Quarter 3 2018/19

Report from:

Gerald Almeroth, Strategic Director - Resources
Jessica Crowe, Assistant Director - Customers, Commissioning and
Governance

Ward/Areas affected:

Borough Wide

Chair of Committee/Lead
Member:

Councillor Ruth Dombey
Councillor Sunita Gordon, Lead Member for Finance

Author(s)/Contact
Number(s):

Sam Barker, Head of Corporate Improvement & Insight, 020 8770 5151
Alicia Attoe, Head of Financial Strategy & Reporting, 020 8770 5260

Corporate Plan
Priorities:

Open/Exempt:

●
●
●
●
●

Date:

11 February 2019

Being Active
Making Informed Choices
Living Well Independently
Keeping People Safe
Smarter Ways of Working

Open

Signed:

Jessica Crowe
Assistant Director - Customers,
Commissioning and Governance

30 January 2019

Gerald Almeroth
Strategic Director of Resources

30 January 2019

Agenda Item 5

Page 6

1.

Summary

1.1

This report provides an overview of the Council’s performance and finance during April - December
2018 as reported through the new Corporate Plan and financial monitoring arrangements. The
projected revenue outturn position for General Fund services is for a £1.1m net overspend
representing 0.8% of the approved budget. The report also sets out the financial position on capital
spending.

2.

Recommendations
The Strategy and Resources Committee is recommended to:

2.1

Confirm indicators for Strategy and Resources as provided in Pentana (Appendix A);

2.2

Note the projected revenue outturn position;

2.3

Agree for 2018/19, the one-off use of reserves to fund the estimated costs of unlawful traveller
encampments at £0.150m;

2.4

Note the projected capital position;

2.5

Agree the capital programme adjustments shown under Appendix B, and;

2.6

Note the list of capital schemes approved through delegated authority for month 7 and 8 since
quarter 2 shown under Appendix C.

3.

Background

3.1

The new Corporate Plan (Ambitious for Sutton) sets out the priorities for the Council over the
period 2018 - 2023. These priorities will be delivered under the following themes: Being Active,
Making Informed Choices, Living Well Independently, Keeping People Safe, and Smarter Ways of
Working in accordance with the direction of travel and future shape of the Council.

4.

Council Performance - Outcomes Based Commissioning

4.1

In order for Strategy and Resources Committee to be able to effectively monitor progress in
delivery of the new coprorate plan, which is now themed around the Outcomes Based
Commissioning Reviews, and given that service performance is now closely scrutinised at service
committees, it is proposed that a corporate balanced scorecard is no longer produced. This will
avoid duplication of reporting and ensure Strategy & Resources Committee does not stray into
other committees’ areas of responsibility.

Page 7

Agenda Item 5

4.2

Instead, Strategy and Resouces Committee will consider a series of reports as the Council’s
Outcomes Based Commissioning Reviews progress. Needs Assessments will identify the strategic
priorities for each outcome area, define outcomes to be achieved, guide decisions related to
appropriate actions to be taken and establish evaluation criteria for making judgments of success.
Each Commissioning Strategy will link investment to agreed desired outcomes, and will consider
options for delivering these. It will define the range and quality of future services and how we will
work in partnership to put these in place.

4.3

Through the consideration of these reports the committee will be able to understand and shape the
future delivery of the Council’s services and public services within the borough more generally to
deliver the outcomes set out in the corporate plan. Work will be carried out as part of this process
to identify the best way of reporting progress to members of Strategy & Resources to give a picture
of outcomes rather than service performance, as the latter will be considered by other committees.
This could be through infographics or a ‘state of the borough’ report and proposals will be shared
with members to establish what will be most useful. During 2019/20 the proposed reporting
timetable is as follows:
● Q1 2019/20 - Progress update - focus on Needs assessment for Being Active Citizens and
Making Informed Choices.
● Q2 - Progress update - focus on Commissioning Strategy for Being Active Citizens and Making
Informed Choices.
● Q3 - Progress update - focus on Needs assessment and opportunities for Living Well
Independently and Keeping People Safe.
● Q4 - Progress update - focus on Commissioning Strategy for Living Well Independently and
Keeping People Safe.

4.4

Once each commissioning strategy has been approved, further reports where decisions on specific
commissioning exercises are required will go to the appropriate committee for consideration.

4.5

For those service areas for which Strategy and Resources Committee is directly responsible, the
committee has previously chosen to monitor a suite of indicators relevant to those services. These
are attached as Appendix A. Members of the Committee are invited to consider this list and how
they wish to review and challenge performance going forward, drawing on the experience of other
committees so far.

4.6

In addition, monthly service level performance reporting to Directorate Management Teams
covering a much greater number of operational indicators continues as usual, monitored at end of
month performance ‘challenge’ sessions by the Chief Executive.

Agenda Item 5

Page 8

Customer Care
4.7

81 formal complaints were received in Q3, a 25 % reduction vs Q2 resulting from work within
customer services to resolve issues quickly at first point of contact. Responsiveness has also
improved with 77% complaints responded to within time, an increase from 47% responded to within
time in Q2. The majority (85%) of complaints were resolved at stage 1 and 15% escalated to stage
2. The complaints figures by Directorate were as follows:

Directorate

Number of Complaints

Responses within time

Chief Executive’s

3

2 (67%)

Resources

12

10 (83%)

EH&R

43

30 (70%)

Peoples - Children’s

11

10 (91%)

Peoples - Adults

12

12 (100%)

4.8

There has been a significant improvement in performance this quarter in key services with
colleagues in Peoples services achieving the highest percentage responses within time improving
from 33% within time in Q2 for Children’s to 91% in Q3 and improving from 89% to 100% in Adult’s.
Colleagues in Environment, Housing and Regeneration (EH&R) responded to the highest volume
of complaints within time (30) and improved percentage responses within time from 38% in Q2 to
70% in Q3.

4.9

There were 880 Member enquiries which is a reduction of 8% from Q2. 89% were responded to
within time an increase from 79% in Q2. EH&R received the highest volume with 91% and highest
performance in the responsiveness. The table below breaks these down by Directorate:
Directorate

Number of Member Enquiries

Responses within time

Chief Executive’s

3

3 (100%)

Resources

43

36 (84%)

EH&R

797

723 (91%)

Peoples - Children’s

20

15 (75%)

Peoples - Adults

17

14 (82%)

4.10 There were 358 Freedom of Information requests received in Q3 (a decrease on the 450 received
in Q2) compared with 372 in the same quarter the previous financial year. Of these 358 requests
(81%) were responded to within time.

Page 9

Agenda Item 5

5.

Revenue Financial Performance - third quarter 2018/19

5.1

The latest available projected General Fund revenue budget outturn position, including
commentary on key variations, to the end of month 9 (December 2018) is set out below.The
projected revenue budget outturn is for a net overspend of £1.122m (0.79%) which is a reduction of
£0.417m from the position at quarter 2.

2018/19
Latest
Budget
Directorate

£’000

2018/19
Projected 2018/19 Projected
Outturn
Outturn Variation
Q3
Q3
£’000

£’000

%

2018/19
Projected
Outturn
Q2
£’000

Chief Executive’s

22,657

22,363

-294

-1.30%

-390

E, H & R

32,917

32,881

-36

-0.11%

632

People Services

91,030

93,163

2,133

2.34%

2,194

Resources

20,826

20,595

-231

-1.11%

-447

-18,965

-19,415

-450

2.37%

-450

-7,115

-7,115

0

0.00%

0

141,350

142,472

1,122

0.79%

1,539

Non-Service Budgets
Core grants
Total
Chief Executive’s
5.2

Chief Executive’s is currently projecting an underspend of (£0.294)m.

5.3

The majority of the underspend (£0.229m) is in the Wellbeing area and relates to new additional
Continuing Healthcare funding for some Inclusion Centre users (£0.171m). The remainder of the
underspend in Wellbeing is mainly due to the Taxicard scheme receiving lower usage charges from
London Councils than is budgeted by £56k.

5.4

There are also underspends in Customer, Commissioning & Governance (£65k). Considerable
work has been done in this period to understand and analyse budgets that transferred into this
area from Peoples services with the creation of the Commissioning Unit.

5.5

Broadly this area’s underspend is due to staffing vacancies being held in anticipation of
restructuring and savings in 2019/20, some of which have been achieved early. However some
costs may remain to be incurred due to redundancy (pension repayment), agency cover, and
accommodation moves which has reduced the underspend on staffing.

5.6

A review of the Smarter Council programme is underway as new requirements have emerged
during the year, for example around Special Educational Needs (SEN) to support the Written
Statement of Action, and Health Integration, putting the Smarter Council reserve under significant
pressure.

5.7

Public Health is forecast to end the year in line with the budget.

Agenda Item 5

Page 10

Environment, Housing and Regeneration Directorate
5.8

EH&R is projecting a balanced position at Q3.

5.9

The projection has improved from a projected overspend at month 8 of £282k to a projected
underspend of (£37k). This is due to an extended period of commissioning of the ERF, resulting in
a reduced cost for the disposal of waste.

5.10 In addition to this costs associated with travellers encampments are to be centrally funded. It was
reported in Q2 for EH&R that significant one off costs had been incurred to deal with illegal
encampments, traveller incursions, and legal costs of obtaining an injunction to protect the
borough’s parks and open spaces, and that these costs should be funded corporately through
reserve funding. The variance reported for EH&R in paragraph 5.1 assumes these costs of
£0.150m therefore will be fully funded from reserves in 2018/19.
People Directorate
5.11 The People Directorate is currently reporting a £2.133m overspend on the general fund and a
£0.301m underspend on the Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG). In overall terms this is broadly
similar to that reported at quarter 2. This is detailed in paragraphs 5.12 to 5.25.
Children’s Safeguarding
5.12 In 2018/19, this service is currently projecting a £1.5m overspend, (a £0.4m improvement from
Q2), the reasons for this are set out in paragraphs 5.13 to 5.16.
5.13 Leaving Care (LC), including Unaccompanied Asylum Seeking Children (UASC) - £1.5m projected
overspend
Forecast spend for 2018/19 is based on existing numbers of clients in leaving care, but with
increasing numbers of UASC under 18 referrals, now at 32 (12 new clients since 1 April), this figure
could now increase further due to the removal of maximum number of Home Office rota referrals
(was 32). The average number of UASC clients supported over the last 3 years has been around
20. Approximately 50% of direct client costs for UASC clients can be claimed through the Home
Office UASC grant. Projections also include new responsibilities in supporting Care Leavers aged
21-25.
5.14 Placements - £0.2m projected underspend
A budget saving of £1m planned to be delivered through reduced use of high cost placements and
seeking alternative more cost effective accommodation is expected to be met in full. To achieve
the saving the Council must reduce the average number of placements across the year so there is
a focus on monitoring the actual numbers and trends of high cost residential placements, the
number of clients in high cost residential placements has reduced from 20 at the start of the
financial year to 11 (total number of children and young people in residential setting is 19, 8 are
children with disabilities which fall under a different category) in the last quarter and this part year
reduction in numbers has now resulted in a £0.2m projected underspend for this budget at Q3.

Page 11

Agenda Item 5

5.15 Adoption Allowances, Special Guardianship and Residence Orders - £0.3m projected overspend
The current level of spend indicates that a similar variance in these areas of spend is expected to
that recorded in 2017/18 (£0.3m). This will be tracked across the remainder of the year. Increased
spending in this area is more desirable than on placements due to providing a lower cost option
with improved outcomes. Spending on placements is expected to decrease as the amount spent
on Special Guardianship continues to increase.
5.16 Children’s Centres - £0.1m projected underspend
This £0.1m underspend is due to part year staffing vacancies and lower than budgeted spend on
running costs for the service.
Education
5.17 The service is currently reporting a £0.546m overspend on the General Fund an increase of
£0.116m from Q2. The change is due mainly to increased transport costs at the Pupil Referral units
and traveller transport provision (£0.156m).The main variation is the SEN transport service which is
reporting a revised forecast saving of £0.342m against £0.772m target in 2018/19 the reasons for
which are set out below. The savings are proposed to be re-profiled as part of the budget report
concurrent to this agenda item.
5.18 This is in part because of growing demand. The SEN target transport savings were based on
Education Health and Care plans (EHCPs) remaining in the region of 1,550 (2017/18) where in fact
they have increased to 1,658 as of December 2018. Whilst the target savings have proved to be
ambitious, the service has demonstrated cost avoidance. The proportion of young people with an
EHC plan that London Borough of Sutton (LBS)/ Cognus provided travel assistance to has dropped
from an average of 42.3% in 2017/18 to the current rate of 39.3% in 2018/19 (as of July 2018).
Assuming this rate is maintained, this will avoid the equivalent of 40 additional pupil journeys this
year through a more robust application of the Council’s transport policies. Although an estimate
only, based on the current average costs of SEN transport (£9.9kper pupil), circa £0.400m of costs
will have been avoided this year as a result.
5.19 As well as increasing demand, there have been a number of other issues the service have
encountered including:
● whilst independent travel training (ITT) is working, the service on occasions has needed to
negotiate a longer lead in time to introduce ITT as well as provide additional travel training to
enable the change to independent travel, and;
● headway has been made in improving the usage of vehicles by reducing taxis and using more
minibuses, although there were a larger number of late applications this year. Rationalisation of
routes is continuing with route consolidations having taken place during the Autumn term and
also from January 2019 at several schools.

Agenda Item 5

Page 12

5.20 To support and realise the previously approved savings over the four year period, a range of
actions are underway, including the implementation of a Dynamic Purchasing System (DPS) to
commission transport, recently approved by the People Committee.
Adult Social Care
5.21 Adult Social Care is currently reporting a balanced position. Early indication shows that the overall
client numbers are in line with 2017/18 outturn (1,830 clients) versus (1,829 clients) in month 9 and
versus 2018/19 budgeted number of (1,836 clients). The client numbers do fluctuate between long
term placements and domiciliary care but the total overall spend is expected to come within the
Adult Social Services budget for 2018/19 which was constructed around these client activities.
5.22 Under the risk share agreement with Sutton CCG, LBS is currently forecasting a £91k overspend
on the Better Care Fund as part of its share of the forecast £0.267m joint forecast position. The
overspend is largely due to additional hours worked in the Start Service (Reablement) to meet
increased demand. The overspend in the Community Equipment Services from previous periods
has been offset by capitalising qualifying expenditure. In addition, a detailed explanation for the
forecast has been requested from the Community Equipment Services provider..
Dedicated Schools Grant
5.23 The DSG is currently showing an underspend of £0.301m, an increased underspend from Q2 of
£83k. This comprises a Schools block forecast underspend of £0.410m and a High Needs block
overspend of £0.109m. The variation on the Schools block of £0.410m is due to backdated Non
Domestic Rate revaluations for 8 maintained schools that formed the Sutton Education Trust in
February 2017 (-£0.550m) and additional costs of £0.140m due to a reduction in contributions for
early retirements. The High Needs overspend is the result of additional pupils in specialist provision
(in-year) where costs have been pro rata-ed to the end of the year. It should be noted that the high
needs overspend is in the context of having transferred 0.5% (£0.737m) from the Schools block in
2018/19.
5.24 At the end of December the DfE announced additional funding for 2018/19 and 2019/20, in
recognition of national cost pressures on the national high needs block arising from the introduction
of the Children and Families Act in 2015; Sutton is expecting an allocation of £0.506m in both
years. The Council will discuss the issue with Schools Forum and expects to wait until year end
before any final decision is made on the application of this funding.
5.25 A review of the existing provision within current EHCPs commenced in October 2018. This has
resulted in a clearer and more accurate view of the costs of existing provision as stated in EHCPs.
The review is showing that a proportion of young people might be better supported in local and /or
mainstream education rather than high cost out-of-borough or special provision respectively.
Between January and July 2019 annual reviews which are taking place will assess ongoing need,
consult with students, settings and parents/carers to look at the provision which will better meet
their needs and prepare for them adulthood. This alongside a refresh of processes for requesting
an Education Health and Care (EHC) Needs Assessment and agreeing to an EHC Plan will realise
greater efficiency of resources in 2019/20.

Page 13

Agenda Item 5

Resources Directorate
5.26 Resources is currently reporting a net underspend of £0.231m which is dervied from the following
underspends: Business Services (£0.215m), Finance (£0.149m), Legal Services (£64k), Human
Resources (£69k), Electoral Registration (£20k), which more than offset a forecast overspend of
£0.29m on ICT.
Finance
5.27 Finance has achieved savings of £84k above the target built into the budget for 2018/19 via the
service staffing restructure. In addition there are presently vacancies being held in a number of
finance teams and some of these will be released permanently to deliver budget savings in the
2019/20 budget.
Business Services
5.28 There is a £0.215m underspend in this area. This predominantly arises from:
● a £83k forecast underspend from the administration of revenue and benefits as a result of
additional external funding of £0.108m New Burdens and Verify Earnings and Pensions Grant;
● a £0.245m forecast underspend from the Support Functions Service, which relate to staff
vacancies.
● a £0.124m forecast overspend on the Registration Service, this is predominantly related to a
loss in rental income and a forecast underachievement of demand led income on Citizenship
Ceremonies. Local authorities are no longer able to offer the Settlement Checking Service and
Nationality Document Return Service, which alerted residents to the offer of a Citizenship
Ceremony.
Human Resources
5.29 The Shared Human Resources Service with Kingston is forecasting an underspend of which £69k
is attributable to Sutton. This is due to a number of savings identified in the current year in general
running costs, some posts being held vacant pending a fuller re-organisation and some additional
income from schools buying in services.
Legal Services
5.30 This area is forecasting a £64k underspend arising from a lower demand for legal services from the
Council to the South London Legal Partnership (SLLP), partially offset by a shortfall in recovered
legal fees.

Page 14

Agenda Item 5

ICT
5.31 ICT is forecasting an overspend of £0.288m. £99k of this is due to not achieving the income target
of £0.150m on street naming and numbering. This income target was based on data from the past
3 years, however, demand this year from developers has reduced from previous years. The impact
of this is being reduced through other savings. Finance and Digital & IT are continuing to review
the Telehony budgets across the Council to manage unachieved savings from previous years.
Whilst the Council has been able to reduce telephony costs through contract renegotiation and an
audit of lines, further work is required to review and reduce these costs for the Council as a whole.
There is also an additional pressure on the budget as Microsoft have substantially increased their
licensing costs over the past 12 months, the Council has renewed the contract. Whilst the contract
renogotiations have sucessfully reduced the impact there is a part year impact and then a growth
item has been put forward for 2019/20.
Non-Service Budgets/ Core grants
5.32 There is currently a forecast underspend of £0.450m on the Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP)
which is included within the Non Service Budget. This is as a result of a review into the Council’s
approach to providing for debt repayments which resulted in a reduction to the level of annual MRP
contribution.
6.

Capital Outturn - third quarter 2018/19

6.1

The projected capital outturn after the proposed adjustments is shown in the table below:

Directorate
Chief Executive’s

Projected
Outturn

Projected
Variation

£’000

£’000

£’000

2,378

1,070

-1,308

EH & R

50,110

48,311

-1,799

People Services

35,104

31,933

-3,171

Resources

30,829

30,212

-617

118,421

111,526

-6,895

Total
6.2

Latest
Budget

The variations shown above relate to under or over spends on individual schemes resulting in an
overall projected net reduction in expenditure on the programme currently of £6.895m. The main
variations are firstly as a result of rephasing to future years. Variations consist of:
● Chief Executives - rephasing of £1.308m to 2019/20 for digital programme projects on smart
place and customer platform and the unallocated balance to fund future schemes.

Page 15

Agenda Item 5

● EH & R - Rephasing to 2019/20 of £3.082m on existing housing stock projects mainly related to
fire safety works at various sites following delay in procurement process, and rephasing
£1.300m for Ludlow Lodge and Richmond Green new build projects due to delayed completion
to May 2019 and June 2019 respectively. This is offset by budgets which have increased due to
additional grant received for Disabled Facilities Grant of £0.181m, additional grant for new
Highways pothole funding of £0.474m and a contribution from KIPPA of £35k is to go towards a
Transport for London project on Kimpton Road Industrial Estate. There are also additional
Property Acquistions of £1.920m now funded from HRA Borrowing and Right to Buy income as
well as additional budget of £24k on flood schemes funded by a new Government grant from the
Environment Agency, and additional budget of £91k for Phase 2 new build project funded by
HRA Borrowing that has been approved by the Mayor.
● People Services - Rephasing of £0.190m in 2018/19 and further £0.660m in 2019/20 to
2020/21 to reflect revised cashflow profile for NS3 secondary school, minor rephasing of
£0.446m for various Primary and Special school expansions. Rephasing of £2.331m to 2019/20
for New Hackbridge Primary School due to the non performance of the main contractor
(Lakehouse,) as a result of their serious financial problems. A notice of termination has been
issued by the Council. The process can be challenged by Lakehouse, but once it has been
contractually accepted (14 days), the Council will be legally able to put a plan of action in place
with a third party contractor to reprogramme and complete the contract. The likely time scale is
difficult to predict, but the process of appointing a third party contractor and re-engaging the
sub-contractors is likely to take circa 3 months. Additional costs will be incurred and at this time
it is difficult to give an indication of these. The costs will have to be met from the unallocated
basic needs grant that is still available.
● Resources - £0.469m on the Beddington Park Refurbishment Works to Listed Wall rephased to
2019/20 as only site clearance, minor improvements and graffiti removal to be carried out this
financial year.
6.3

It should also be noted that over the life of the 4 year budget period there is a potential overspend
of £0.5m on the project costs for the Estate Regeneration Programme. This forecast overspend is
on preliminary costs in the assessment (by external advisers and residents) of Estate Regeneration
proposals and delivery mechanisms. The existing grant from Ministry of Housing, Communities and
Local Government is not sufficient to cover these additional costs. Further work is needed to review
costs, assess if further grant is available and analyse the proposed business cases to see if these
costs can be absorbed within other individual projects in the programme.

6.4

The Committee is asked to approve the proposed capital budget adjustments as set out in
Appendix B. These reflect rephasing of work between years and the utilisation of new capital
resources into the programme. The figures in the table above assume that these changes have
been approved.

6.5

A list of schemes approved through delegated authority for Month 7 and 8 totalling a reduction of
£0.107m are shown under Appendix C.

Page 16

Agenda Item 5

7.

Corporate risk register

7.1

An overview of the key corporate risks including any new risks or changes to existing risks will be
provided in the Q4 Performance and Finance Report, following cosideration by the Audit and
Governance Committee on 31 January 2019.

8.

Impacts and Implications
Financial

8.1

These are covered in the report.
Legal

8.2
9.

There are no specific legal implications arising from this report
Appendices and Background Documents
Appendix letter

Title

A

Strategy and Resources Committee Indicators 2018/19-2022/23

B

Recommended Capital Budget Adjustments

C

Delegated Approvals since Q2 2018/19

Background documents
None

Audit Trail
Version

Final

Date: 31 January 2019

Consultation with other officers
Finance

Yes

Alicia Attoe, Victoria
Goddard

Legal

No

N/a

Equality Impact Assessment
required

No

N/a

Page 17

Agenda Item 5

Appendix A Strategy and Resources Committee Indicators 18/19-22/23
Code & Name

Description

Number of external calls or contacts to the council’s Emergency
EHR SSC EP 01 Number of
calls or contacts to the council Planning Service. The purpose is to monitor the resource strain
regarding Emergency Planning placed on the service from external contacts requiring action.

EHR SSC EP 02 Number of
Emergency Planning callouts
during the period

Collection
Frequency
Monthly

The purpose of this PI is to identify trends in EP callouts to inform Yearly
on additional service needs, actions and information requirements.
This PI is requested for LAP monitoring Report. The data will be
collected by the emergency planning team. Information is reported
to statutory Borough Resilience Forum and identify agency
actions..

PI SSP 06 Repeat victimisation The PI aims to establish the effectiveness of the Sutton Domestic
domestic violence incidents to Violence MARAC (Multi Agency Risk Assessment Conference)
process. This relates to the DVA/VAWG Strategy. The SSPS
MARAC (%)

Current
Target
Data Only

Data Only

Quarterly

27.50%

PI SSP 07 Number of reported The purpose of this PI is to establish the Sutton picture of domestic Quarterly
violence reporting in Sutton during the period, this relates to the
domestic violence offences

Data Only

Performance Team will liaise with the Community Safety Officer to
identify from DV MARAC data the % repeat victimisation domestic
violence incidents. By measuring this SSPS can establish the
Sutton picture of domestic violence reporting in Sutton during the
period. This PI will be calculated through review of MARAC cases
held by the Community Safety Officer and reported on a monthly
basis.

DVA/VAWG Strategy. The Police system Met Stats will be used to
extract the total number of reported domestic violence offences
which will evidence the work of the Council and Police to
decreasing the number of domestic violence offences in Sutton
and identify the further work that needs to be in place in Sutton to
encourage victim to report.

PI SSP 11 Number of ASB
Calls to Police

This PI is intended to indicate levels of demand on police
resources in dealing with personal, nuisance and environmental
anti-social behaviour. The SSPS performance team will use the
Police system Met Stats to extract the number of calls within a
given period and input this into the quarterly ASBU Board report.
The purpose of this is to identify whether the ASBU has the
capacity to deal with the number of ASB calls directed to the unit,
to also identify which housing providers are within hotspots for
ASB calls and what further work can be done with these partners.

Quarterly

Data Only

PI SSP 12 Number of frontline
staff trained on Prevent

This PI aims to demonstrate compliance with Statutory Prevent
Quarterly
Duty related to Local Authority Statutory Requirement and Legal
Duty. The SSPS Performance team will liaise with the Prevent
Manager to collect this data from each training session.The
intended outcome is to raise Awareness of Statutory Prevent Duty
compliance and Local Authorities to ensure appropriate frontline
staff, including those of its contractors, to recognise vulnerability to
being drawn into terrorism and are aware of available programmes
to deal with this issue.
Local Authority Statutory Requirement and Legal Duty

Data Only

Page 18

Agenda Item 5
CEX PCS (CS) 38 % Channel
shift achieved for customer
services overall

Data only

CEX PCS (CS) 41 Number of
calls offered to customer
service centre

Data only

CEX PCS (CS) 43 Average
wait time per phone call

Data only

CEX PHT (PH) 05 HIV late
diagnosis rate (%)

Percentage of adults (aged 15 or more) diagnosed with a CD4 cell Yearly
count less than 350 cells per mm3.

25%

CEX PHT (PH) 11 % Children
Obese at Year 6

Percentage of Children measured to have excess weight in Year 6. Yearly

34%

Quarterly
CEX PHT (PH) 16 The number The number of eligible residents who have attended NHS health
check. Eligibility includes being over 40 years of age and under 75
of eligible residents attending
years of age.
an NHS Health Check each
quarter.

SC RES 19 Planned
Maintenance Statutory
Inspections

Statutory inspections are completed by due date

RES FIN (AP) 01 Accounts
Payable - % undisputed
invoices paid within 30 days

Percentage of undisputed invoices paid within 30 days

RES ICT (PI) 11 Availability of
Core Networks

Availability of core network components on the new Infrastructure
as measured by the Service Centre application

RES ICT (PI) 12 Availability Of Availability of core web components on the new
Infrastructure as measured by the Service Centre
Core Web Systems

Quarters

Monthly variable

5%

100%

96%

Monthly

99%

Monthly

99%

application
kingston.gov.uk
services.kingston.gov.uk
maps.sutton.gov.uk

RES ICT (PI) 13 Availability of
core email services

Availability of core email services as measured by
the supplier

Monthly

99%

RES ICT (PI) 14 Availability of
core Modern Desktop servers

Availability of Modern Desktop Service across both Councils Monthly

99%

RES HRS (HR) 02 Time Taken Number of days to fill a post
To Fill Posts

Months

90 days

RES HRS (HR) 04 Number of Number of emergency payments made
Emergency payments made to
staff

Months

5

RES HRS (HR) 06 Number of
employment tribunals
CORP (CC) 08 Complaints
responded to within timescales
Alert 62.07% 95%
CORP (CC) 09 FOIs
responded to within timescales
Alert 65.25% 95%
CORP (CC) 10 Members
enquiries responded to within
timescales Alert 88.85% 95%

Number of employee relations cases that we manage that result in Quarterly
an Employment Tribunal

0

Page 19
CORP (CC) 11 MPs enquiries
responded to within timescales
Alert 84.06% 95%

Agenda Item 5

This page is intentionally left blank

Recommended Capital Budget Adjustments
Directorate

Scheme
No

Scheme

Appendix B
2018/19

2019/20

2020/21

2021/22

£

£

£

£

NET
CHANGE
£

Rephasing and Virements of Capital Expenditure

EH & R

0
-3,082,000

3,082,000

C130-131

LA New Build - Richmond Green/Ludlow Lodge

-1,300,000

1,300,000

PEOPLE

L116

Hackbridge Primary

-2,331,000

2,331,000

PEOPLE

L118

NS3 Secondary

-220,000

-660,000

PEOPLE

L118

Rosehill Secondary

30,000

0

30,000

RES

R054

Digital Programme

-1,308,000

1,308,000

0

RES

R170

Beddington Park Listed Wall - H & S

-469,000

469,000

0

-8,680,000

7,830,000

Sub total

0

0

850,000

850,000

-30,000

0

Page 21

C100-C110 Council House Stock Improvements
EH & R

Rephasing to 2019/20 of £3.082m on existing housing stock projects mainly
related to fire safety works at various sites following delay in procurement
process.
Rephasing £1.3m for Ludlow Lodge new build and Richmond Green new build as
delayed completion to May 2019 and June 2019 respectively.
Rephasing of £2.331m to 2019 -20 for New Hackbridge Primary School - Due to
the non performance of the main contractor (Lakehouse,) as a result of their
serious financial problems. A notice of termination has been issued by the
Council. The process can be challenged by Lakehouse, but once it has been
contractually accepted (14 Days), the Council will be legally able to put a plan of
action in place with a third party contractor to reprogramme & complete the
contract. The likely time scale is difficult to predict, but the process of appointing a
third party contractor & re-engaging the sub-contractors is likely to take circa 3
months. Additional costs will be incurred & at this time it is impossible to give an
indication of these. The costs will have to be met from the unallocated basic
needs grant that is still available.
Budget rephased by £190k in 18/19 and further £660k in 19/20 to 20/21 to reflect
revised cashflow profile for NS3 secondary school plus an additional £30k moved
to the new Rosehill and Shene Way Academy for legal costs for land transfer
£30k vired from NS3 to pay for new Rosehill and Shene Way Academy legal
costs for land transfer
Rephasing of £110k to 19/20 for digital programme projects on smart place and
customer platform and rephase unallocated balance of £1.198m to fund future
schemes
Only site clearance, minor improvements and graffiti removal to be carried out this
financial year. Planning require at least a year for settlement after vegetation
removal before major works - earliest start would be Summer 2019.

0

New Resources into the Programme
EH & R

E005

Highways Improvements - Pothole Funding

474,000

474,000

EH & R

E018

Mandatory Disabled facilities Grant

180,813

180,813

EH & R

E136

TFL Corridors - Kimpton Road Industrial Estate

35,000

35,000

EH & R

RES

R165

Sub total
Total Adjustments

Commercial Properties

91,000

91,000
1,920,000
24,000

1,920,000
24,000

14,295,000

14,295,000

17,019,813

0

0

0

17,019,813

8,339,813

7,830,000

850,000

0

17,019,813

Agenda Item 5

EH & R
EH & R

C133
LA New Build - Phase 2
C161-C161 Property Acquisitions
E170
Flood Resilience and Resistance

Forecast of spend increased by £474K for additional funding from DfT for Pothole
Funding
Extra Allocation for Disabled Facilities Grant £180,813 agreed by DCLG
Additional funding of £35K from KIPPA towards a TFL project on the Kimpton
Road Industrial Estate
Additional expenditure for Phase 2 new build projects agreed by Mayor funded by
HRA Borrowing
Additional Property Acquisitions now funded by HRA Borrowing and RTB income
Additional Environment Agency Grant to fund Flood schemes
Additional commercial property acquisitions projections of £14.295m funded from
GF Borrowing expected during 2018/19

This page is intentionally left blank

Delegated Approvals Since QTR 2 2018/19
Scheme
No

Scheme

Appendix C
2018/19

2019/20

2020/21

2021/22

£

£

£

£

NET
CHANGE
£

Details

Month 7
E191

Beddington Park HLF

-162,000

E220 - 5

Public Realm

-162,000

112,000

50,000

0
-162,000

Movement of funds into 19/20 and 20/21 years to allow for
an extension of the activity and events side of the project to
December 2021 - Agreed by Delegated Authority 28.11.18
Convert various capital schemes to revenue such as festive
lights and hanging baskets agreed by Local Committees

Month 8
Russettings

-18,000

18,000

0

E058

Nature Conservation

-10,640

10,640

0

E260

Beddington Route and Places - Beddington Village

-48,000

48,000

0

E261

Beddington Route and Places - Beddington Industrial Areas

-140,000

140,000

0

E014

TfL - Bus Priority Network

100,000

100,000

E135

TfL - Air Quality

125,000

125,000

E136

TfL Corridor Schemes

209,000

209,000

-106,640

328,640

50,000

0

Rephasing for contract payments and fees on retention agreed by Delegated Authority 7.12.18.
Rephase to support small projects to support nature
conservation in 19/20 - agreed by Delegated Authority
10.12.18
Beddington Strategic Development - Part implemented in
2018-19 - agreed by Delegated Authority 13.12.18
Beddington Strategic Development - Contingency for TfL
major scheme re-profiled to 2019-20 - agreed by Delegated
Authority 19.12.18
TfL allocation adjustment on portal - £100k Bus Priority
agreed by Delegated Authority 20.12.18
TfL allocation adjustment on portal - £125k Sutton Air
Quality agreed by Delegated Authority 20.12.18
TfL allocation adjustment on portal - £209k various Corridor
schemes agreed by Delegated Authority 20.12.18

Page 23

R166

272,000

Agenda Item 5

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 25

Agenda Item 6

Report to:

Strategy and Resources Committee

Date:

11 February 2019

Report title:

Commissioning and Financial Planning 2019/20 to 2022/23

Report from:

Gerald Almeroth, Strategic Director - Resources
Jessica Crowe, Assistant Director - Customers, Commissioning and
Governance

Ward/ Areas affected:

Borough wide

Chair of Committee/ Lead Councillor Ruth Dombey, Chair
Member:
Councillor Sunita Gordon, Lead Member for Finance
Author(s)/ Contact
Number(s):

Corporate Plan Priorities:

Open/ Exempt:

Victoria Goddard, Assistant Director - Resources (Shared Finance Service),
020 8770 4652
Alicia Attoe, Head of Financial Strategy & Reporting, 020 8770 5260
Sam Barker - Head of Communications, Insight & Engagement, 020 8770
5141
●
●
●
●
●

Being Active
Making Informed Choices
Living Well Independently
Keeping People Safe
Smarter Ways of Working

Open

Signed:

Date:

Jessica Crowe
Assistant Director - Customers,
Commissioning and Governance

30 January 2019

Gerald Almeroth
Strategic Director of Resources

30 January 2019

Agenda Item 6

Page 26

1.

Summary

1.1

This report seeks approval for the Council’s Annual Commissioning and Financial Plan for
2019/20 to 2022/23.

1.2

The revenue budget for 2019/20 is presented for agreement and for recommendation to Full
Council on 25 February 2019. This will meet the requirement in the Local Government
Finance Act 1992 for the Council to set a budget for 2019/20 by 11 March in the preceding
financial year.

1.3

The report also recommends the level of Council Tax for 2019/20 for Sutton and also
includes the Greater London Authority (GLA) Precept.

1.4

Members are asked to consider and recommend to Council for adoption the proposed
forward financial plans, both revenue and capital, to form the updated Medium Term
Financial Plan (MTFP) and Capital Strategy to support the delivery of the new Corporate
Plan. The report also presents the proposed Treasury Management Strategy for 2019/20.

1.5

The recommended revenue budget for 2019/20 in broad terms includes; £4.278m of inflation,
£6.247m of service growth cost pressures (including children’s safeguarding and adult social
care); funded by £6.408m of proposed savings, a general increase in Council Tax of 2.99%
that will raise £2.868m of funding, a further increase of 2.00% in Council Tax for the Adult
Social Care Precept that will raise a further £1.917m, other general budget adjustments of
£0.55m, pre agreed use of reserves of £2.000m, and a further use of reserves of £1.089m.

1.6

The recommendation to Full Council of a 2.00% Council Tax increase for the Adult Social
Care Precept is a £26.17 (50p a week) increase for a Band D property. The general 2.99%
Council Tax increase is £39.12 (75p a week) on a Band D property. This will mean the Sutton
element of Council Tax will go up to £1,373.81 for a Band D property for 2019/20, an
increase of 4.99%.

1.7

The financial plan over the next 3 years shows that after a balanced budget in 2019/20,
savings of £12.089m in 2020/21, £5.152m in 2021/22 and a further £4.706m in 2022/23 will
be required to close the budget shortfall gap based on current information. Should any of the
current factors change, resulting in additional cost pressures or loss of further funding, then
potentially further savings will be needed.

1.8

At present 2020/21 has the high shortfall balance of £12.089m as a large amount of funding
for previous years is assumed to cease at the end of the 4 year Local Government Finance
Settlement (LGFS) in 2019/20. Also, where other funding streams are not specifically
confirmed as continuing are not assumed in the MTFP at present until further information is
known. Areas such as the Collection Fund surplus or any gain from the Business Rates
Retention Pilot have also not been assumed for future years. Reserves usage in 2019/20 is
also assumed to be one off.

1.9

At the time of publication of this report, if any figures are still estimated or not published, they
will be reported to Full Council on 25 February 2019.

Page 27

2.

Agenda Item 6

Recommendations
The Strategy and Resources Committee is recommended to:

2.1

Agree the following recommendations to Full Council for consideration on 25 February 2019:
Commissioning intentions

2.1.1.

Agree the Outcomes Based Commissioning Plan at Appendix A;
Revenue Budget 2018/19

2.1.2.

Agree the proposed General Fund Net Budget Requirement of £144.178m summarised at
Appendix B;

2.1.3.

Agree the base budget changes set out in section 13 and summarised in Appendix C;

2.1.4.

Approve the Council’s pay policy statement for 2019/20 (Appendix D) ; and

2.1.5.

Agree growth items proposed in Appendix E;

2.1.6.

Agree the 2019/20 savings proposed in Appendix F;
HRA

2.1.7.

Note the rent reduction of 1% as mandated by Government and agree the Housing Revenue
Account (HRA) budget 2019/20 including the proposed savings (Appendices G1 - G3);
Other

2.1.8.

Approve the Members’ Allowances Scheme for 2019/20 (Appendix H).
Capital Programme

2.1.9.

Approve the new Capital Strategy (Appendix I1) including the detailed Capital Programme
(Appendix I2) for 2019/20 to 2022/23 with a total spend of £163.362m, including the
proposed funding arrangements and policies.

2.1.10.

Authorise expenditure to be incurred of £7.944m for the 2019/20 planned works to Council
dwellings (Appendix I3) and £0.759m for Expenditure on Corporate Operational Buildings
(Appendix I4);
Reserves

2.1.11.

Agree the policy on reserves as set out in section 13;
Treasury Management

2.1.12.

Approve the Treasury Management Strategy 2019/20 including the Annual Investment
Strategy, prudential indicators, Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) policy and borrowing
limits as set out in Appendix J;

Agenda Item 6

Page 28

Council Tax
2.1.13.

2.1.14.

2.1.15.

Agree the Sutton element of the 2019/20 Council Tax £1,373.81 for a Band D property, an
increase of £26.17 (2.00%) for the Adult Social Care Precept and £39.12 (2.99%) for the
general increase;
Approve the formal resolution at Appendix K, including the Council Tax Requirement of
£100.626m;
Note the proposed GLA precept of £320.51, increased from £294.23 in 2018/19 (an increase
of 51p a week);
Background

2.2

The Council uses the annual financial planning process to review and update the
commissioning activities that will be delivered over the coming financial year to deliver the
Corporate Plan priorities in the wider economic and policy context within which the Council is
currently operating.

2.3

The Council has adopted its new Corporate Plan ‘Ambitious for Sutton’ which sets out a clear
vision for the kind of place the Council wants Sutton to be. These ambitious and exciting
plans are underpinned by our shared values and will ensure that Sutton continues to
enhance its reputation as a great place to live, work and raise a family. Reviewing and
re-commissioning services has already resulted in the Council being able to meet the
challenges that austerity has presented. In order to continue to be able to address the
ongoing reduction in funding and associated budget gap, it is the time for a refined approach
of outcome based commissioning reviews that is set out in this plan. This means looking at a
number of service areas together, rather than on a directorate by directorate basis, under 4
new outcome-based themes plus a fifth one around working smarter.
Being Active Citizens

All residents live healthy lifestyles and are enabled to be
economically, socially and physically active.

Making Informed
Choices

Individuals, families and communities are able to access a
diverse range of information, advice and guidance to make
informed choices and enable them to sustain change.

Living Well

Building on individual and community resilience and assets to
help people maintain their independence for as long as
possible

Keeping People Safe

A joined up approach by all public services to ensuring that
vulnerable residents are supported and kept safe.

Smarter Ways of
Working

Transforming our ways of working to manage reduced budgets
and increasing demand.

Page 29

Agenda Item 6

3.

Towards Outcome Based Commissioning

3.1

The scope of each Outcome Based Commissioning Review (OBCR) includes all Council
(and partner services) that contribute to the proposed vision and associated outcomes for
each review. Each Commissioning Review is following the LBS commissioning cycle. The
reviews continue to utilise the Council’s Developmental Asset approach and will seek to
identify and build on those assets that are already present in individuals and communities.

3.2

Partner engagement is crucial and the OBCRs are an opportunity to put the Sutton Plan
principles into practice, and make effective and practical use of the new governance
arrangements recently agreed within health and social care in particular. Buy-in from the
Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) and other health partners will be vital and the reviews
will be taken formally to the appropriate decision-making bodies such as the Local
Transformation Board as part of the Health Integration Programme. The reviews will also
follow the Sutton Plan principles as outlined in section 4 below.

3.3

In September 2018, the first 2 reviews Being Active Citizens and Making Informed Choices
commenced, both reviews have been fully scoped and are currently in the analyse phase. It
is anticipated that Living Well Independently and Keeping People Safe will commence in
early 2019.

3.4

The Outcomes Based Commissioning Plan 2019/20 (Appendix A) sets out what will be
delivered by the Council, working with partners to deliver these new outcomes for the
Borough. The plan reflects the continuing requirement for service review and change in the
light of continued central government retrenchment and demographic and other cost
pressures, and our consequent need to find further savings to address the projected budget
gap to 2020/21 and beyond.

3.5

The Council is very conscious of the need to monitor closely the cumulative impact of these
service changes on communities in the Borough and our Equality Impact Assessment
provides the methodology and framework by which this can be done for all commissioning
decisions and service changes. In particular this will ensure that commissioners and
decision-makers are fully aware of the equalities impacts of planned service changes as
options are considered.

4.

The Sutton Plan - into action

4.1

In April 2017 the Council launched The Sutton Plan - an attempt, alongside our major local
partners,1 to rethink and overhaul the way that we design, plan and deliver the services our
residents need and rely on. Partners identified 3 priority areas, where they felt there was
need for improvement: domestic abuse, early help to young families and support for older
people at risk of isolation.

There were 23 partners in the original cohort: Amicus Horizon, Arts Council, Carshalton College, Clarion Housing Group,
Crown Agents, Environment Agency, Epsom and St. Helier University NHS Trust, Ins tute of Cancer Research, Jobcentre
Plus, London Borough of Su on, London Councils, London Fire and Rescue, Metropolitan Police, Royal Marsden NHS
Founda on Trust, South London Partnership, South West London and St. George’s Mental Health NHS Trust, Successful
Su on Business Improvement District, Su on Centre for the Voluntary Sector, Su on CCG, Su on College, Su on Housing
Partnership, Su on Primary Heads Group, Su on Secondary Heads Group, Volunteer Centre Su on and Wandle Housing.
1

Agenda Item 6

4.2

Page 30

In addition to ongoing work, leadership support was provided in these areas, to develop
collaborative working, but also to learn from the process of trying to improve the partership by
focusing on three very different areas. This work also validated the agreed Sutton Plan
principles which have been shown to be useful in practice:
● One – think place first - We will prioritise the needs of Sutton and its communities, rather
than any single organisation, throughout our work as a partnership.
● Two – work across sectors - We will build and sustain partnerships across all of the
Borough’s key organisations.
● Three – get involved early - We will tackle the causes of problems, not merely react to
their symptoms.
● Four – build stronger, self-sufficient communities - We will help communities work
together, and in partnership with other local organisations, to build and maintain strong
social networks and opportunities for individuals and organisations to work together.
● Five – provide coordinated, seamless services - We will improve the way we work
together behind the scenes to reduce the number of times people have to contact public
services.

4.3

The Sutton Plan continued to draw in data from residents via the Sutton’s Future
consultation. It also supported the launch of the Perinatal Infant Mental Health network in
October. Finally, in order to get input on the new Sutton Health and Care Plan a large
engagement event with over 120 residents and professionals was delivered in partnership
with the Sutton CCG.

4.4

Examples such as the Perinatal and Infant Mental Health Network, Sutton Health & Care and
the Domestic Abuse Transformation Programme (further detail below) show that the Sutton
Plan is beginning to support more coherent public services, shaped around the needs of all
of Sutton’s residents and service-users. In February, the partnership is reviewing all progress
and learning and considering which future areas its work should focus on. As the partnership
is maturing, in the next phase the intention will be to focus on large scale, system wide
issues.

5.

Tackling Domestic Abuse

5.1

In February 2017, Strategy and Resources Committee agreed to allocate £1.25m of
transitional funding over 3 years to a programme of work relating to domestic abuse. This
programme is aimed at transforming Sutton’s performance in tackling domestic violence and
abuse (DVA). This is one of the main Sutton Plan priorities, and funding was agreed to run
from 2017/18 to 2020/21.

5.2

In year 1 (2017/18) of the programme, a senior level multiagency Transformation Board was
set up, bringing together Sutton Plan partners from Epsom and St Helier hospitals, Royal
Marsden NHS Foundation Trust, Primary and Secondary Schools Heads, Health, Community
Action Sutton, the London Fire Brigade, the Metropolitan Police Service, Sutton Housing
Partnership, Sutton CCG and Sutton Council. All partners have agreed to work together to
reduce domestic abuse within the Borough.

Page 31

5.3

Agenda Item 6

As one of its initial pieces of work, the Board commissioned a national charity (Standing
Together against Domestic Violence) to undertake some research into the current services
and approach to domestic abuse in the Borough, and to carry out a gap analysis between the
current position and best practice. As a result of this research, the Board has given direction
and guidance to a number of workstreams, which have been developing their work during
year 2 (2018/19):
● A commissioning workstream to create a domestic abuse commissioning strategy and
specification, for commissioning of integrated and sustainable core domestic abuse
services from November 2019 to October 2022, as well as to review and ensure existing
domestic abuse services are maintained to October 2019;
● Schools, housing and health re identifying and supporting early intervention and
prevention activities;
● a comprehensive Communications Strategy, developing the notaloneinsutton.org website,
conducting surveys ensuring messages about domestic abuse are seen, heard and
understood;
● a learning and development workstream to develop a cohesive domestic abuse training
programme and materials for a range of staff and partners;
● a data workstream to identify key data to be collected and shared where possible between
key partners, to enable faster and more effective interventions for victims and their
families, and;
● A digital (Smart Place) workstream to ensure we embed digital opportunities across all
workstreams.

5.4

The Board continues to monitor the budget available, and to allocate funding as between the
workstreams as appropriate. Approx 50% of the budget (£0.625m) is to be allocated to the
commissioning of integrated and sustainable services for the period November 2019 to
October 2022.

6.

Health and Care Integration

6.1

The Sutton Plan promotes good quality of life, access to decent jobs and services, and
strong communities with a system of health and care that is shaped around the needs of
residents:
● collaborating on a better system of health and social care which provides responsive,
seamless, personalised and affordable services for all of those who need them – reducing
the need for expensive in-hospital care;
● further promoting single point of access services which are easy to navigate and offer the
right care at the right time, and;
● building upon existing initiatives to increase individual and community resilience.

6.2

As previously reported, since early 2017 the London Borough of Sutton has been working
with Sutton CCG to develop proposals for an expansion of care in the community with the
aim of reducing unplanned hospital admissions and length of stay (occupied bed days). Over
the last year partners in Sutton have collaboratively designed a new, integrated model of care
for older people.

Agenda Item 6

Page 32

6.3

Health (Sutton CCG) and social care (London Borough of Sutton) commissioners have
worked with local providers to identify a single vision, shared objectives and a ‘one service’
integrated delivery model under the banner of Sutton Health and Care (SHC).

6.4

In April 2018 Sutton Health and Care (SHC) became ‘live’ through the establishment of a
‘Consortium Agreement’, bringing together teams from London Borough of Sutton with 3
other partner organisations: Epsom and St Helier University Hospital NHS Trust; SW London
and St George’s Mental Health NHS Trust; and Sutton GP Services Ltd (plus Royal Marsden
NHS Foundation Trust under contract as they are not formally part of the Consortium), to
deliver the following key elements:
● Rapid Response Service - multi-disciplinary, short-term intensive care packages for
people at serious risk of admission to hospital;
● multi-disciplinary short-term packages of care to transition from acute/high intensity
support back into long-term care, reducing re-admission;
● Discharge to Assess - supporting people to be discharged as quickly as possible, and to
receive multi-disciplinary assessment at home, and;
● Step Closer to Home - short-term bedded care, transitioning from acute need to
discharge.

6.5

No new organisation has been formed and staff continue to hold their existing contracts but
work innovatively and as ‘one service’ to deliver improved care for people.

6.6

An Alliance Board has been formed, jointly accountable for delivering the new care model
and how the funding shared between partners will be spent. SHC will initially hold a budget of
around £6.47m made up of the current spend for the services being brought together. In
addition, there has been an additional investment amount for the first year of £1m to be spent
on areas which providers jointly decide are priorities to enable the outcomes for the service
to be delivered. This was provided by the CCG.

6.7

The day to day leadership and management of staff working in the alliance is provided by an
Integrated Management Group, with representation from across each provider organisation.

6.8

People accessing care will see teams work together to provide a personalised joined up
response, using the same information, care records and processes. They will not have to
repeat themselves and will receive the right care quickly and in the best setting.

7.

Report to Health and Wellbeing Board September 2018

7.1

The report updated on progress with the Health and Social Care Integration Programme that
has been partially ‘in flight’ for the past year with a recent focus on establishing the Sutton
Health and Care (SHC) reactive model, ‘SHC at home’, described above. There are a
number of pre-existing initiatives that have been incorporated into the programme:
● SHC at home.
● Integrated Digital Care Records.

Page 33

Agenda Item 6

● Multidisciplinary Locality Team (Wallington Library).
● Drafting the SHC Plan.
● Established Better Care Fund (BCF).
There are other examples of joint working and specifically joint commissioning which are
picked up by the programme now too. The reason for bringing together these existing
projects and initiatives is to try and ensure we are achieving system-wide change as opposed
to reinventing things in isolation and, potentially, creating disconnections.
7.2

Alongside this work, there are also clear priorities for health and social care provision in
Sutton. At this point, they are thought to be:
● Piloting Multi Disciplinary Teams (MDTs).
● Falls, Dementia, and End of Life Care.
● Social Prescribing.
● Insourcing Children’s Community Services - with a commissioning review to follow.
● Reviewing the offer to people with learning disabilities including the challenges around
Special Educational Needs and Disability (SEND) provision, specifically implementing the
requirements of the Written Statement of Action (WSOA) in response to OFSTED.
● Wider work to establish our approach to preventative and proactive care.

7.3

The report set out that we will establish teams with the capacity to deliver this programme,
including teams to be set up for progressing models of delivery for Preventative (including the
voluntary sector) and Proactive (piloting in one locality) services and initiatives, responding to
a challenge statement asking how we will integrate care in our localities, based on our
building blocks of:
● care coordination;
● risk stratification, and;
● practicalities of forging the teams

8.

National and Regional Policy Developments

8.1

On 23 June 2016 the UK voted to leave the European Union (EU). In the last year, work has
been undertaken to understand the risk presented by a ‘no deal’ scenario. However, this
work is challenging as the negotiations and political situation are fluid and there is a lack of
information with which to prepare contingencies. It is believed that such a scenario could
impact on a wide range of areas nationally, including finance, supply chains, workforce and
the economy. The key issues which have been assessed as most likely to impact Sutton in a
‘no deal’ scenario are the workforce of commissioned social care providers, funding
previously provided by the EU for regeneration and works and potential cost increases in
planned construction work, as well as managing any impact of a general economic downturn
or possible civil unrest.

Agenda Item 6

Page 34

8.2

The work on Brexit has continued to dominate the Government’s policy agenda and their
attention and focus on other issues is much reduced as a result. There are a number of
major policy challenges affecting local government which emanate from central Government
and/ or appear to be unintended consequences of other policies. For example, the continuing
impact of welfare reform and the long term financial settlement for local government.

8.3

In addition to this context, issues such as continuing demographic growth will continue to put
pressure on housing supply and demand, similarly changes in schools funding arrangements
and demand for high needs SEND placements will continue to drive budget pressures.
Responses to these and other developments are likely to require further decisions by the
Council during 2019/20 and will be brought to members as appropriate.

9.

Sub Regional Policy Developments - The South London Partnership

9.1

Sutton is part of the South London Partnership (SLP) along with the neighbouring boroughs
of Croydon, Kingston, Merton and Richmond - a sub-regional grouping committed to
promoting growth and greater well being across South London. In July 2015 the 5 boroughs
formed a new South London Joint Committee and have continued to work together on a
range of policy issues.

9.2

SLP launched its devolved Work & Health Programme in March 2018. This £13m project,
comprising £7.6m funding from Department for Work and Pensions and £5.3m from the
European Social Fund, will support around 5,000 residents with health or disability
challenges or those long-term unemployed into work over the next 5 years. By the end of
September 2018, 142 Sutton residents had been referred to the programme and 86 started
on it, with 15 already supported into work.

9.3

SLP has secured £4m funding from the London Business Rates Retention Strategic
Investment Pot for a 3 year South London Internet of Things project that will deliver a series
of pilots to gather data from local sensors to use to address different practical challenges to
support our local economies and services.

9.4

Having secured agreement from the Deputy Mayors for Transport and Regeneration,
Planning & Skills, SLP has been working with their officers to develop a South London
Infrastructure for Good Growth Strategy that will set out the transport and other infrastructure
needs to underpin good growth opportunities and support boroughs to work towards
indicative new housing targets in the Mayor’s draft London plan and support jobs growth.
Following discussions with the Deputy Mayor for Transport in December to agree a set of
joint actions to take forward key priorities together, the strategy is due to be finalised and
published in the spring. The SLP has also continued to lobby for sub-regional transport
priorities, including the Sutton Link and Brighton Mainline upgrade.

9.5

SLP continues to work with NHS partners across the South West London health sub-region.
In particular, this has secured a shift from developing plans at a sub-regional level to a focus
on borough level Local Health & Care Plans to inform more strategic planning where it is
required. SLP Directors of Adult Services are also collaborating to deliver improvements and
efficiencies in Learning Disability and Continuing Health Care.

Page 35

Agenda Item 6

10.

The London Plan

10.1

The plan supports many of the Council's own strategic priorities. It designates Sutton Town
Centre as an Opportunity Area, with the capacity to provide 5,000 new homes and 3,500 new
jobs, both of which are possible over the 22 year period of the plan. It also supports a tram
extension to Sutton Town Centre, for which the Council continues to lobby for as a necessary
improvement in Sutton's and South London's transport infrastructure to enable growth. It also
references the London Cancer Hub as one of London's sector-specific growth opportunities.

10.2

The proposed housing target for Sutton of 939 new dwellings per annum in the draft London
Plan is however deemed to be unachievable. The Sutton Local Plan identified an achievable
target of 427 new dwellings per annum, which is an 18% uplift on the adopted previous
London Plan target. The overall housing delivery policy of the Draft London Plan results in a
shift of focus to the development of small sites in suburban areas. The council considers this
policy is not justified by evidence and is not deliverable. The Draft London Plan provides no
substantive policy mechanisms to achieve this required uplift, would not provide much
needed local family housing and would be detrimental to the character of suburban London.
Council officers have submitted a rebuttal to this element of the Draft London Plan proposals
and have led on a wider joint response from the Boroughs of Sutton, Kingston, Richmond
and Merton and will be representing the 4 boroughs at the Draft London Plan Examination in
Public in February 2019.

11.

National Financial Update and Impact on Sutton
Autumn Budget 2018

11.1

Government’s Autumn Budget2 was announced in November 2018 and is stated to build on
strong foundations of; Government meeting fiscal rules 3 years early, the deficit falling to its
lowest level since 2001, and also debt starting its first sustained fall in a generation. The
Budget outlines specifically:
● GDP growth of 1.3% (down from 1.7% in 2017, but predicted to rise again in 2019 to
1.6%);
● wage growth at its strongest in 10 years; and,
● unemployment predicted to be 32.7m (3.7%) in 2019 however this is the lowest % rate in
over 4 decades.

11.2

Government also stated in this budget that they are taking further steps to ensure a positive
future by investing in public services by setting out a new path for public spending ahead of
the Spending Review in 2019, with day-to-day departmental spending now growing in real
terms for the first time since 2010.

11.3

Uncertainty still exists however around the future of Government funding specifically after the
end of the 4 year LGFS in 2019/20 and specific risks and uncertainties linked to this are
discussed throughout section 12 and 13 of this report.

2

h ps://www.gov.uk/government/publica ons/budget-2018-documents/budget-2018

Agenda Item 6

11.4

Page 36

The Budget also detailed significant areas of relevance to local authorities which were as
follows:
● £240m of additional funding (in addition to 2018/19 allocations) for authorities to spend on
adult social care services to help alleviate winter pressures on the NHS. The purpose
being to give assurance to authorities in order to plan for the money across the 2 years
and therefore not winding down of services at the end of 2018/19;
● Social Care Support Grant (non ring fenced) of £410m for adults and children's social
care. This funding is given alongside the aim for local authorities to use this to ensure that
adult social care pressures do not create additional demand on the NHS. Authorities can
also use it to improve their social care offer for older people, people with disabilities and
children;
● a £30bn package for England’s roads and infrastructure including covering repairs to
motorways and potholes. This includes £420m in 2018/19 for local authorities for potholes,
road and bridge repairs etc;
● £670m for future high streets fund to support rejuvenation and transformation;
● £400m in year bonus for schools for capital spend, this averages £10k per primary school
and £50k per secondary school;
● £5.5bn for housing infrastructure, amounting to an additional £500m with the aim of
getting a further 650,000 homes built;
● Local authorities to be fully compensated for lost income from further business rates
discounts and changes announced by government. A number of further pilot business
rates pools were announced and London’s pool was confirmed as continuing a second
year into 2019/20, but only at 75% growth retention rather than the 100% as in the current
year, and;
● Planning for all Brexit eventualities. This will include setting aside £500m for Government
departments in addition to previously announced resources. In January 2019 local
authorities share was confirmed at £56.5m. Government is still retaining £10m for
allocation during 2019/20 to respond to specific local costs that may only become evident
in the months after the exit the EU.
Provisional Local Government Finance Settlement

11.5

The provisional LGFS was announced on 13 December 2018 and contained some changes
to the assumptions already built into the MTFP.

11.6

Three consultations were also announced and these covered, the 2019/20 LGFS itself, 75%
Business Rates Retention and the next stage of the Fair Funding Review, the latter two being
the most significant. The Fair Funding Review is seeking views on the approach to
measuring relative needs and resources of local authorities prior to it’s implementation for
2020/21 and the 75% Business Rates Retention consultation seeks views on proposals for
sharing risk and reward, managing volatility in income and setting up the reformed Business
Rates retention system. The Council is currently consulting on these responses in detail to
ensure the Council reflects on aspects of the retention scheme and new funding mechanisms
which may hinder the benefit of growth or funding awarded. The latter two consultations are
due to Government on the 21 February 2019 and further commentary on the responses will
be given in the final budget report.

Page 37

11.7

Agenda Item 6

The key areas listed in the LGFS detail for 2019/20 for local authorities are provided in the
bullet points below with specific grant allocations for Sutton listed later in this section. All
revised allocations or changes in funding have been included in the MTFP:
● confirmation of no increase to the threshold in the New Homes Bonus (NHB) calculation;
● £180m balance of the Business Rate Levy Account to be distributed to authorities based
on need, and;
● as per paragraph 11.4 and 11.19 additional funding (and allocations) were confirmed for
social care.

11.8

In overall terms the Settlement Funding Assessment (SFA) announcement for local
authorities in England reduced by 5.4%. For London Boroughs this was 5.8%. Sutton’s SFA
reduction was higher than both these averages at 9.4% with the 2019/20 allocation being
£42.443m. Sutton’s SFA is broken down as follows:
● the business rate baseline (this is the Government’s estimate of the Business Rates
collected locally to be retained by the Council under the London pilot pool) - £26.712m;
● the Business Rates top-up grant, reflecting the difference between baseline funding and
the Business Rates baseline - £15.731m; and
● the Revenue Support Grant (RSG) has been confirmed at zero due to the London
Business Rates Retention Pilot Pool introduction (expected to be £1.500m before the
pool).
London Business Rates Pilot and 75% Business Rates Retention Scheme)

11.9

Government is committed to continuing to give local authorities greater control over the
money they raise locally and in 2018/19 London became a 100% Business Rates Retention
Pilot. The Pilot comprises of the 32 London Boroughs, the City of London and the GLA. In
December 2018, the Government confirmed the aim of increasing the level of Business
Rates retained by local government from the current 50% to the equivalent of 75% in April
2020. A signed memorandum of understanding with Government was published setting out
the terms of the 2019/20 Pilot.

11.10

The initial 100% Business Rates Retention Pilot Pool model stated that Sutton’s share of the
total net benefit is £2.1m, London Councils have since given further indicative figures at
£3.4m. Sutton’s current NNDR collection performance is on track to achieve these original
figures.

11.11

Further detail is expected in the final LGFS announcement due late January 2019 regarding
the pilot however regardless of further announcement there is still uncertainty around this
scheme and amounts will still be somewhat indicative and cannot be guaranteed at this point,
not least because the issues regarding treatment of valuation appeals and the possible
adjustment of functions or other funding remaining to be determined. It is difficult to predict
with accuracy the Council’s gain under 75% retention so it is deemed not prudent to adjust
the MTFP at this stage. The pilot has also been agreed to be extended in to the second
year, but beyond that is unknown, therefore there is also some risk in assuming the full
amount of potential additional resources not only under technical aspects but also the
duration.

Agenda Item 6

11.12

Page 38

Consideration for using any additional benefit to fund Regeneration Capital Investment also
needs to be given in 2019/20. At present £5m has been assumed from the London Pool
against the Capital Programme over the period 2019/20 to 2022/23. £3.3m is partially funding
the set up of a £5m Strategic House/ Regeneration Fund and £1.7m is proposed to be
applied against the general programme.
Business Rates

11.13

A significant factor in determining the amount of Business Rates collected are the Business
Rate reliefs offered by the Government as incentives. As these are mandatory reliefs
Government will compensate Councils for the lost revenue through Section 31 grants.
Overall the Council’s estimate of retained receipts from Business Rates in 2019/20 is
£26.712m. In addition Section 31 grants totalling £3.1m are expected.

11.14

Where there are differences between planned and actual business rate receipts, after
adjusting for other items such as providing for the likely future cost of appeals, this gives rise
to a surplus or deficit on the Collection Fund. In 2019/20 a surplus has been estimated at
£0.580m which has been included in the plans. It is still prudent to not include any assumed
surplus’ beyond 2019/20 as uncertainty still exists as a result of historic appeals and impact
of appeals in the future.
Council Tax

11.15

In recognition of the pressures facing local authorities in respect of growing demands for
adult social care services and the support this provides to the NHS, the Adult Social Care
Precept on council tax was introduced in 2016/17 where local authorities were allowed to
increase council tax by an additional 2.0% (i.e. above any otherwise permitted amount) each
year of the 4 year period 2016/17 to 2019/20. From 2017/18 this was amended to allow
flexibility around the remaining 3 years so that it may be raised by up to 3% in any one year
(except the third year) as long as the total additional rise does not exceed the expected 6%
to 2019/20. Sutton has utilised the precept of 2% in each of the previous 3 years and
proposes to include this for the final year in 2019/20.

11.16

In the provisional local government finance settlement of December 2017, Government
confirmed an increase in the threshold for the general element of the council tax by 1% to 3%
without the need for a local referendum. In the 2018 Autumn Statement, the Government
confirmed this policy would continue to be available for local authorities for 2019/20.

11.17

There is a Collection Fund undistributed surplus on Council Tax of which Sutton’s share is
£0.528m, this has been included in the current MTFP for 2019/20.
Grants

11.18

The Brexit funding announced in the Autumn Budget 2018, was confirmed in January 2019 to
include a local authority allocation. Sutton’s recently announced allocation is £0.210m in total
for 2018/19 and 2019/20. Government has stated this will not be the only resources councils
receive to fund Brexit costs and Government will assess and, if appropriate, fund any
potential new burdens arising on councils as part of EU Exit work they are undertaking.
Further announcements are also expected as part of the Final LGFS which will be noted in
the final budget report. It is proposed that the £0.210m is held in reserves until required.

Page 39

Agenda Item 6

11.19

The additional social care funding announced in the Autumn Budget 2018 gave Sutton a total
allocation of £1.997m in 2019/20; £1.260m as Adult Social Care Support Grant and
£0.737m as winter pressures. This total amount is the 3rd lowest allocation in London and
lower than the outer London average allocation of £2.911m. The allocation is for 2019/20
only and therefore not assumed in plans for future years.

11.20

The “Minimum required value of CCG contribution to the Better Care Fund (BCF) pooled
budget” for 2018/19 is £11.824m. The amount in 2019/20 hasn’t been announced yet but the
expectation is that it will be a similar figure. The final contribution to the pooled budget from
the CCG for 2019/20 needs to be agreed between commissioners as part of the BCF budget
discussions (this contribution needs to be at least the minimum required value but it can be
more).

11.21

Sutton’s (Improved) IBCF funding allocation for the period 2017/18 to 2018/20 and
provisional allocation for 2019/20 is shown in the table below. The allocations will require
consultation with the CCG and the Council is proposing to spend it on supporting adult social
care which assists with the overall health and care economy in the Borough.

2017/18
(£m)

2018/19
(£m)

(Provisional)
2019/20
(£m)

IBCF announced in the 2017 Budget

2.4

2.1

1.0

Additional IBCF funds

0.0

0.8

2.2

Total

2.4

2.9

3.2

11.22

The future position about IBCF funding, particularly going forward from 2020/21 after the end
of the current 4 year LGFS is a major risk for the revenue budget. It is anticipated that IBCF
funding is available to offset the adult social care cost pressure in 2019/20 where it meets the
criteria set out by Government. Any alteration to the 2019/20 IBCF allocation from the Final
LGFS announcement will be communicated in the final budget report.

11.23

In January 2017 Government announced that it will provide funding to local government to
meet the new burdens costs associated with the Homelessness Reduction Act. London will
receive £30m of the £73m national allocation between 2017/18 and 2019/20 and Sutton’s
allocation is £0.151m in 2017/18, £0.139m in 2018/19 and £0.131m in 2019/20. Local
authorities, including Sutton, have consistently said that these are not sufficient resources to
implement the Act. The recommended budget for Sutton includes associated costs of £0.75m
above the grant funding in the base budget for 2018/19 and is expected to rise in future
years, given the continuing increase in the number of households in temporary
accommodation. The Council is only able to mitigate the cost of the increase in use of
temporary accommodation through:
● continued deployment of Flexible Homelessness Support Grant, and;
● the positive impact of the property acquisition programme which has enabled the Council
to a reduce reliance on more expensive, so-called nightly paid private sector
accommodation.

Agenda Item 6

Page 40

11.24

The Public Health Grant is confirmed at £9.555m for 2019/20, down 2.6% from £9.814m in
2018/19, but in line with expectations. Sutton’s indicative grant allocation for 2020/21 is
unchanged from 2019/20 at £9.555m.

11.25

The provisional LGFS confirmed the New Homes Bonus 0.4% threshold will remain and
payments for homes approved after appeal will not be withheld. As as incentive for delivering
more new homes, Councils that fail to achieve new homes growth above the baseline will not
receive any grant for that year (but will still get their previous year allocation instalment). NHB
will also be phased out completely by 2022/23.
NHB is a complex grant to profile and further work has been completed to refine current
estimates for this grant. This has caused an increase to the estimated grant receipt by £65k
in 2019/20 giving a total sum of £2.001m for the year. This is a reduction from the £2.668m
received in 2018/19.

11.26

Other Grants confirmed for 2019/20 are:
● Housing Benefit Administration Grant at £0.514m (£0.553m in 2018/19);
● Universal Credit Support at £41k (£78k in 2018/19);
● New Burdens funding for Revenue and Benefits at £49k (£52k in 2018/19).
● Council Tax Reduction Scheme Administration Grant at £0.199m (2018/19 £0.204m).
Schools Funding and Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG)

11.27

In relation to schools funding since 2018/19 the schools block funding for each local
authority has been set by calculating notional allocations for each school according to the
National Funding Formula (NFF) and these have then been aggregated and used to
calculate a total allocation for each local authority. Actual individual school budgets from
2018/19 to 2020/21 will be determined by local formulae in consultation with schools and
Schools’ Forums. Local formulae can be different from the notional allocations. Also schools
remain protected by the Minimum Funding Guarantee (MFG) which for Sutton states that no
school can lose by more than 1.5% per pupil in any one year. Sutton moved towards the
implementation of the NFF in 2018/19 and will implement the NFF in full in 2019/20.

11.28

The DSG is split into 4 Blocks; Schools, Central School Services, Early Years, and High
Needs. In 2019/20 the Schools Block is allocated using units of per pupil funding which for
Sutton primary is £4,104 (up from £4,082 (0.54%) in 2018/19) and secondary is £5,141 (up
from £5,018 (2.45%) in 2018/19) plus historic based spend for premises and mobility and
growth funding. From 2019/20 a formulaic approach to allocating growth funding to local
authorites has been introduced to ensure fair and consistent distribution. Growth allocations
for 2019/20 will be based on pupil data from the October 2018 Census with growth factors of
£1,370 per primary pupil and £2,050 for each secondary pupil. In addition Sutton has been
allocated £65k for the new free school, Harris Academy, that opened in September 2018.

11.29

The Central School Services Block (CSSB) is allocated on a per pupil rate for ongoing
functions such as schools admissions, copyright licences and the Central Provision, which
funds ‘retained duties’ of local authorities in respect of pupils in all schools (maintained and
academies), and also previously agreed historic functions.

Page 41

11.30

Agenda Item 6

A provisional allocation for the Schools Block for Sutton in 2019/20 is £153.252m (including
funding for academies) and was ring-fenced for mainstream provision from 2018/19.
However there are local budget flexibility arrangements which allows the Schools Forum to
agree up to 0.5% of their Schools Block (circa £0.766m for 2019/20) to be transferred to
another Block. The Forum has agreed a 0.5% transfer to the High Needs Block in 2019/20.
However a recent announcement of additional high needs funding of £0.506m for 2018/19
and 2019/20 has led to a review of the School Block transfer for 2019/20. It is proposed to
reduce the £0.766m agreed by the additional high needs allocation of £0.506m and a net
figure of £0.260m be transferred. Allocations are also detailed in the table:
DSG
Schools Block

Central School Services
Academy Recoupment

2018/19 2019/20
£m
£m
147.3

1.8
(90.4)

Comments

153.3 Includes £4.1m growth in pupil numbers and
unit funding and funding for growing schools of
£0.700m.
1.8
(104.5) Increased number of academy conversions.

Net Schools Block

58.7

50.6

High Needs Block

36.7

38.6 Includes increase in HN NFF allocation
(£0.730m), pupil numbers (£0.182m),
import/export adjustment (£0.492m) and
additional funding (£0.506m).

High Needs Recoupment

(5.0)

(5.3)

Net High Needs

31.7

33.3

Early Years Block

14.9

14.3 Funding based on January 2018 Early Years
Census data.

Total after Recoupment

105.3

98.2

11.31

The draft DSG budget for 2019/20 will be taken to the Schools Forum for approval on 12
February 2019 and the budget notified to schools at the end of February 2019.

11.32

Pupil Premium is an additional grant. The rates for 2019/20 have been maintained at their
current rates i.e. £1,320 for Primary pupils and £935 for Secondary pupils eligible for Free
School Meals (FSM). The rate for Pupil Premium plus for looked after children and children
who have been adopted from care or who have left care under a special guardianship order
or certain other orders will increase to £2,300 per pupil. There is also a service premium of
£300 payable for children of members of the armed forces recorded as Ever 6 service
children. The grant is paid quarterly in arrears with the first allocation in June 2019 which is
then passed on to individual schools.

Agenda Item 6

Page 42

Other
11.33

The London Councils Grants Committee considered proposals for expenditure in 2019/20
at its meeting on 21 November 2018. The Leaders’ Committee agreed a budget at its
meeting on 4 December 2018. The financial year 2019/20 represents the third year of the 4
year programme of commissions agreed by the Grants Committee under Section 48 of the
Local Government Act 1985, as recommended by the Grants Committee and approved by
the Leaders’ Committee in March 2016. The overall level of base borough contributions to
the Scheme that is recommended for 2019/20 is £6.668m, which is the same as the current
year. This will commit the Council to an annual contribution to London Councils of £0.154m
which is already within the base budget for Customers, Commissioning and Governance.

12.

Revenue Budget
Overall General Fund Budget Position 2019/20

12.1

The proposals set out in this report deliver a balanced budget for 2019/20 with net
expenditure of £144.178m as set out in Appendix B.
Inflation and Pay

12.2

In previous years MTFPs 2% has been provided for price inflation on expenditure items
(excluding salaries) and 2% on income. Since these estimates were put forward the Office for
National Statistics has released a further inflation report showing that CPI fell in November
18 to 2.3%, the lowest level seen since March 2017. It is too early to tell whether this is
indicative of lower long term forecasts, but CPI has been falling over the past 12 months
largely as a result of lower petrol prices and lower costs in recreational and cultural goods
and services.

12.3

Inflation requirements across the Council have been reassessed across most areas
(excluding salaries) bearing in mind the potential for inflation in 2019/20 to be lower than has
been seen in 2018/19. It is proposed that in detailed budgets some areas receive a lower
level of inflation than originally assumed and that the funds released are used to help offset
the overall budget gap and impact on reserves. Inflation therefore allocated to all travel and
goods and services budgets is proposed to be set at 1% rather than 2% (for example; car
allowances, travel expenses, office stationery and equipment). These areas should have
seen low level reductions in spend over the past 8 years as staffing numbers across the
Council has also reduced, meaning they are likely to be manageable with a 1% increase
rather than 2%.

12.4

This proposal would not impact budgets for pay, income, premises costs, third party or
contract costs which would be set as follows;
● income budgets uplift of 2.0%;
● pay inflation of 2.9% in 2019/20 and 2020/21,and;
● pay inflation of 2.0% in 2021/22 and 2022/23.

12.5

The above changes result in a net annual inflation provision of £4.278m in 2019/20 which
reduces slightly in the 3 later years.

Page 43

Agenda Item 6

12.6

The National Employers for Local Government Service made a final pay offer covering the
period 1 April 2018 to 31 March 2020. The pay offer for both 2018/19 and 2019/20 included
higher increase to the lower pay points to close significant gap with National Living Wage and
applies flat rate increase of 2.0% for those above a certain spinal point. The pay offer for
2019/20 increases the paybill by 2.9% as detailed above and was included in the plans in last
year’s budget process. An additional £77k has been factored in during the 2019/20 process
as a result of the detailed implications if implementing this change and associated grade and
pay scale adjustments.

12.7

The voluntary London Living Wage (LLW) has recently been increased for 2018/19 by 3.4%
to £10.553, and the Council has previously decided to adopt the LLW for employees and
long-term agency staff. However, the changes to pay structures arising from the
implementation of the People Plan already ensure that nearly all staff will be paid above this
level. The rising LLW also has an effect on the contractually guaranteed unit costs for
domiciliary care which is covered later in this section.

12.8

Under the Localism Act the Council is required to publish a pay policy statement annually.
Council approved the existing pay policy statement in March 2018. The proposed revised
policy is attached at Appendix D. This has been amended to reflect latest guidance and
legislative requirements. Minor amendments and updates have been made to the Policy with
confirmation that the Council has implemented IR35. It is recommended that the revised
policy is approved for publication by Full Council on 25 February 2019 and will meet the Act’s
requirement for 2019/20.
Fees and Charges

12.9

In relation to fees and charges on discretionary services the Council’s policy is to set these at
a level to recover full cost of providing that service, except where there is an explicit decision
to subsidise a service to achieve a specific policy objective. The justification for any subsidy
should be kept under review in the light of changing circumstances and the achievement of
outcomes. Where services are being provided on a commercial basis pricing will be based on
market levels, which may result in surpluses subject to any legal constraints relating to the
service. This approach may deliver additional income over and above the inflation
assumptions detailed above and this would contribute towards meeting future savings
targets.
Growth/ Cost Pressures

12.10

3

The Council’s budget continues to come under pressure from increased demand in key
service areas, market forces and price increases, and new burdens from Government
legislation. Whilst actions are always taken to try and minimise the impact of arising
pressures, sometimes however provision still has to be made in the base budget in future
years. Budget increases proposed due to growth and cost pressures for 2019/20 are
£5.970m and are listed in detail in Appendix E.

h ps://www.livingwage.org.uk/calcula on

Agenda Item 6

12.11

Page 44

Material items of growth cost pressure above £0.250m are also listed below.
Service Area / Growth Item

12.12

£m

Adults - domiciliary care pressures.

1.252

Leaving Care Service - base issue.

1.012

Contingency against increase in demand for care arising from demographic
pressures, clients transitioning from Children's Social Care, or increases in the
complexity of care needs.

1.000

Environmental Services Contract.

0.500

Rental income from commercial property holdings.

0.539

Leaving Care Service - increase in the number of Unaccompanied Asylum
Seeking Children (UASC).

0.402

There are also growth items included in the £5.970m total which are investment led in order
to improve services and to meet policy objectives. The key areas are ● One off growth of £0.175m for two years in Commissioning for resources required to
support development of new policy priorities in relation to Children's Commissioning:
development of an Ambitious for Sutton's Children Strategy, support for Public Health to
recommission Children's Community Health Services and delivery of commissioning
elements of SEND WSOA following critical Ofsted.
● £36k has been built in the MTFP for necessary capacity to continue to deliver Emergency

Planning , Business Continuity Management and Event Safety, whilst supporting the
implementation of standardisation project plans and procedures.
● £50k has been built in the MTFP to support to all care leavers up to the age of 25. Other
large growth items specifically for vulnerable persons are also mentioned in the table in
paragraph 12.11 (domiciliary care pressures, leaving care and UASC).
Risks
12.13

The successful identification and management of risks is a key element in business and
financial planning and in the delivery of those plans. This is done through the Risk
Management Strategy, the Corporate Risk Register and Directorate Risk Registers. These
are reviewed regularly as part of the Council’s financial and performance management
framework, with the Corporate Risk Register reviewed quarterly by Strategy and Resources
Committee. The consideration of key risks through the commissioning and financial planning
process and the level of reserves are an important part of determining how well placed the
Council is in being able to deal with those risks. The forward plan continues to show a very
challenging position for 2019/20 and later years.

Page 45

12.14

Agenda Item 6

The principal financial risks are set out below:
● Revenue grant funding. Government has provisionally confirmed allocations within the
final year of the 4 year LGFS with little change. Funding for 2020/21 and beyond, with fair
funding being reviewed, devolution of Business Rates, the BCF period ending, and no
iBCF funding confirmed, creates considerable uncertainty in the medium term.
● Part of Sutton’s share of the London Business Rates Pool is proposed to be used to
close the gap on the capital programme. Also, additional parts of this Pool, plus HRA
capital receipts, and some borrowing, will be used to create a £5m regeneration/ land
assembly fund. This borrowing is likely to cost approx £50k per annum and would need to
be met from within the existing budget for capital financing costs alongside any other in
year external borrowing requirements.
● Deliverability risks exist for the People Directorate savings. Adults and Children
services have and extensive range number of statutory services. Sutton Council (in
common with other councils) have protected these budgets where possible and spends a
higher proportion of the total budget in these services. In addition to that, demand
increases in both the volume and complexity of people’s needs (population growth, more
children surviving into adulthood with increasingly high levels of need, people living longer
with higher levels of need, etc) make more risky to achieve cashable savings from the
various transformation programmes in the OBCR process. There is also reducing scope
for further efficiency savings.
● Adult social care. Continuing demographic and cost pressures arising from market
changes, Government policy and the need to continue to support the health system. The
estimated effect increases as a result of a retendering exercise of 2 contracts covering
70% of all the commissioned domiciliary care have been included in the growth section,
however, at the time of writing the report only one of the recommissioned contracts had
been confirmed, the assumption being that the other one will be achieved at a similar rate
but a risks exists that, to secure a final rate, the Council would have to pay a higher rate
depending on market conditions. There are also demographic pressures as a result of
higher number of clients we provide care for and higher number of hours per client. The
perecentual increases year on year are difficult to predict, based on past trends and the
current increase in 2018/19, it is assumed that an increase of around 8% of commissioned
hours will materialise in 2019/20. This figure has fluctuated in the past so a risk exists that
the number of hours commissioned next year will be higher.
● Homelessness Reduction Act. As described earlier in this report a significant increase in
locally funded resources was required to meet the new duties set out in the Act. The
housing market continues to be pressurised and the supply of appropriate and affordable
accommodation is a risk to the budget in future years. The roll out of Universal Credit and
government limits on local housing allowance will add further pressure.
● There is a risk of increased volume of UASC from 1 November 2018. The broadening of
the allocation criteria of the Pan London Protocol has accelerated the volume of disparity
with the immediate risk that the remaining authorities will reach thresholds very soon
resulting in the protocol coming to a standstill. At present there is not enough detail to
quantify this issue to include as a cost pressure, therefore it remains listed as a risk at this
time. This risk can be material, at the moment, and based on 32 clients, the gross costs
are £2m, the income the Council receives from the Home Office is £1m, therefore leaving
an approximate net cost to the Council of £1m.

Page 46

Agenda Item 6

● SEND costs including transport. Numbers of children have continued to increase in
recent times and whilst mitigation is planned there are risks that the revised policies and
strategies may not fully deliver the estimated results. Since the introduction of the Children
and Families Act 2014 there has been a 35% increase nationally in the number of
Education Health and Care (EHC) plans as compared with a 1% increase in the eligible
child population. In September 2017, Sutton had 1,561 EHC plans and we now have
1,658 (latest available figures). Recent research show that 88% of London Boroughs are
expecting a deficit on the DSG High Needs Block this year with 100% expected to be in
deficit the following year. Significant work is being done to try to manage this additional
demand and rising costs, but this is not sustainable going forward and is rapidly creating a
financial crisis in some councils. The recent Government announcement of additional high
needs funding (for Sutton this represents £0.506m for 2018/19 and 2019/20) does not go
far enough to provide a sustainable long-term level of funding and there is a risk that, in
common with many councils, Sutton will run into a deficit over the next few years. The
Society of London Treasurers and the Society of County Councils have been lobbying
Government for additional funding in a recent letter to the Secretary of State for
Education.
● Brexit continues to be one of the biggest concerns for the national economy as well as for
local authorities. The following aspects posing uncertainty and risk:
-

-

the national funding gap could increase whilst the exit deal for the UK is being
discussed;
recession or further economical downturn risk due to the weakening pound, also
affecting predictability of inflation levels in 2019;
impact on both the local government workforce and the wider national workforce i.e
construction, tourism and social care providers vulnerable to reductions in the supply of
labour from the EU which in turn could see cost increases, and;
decision making and advisory roles continuing, and ensuring local communities and
local governments can stay involved.

Savings
12.15

Existing savings already built into the current MTFP from the previous years budget setting
process total £7.027m for 2019/20 and £2.321m for 2020/21.

12.16

New and adjusted proposed savings from the current year’s budget setting process total
£1.766m between 2019/20 - 2022/23. These savings are listed in detail in Appendix F and
also summarised below.

Directorate

2019/20
£m

2020/21
£m

2021/22
£m

2022/23
£m

Total

Chief Executives

0.173

0.108

0.000

0.000

0.281

EHR

0.000

0.060

0.000

0.000

0.060

(1.454)

0.902

0.910

0.000

0.358

0.662

0.155

0.250

0.000

1.067

(0.619)

1.225

1.160

0.000

1.766

People
Resources
Total

Page 47

Agenda Item 6

12.17

Whilst some savings in Peoples Directorate have been reprofiled, overall the amount of
savings anticipated has increased. The change is mainly due to reprofiling of childrens
savings in line with the latest detailed implementation plan review of the children’s social care
MTFP savings.

12.18

Further work is continuing to be driven forward using the Outcomes Based Commissioning
review process across the Council to deliver further savings options early in the new financial
year and over the planning period. Savings proposals will need further development and
consultation before implementation. In particular there is a significant budget gap in 2020/21
so early planning for savings options will be vital.
Public Health spending

12.19

Public Health activity is currently funded by a ring-fenced grant. Government has announced
its intention to reduce the funding year on year until 2019/20. The grant allocation for 2019/20
is £9.555m, a reduction of £0.259m (2.6%) compared to 2018/19. The Council’s intention is
to contain expenditure on Public Health within the available grant funding. In order to achieve
this a review of the commitments against the available funding has been carried out to
identify opportunities for savings.

12.20

Baseline commitments against the Public Health budget for 2019/20 are shown in the table
below.
Baseline Public Health spending commitments
Substance Misuse Services
Pregnancy to 19 years Child Health Services
Mental Health, Health checks and Integration
Sexual Health
Children’s early intervention
Health Protection
Staffing and Corporate costs
Total

12.21

2019/20
£m
2.043
3.680
0.297
2.043
0.500
0.183
0.809
9.555

In 2019/20, £0.259m of savings are required to match the grant reduction. Public Health is on
target to make the savings required through commissioning savings with the substance
misuse provider and work with the pan-London Sexual Health Network, and have identified
£70k of savings relating to these contracts in 2019/20. Additional opportunities around
children community services and the partnership work with Health partners have been
identified and will be explored in 2019/20 with the aim to make further efficiencies. A further
saving of £0.120m in relation to the transfer back to Sutton of the Children’s Communities
Team from the Royal Marsden is offset with staffing growth of the same value in 2019/20. It is
currently unknown whether the existing ring-fence arrangement will still be in place in
2020/21 or if it will be removed, but current financial plans assume that the overall level of
funding for Public Health in 2020/21 will be at the same level as for 2019/20.

Page 48

Agenda Item 6

Levies
12.22

The Environment Agency, Lee Valley Regional Park Authority and the London Pensions
Funds Authority raise levies on the Council. The levies are apportioned between relevant
boroughs according to the council tax base of each council. The estimates currently provide
for an increase of 2% on 2018/19 levels on all 3 levies as the actual levy amounts will not be
communicated until late February 2019.
Levying Bodies

Levy
2018/19
£m

Estimated
Levy 2019/20
£m

Environment Agency

0.165

0.168

Lee Valley Regional Park Authority

0.176

0.179

London Pensions Fund Authority

0.255

0.260

Total

0.596

0.607

Use of Reserves and Reserve Balances
12.23

As part of previously approved plans £2.0m of reserves is being used to support the
Council’s funding gap. A further £1.089m is proposed to be used in 2019/20 in order to fully
balance the budget (as detailed in Appendices B and C).

12.24

Councils are required to agree a balanced budget each year whilst still maintaining prudent
level of balances that provides a reserve against possible eventualities and risks that gives
assurance that the future finances of the Council remain on a sound footing. The existing
Council policy is that a general reserve of at least 5% of net General Fund expenditure
(excluding the school’s budget) is necessary to provide a sound minimum level of prudence.
The Council’s external auditors Grant Thornton support this policy.

12.25

The level of General Fund balances are forecast to remain at a reasonably prudent level over
the planning period to the end of 2022/23 at £7.284m, representing 5.04% of the projected
net revenue budget of that year.
Actual
31 March
2018
£m
General Fund
balance

12.26

9.075

Estimated
31 March
2019
£m
7.284

Estimated
31 March
2020
£m
7.284

Estimated
31 March
2021
£m
7.284

Estimated
31 March
2022
£m
7.284

Earmarked reserves not shown above include the Insurance Fund, the redundancy reserve,
the treasury management and capital financing reserve and other reserves to fund specific
investments and planned expenditure in the future. These are detailed in the Council’s
Statement of Accounts each year. Noteable earmarked reserve utilisations are:

Page 49

Agenda Item 6

● The Smarter Council Programme is the Council’s mechanism for delivering savings and
service transformation and since initiation has been funded from reserves. It is expected
that the programme will be completed in 2019/20 and £0.450m per year for 2018/19 and
2019/20 is currently allocated from reserves. In 2020/21 after completion this reserve will
be drawn down to nil.
● As part of the 2016/17 LGFS the Council was awarded transitional funding to ease the
pressure linked to the loss of funding awarded in the 4 year deal. This transitional funding
was £2.676m in total (split payments in 2016/17 and 2017/18). The table below provides
detail on how the funding has been used in the 2 previous financial years, and also
predicted usage as at February 2019, for 2018/19 and 2019/20 (currently with a small
excess of £34k).

Transition Grant Allocations

Actual
Estimated
allocation allocation
2016/17 - 2018/19 2017/18
2019/20
£m
£m

Adult social care review

0.150

0.000

Adult and children social care transformation - implementation

0.130

0.370

Transforming targeted youth services

0.121

0.000

Children’s safeguarding review

0.114

0.000

Capacity to support health and social care integration

0.070

0.000

Revised approach to managing apprenticeships

0.063

0.117

Tackling domestic violence

0.032

1.218

L&D to support new practice model in children’s safeguarding

0.000

0.175

Invest in improvements following the SEND Ofsted inspection

0.000

0.150

Total

0.680

2.030

Council Tax
12.27

As stated previously, the Council has utilised the flexibility of the Adult Social Care Precept in
previous years since its introduction in 2016/17. Taking up the precept has helped to partly
mitigate the cost pressures faced by the Council on adult social care, including costs arising
from changes introduced in the Care Act and other government policy changes.

12.28

It is proposed in this report to recommend to Full Council to increase the Band D Council Tax
in 2019/20 by 2.00% (£26.17 per annum) for the Adult Social Care Social Precept and by a
further 2.99% (£39.12 per annum) for general purposes. This will result in a Band D Council
Tax of £1,373.81, an increase of £65.29 and 4.99% equivalent to £1.26 a week.

Agenda Item 6

Page 50

12.29

The rationale for applying the 2.99% general increase is that the overall financial position
faced by the Council means that every option to reduce the funding gap needs to be carefully
considered. A council tax increase shares the burden of addressing the funding gap across
all Council Tax payers whereas service reductions affect only users of the service. The
Council will still have to face further difficult choices in terms of reducing services in the
future. This 2.99% increase will help to protect key services that have a significant effect on
people’s lives, for example, effective prevention and early intervention that reduce the
likelihood of vulnerable individuals moving into residential care.

12.30

The proposals for council tax will yield an annual sum of £1.917m from the Adult Social Care
Precept and £2.868m from the general increase. The MTFP does not assume increases in
the general element for 2020/21 onwards at present, but this will need to be kept under
review.
Four Year Forecast

12.31

The medium term forecast in Appendices B and C shows that on current assumptions
additional savings of £12.089m in 2020/21, £5.152m in 2021/22 and a further £4.706m in
2022/23 will be required in order to achieve a balanced budget in those years.

12.32

As stated earlier in the report, there is considerable uncertainty in future funding after
2019/20 as the government’s four year settlement ends. The high budget gap arises in
2020/21 partly because of additional funding provided by government in 2019/20 that is
one-off, use of reserves and the collection fund surplus which are also one-off in nature and
the structural deficit from rising costs and reducing Government support. The timetable for
work to identify savings for 2020/21 will need to begin early in 2019, both through OBCR and
the Smarter Council approach, in order to be in a good position to balance the budget for the
following year, particularly given the uncertainty in future years with business rates retention,
Fair Funding review and the Government Spending Review all due in late 2019.

12.33

If Council Tax was increased by 1% each year then that would raise approximately £0.95m a
year. The Council Tax assumption will be reviewed annually by Members as part of future
years' budget planning, based on circumstances at the time.

13.

Housing Revenue Account

13.1

Local authorities that own a housing stock are required to account for their management and
maintenance separately from the General Fund in a ring-fenced Housing Revenue Account
(HRA). As with the General Fund, HRA budget estimates are set annually, but for the
purposes of medium term planning a 3 year projection has been developed with provisional
figures for 2020/21 and 2021/22. The Council has approximately 6,000 properties in its stock.
A 30 year business plan is also produced and reviewed annually.

13.2

HRA income and expenditure budget estimates for 2019/20 are set out in Appendix G1 for
approval. These figures are extracted from the HRA business plan.

13.3

The HRA business plan contains a detailed schedule of factors applied to budgets covering
inflation (based on CPI), rent growth adjustments, inflation on capital works, interest rates
and variations on stock number.

Page 51

Agenda Item 6

13.4

The draft 2019/20 HRA estimates are based on individual dwelling rents reducing by a further
1% in April 2019, as required by Government who have required this since 2016/17. This will
be the final year of the reduction. From 2020/21 authorities will be able to increase rents by
CPI+1%.

13.5

In 2019/20 there are 53 rent charging weeks due to their being 53 Mondays. Universal credit
allowances will remain calculated on a 52 week basis paid over in twelve equal monthly
installments. This will result in the 53rd weeks rental charge not being covered by Universal
credit. This will mean tenants have to pay this additional week rent charge without a
corresponding increase in Universal Credit, which will cause difficulties for some and may
lead to an increase in arrears as a result. This will impact on approximately 1,500 tenants
and the average weekly rent is £104.55.

13.6

Brexit is expected to affect the cost of materials relating to the maintenance and construction
of properties.As part of the current review of the HRA business plan SHP will be looking to
increase the inflation factors used to incorporate the increase in costs.

13.7

Appendix G2 shows the expected year on year HRA budget changes to 2021/22. Notably
these include the impact of the mandatory 1% reduction in rents in 2019/20 only, the effect of
stock losses due to right to buy sales and an increase in the level of revenue funding that is
being used to support the property acquisition programme within the HRA capital
programme.

13.8

There is a significant reduction in revenue contribution to capital costs. In 2018/19 there was
a one off redirection of resource into the new builds programme of £3.744m and this is not
required going forwards, meaning the budget can be reduced in 2019/20.

13.9

Appendix G2 shows a £0.295m reduction from 2018/19 in income for service charges and
non dwelling rents. This is due to the increase in charges to leaseholders for the remedical
fire works during 2018/19 that were of a one off nature and will therefore not be present in
2019/20 resulting in a reduction of income.

13.10

The HRA balance at the end of 2018/19 at £2.952m is forecast to be £0.796m higher than
originally planned. This is mainly because of a increased rental income from acquired
properties and leaseholder recharges. In order to maintain HRA balances at a prudent level,
judged to be a minimum 5% of gross income, and with the government imposed rent
reductions, it has been necessary to identify savings in HRA expenditure for future years.
Savings proposed are shown at Appendix G3.

13.11

The estimates provide for an end of year balance in 2019/20 of £5.768m amounting to 16%
of turnover, exceeding the minimum requirement by £3.940m.This enables the authority to
accumulate sufficient reserves to repay the self financing debt in line with the original
intentions.

14.

Pension Fund

14.1

The MTFP includes provision for the increase in employer contributions by £0.297m in
2019/20 as per the outcomes from the last triennial valuation. Beyond that, total employer
contributions from the Council into the fund are currently assumed to stay the same pending
the outcome of the next triennial valuation.

Agenda Item 6

Page 52

14.2

At the last triennial valuation as at 31 March 2016, the funding level was assessed as 80%, a
significant increase from the previous 67% in 2013. The next full actuarial valuation is due to
be carried out as at 31 March 2019. The outcome of this review will help to set minimum
employer contributions into the fund for 2020/21, 2021/22 and 2022/23. An interim valuation
undertaken as at 31 March 2018 suggests that the funding level has since improved,
however, this doesn’t necessarily mean that the position will be the same for 2019. If it is
improved further then this will assist in the long term recovery plan of the deficit, but would be
unlikely to have any short term benefit for employers.

15.

Members’ Allowances

15.1

The Local Government and Housing Act 1989 and the Local Authorities (Members’
Allowances) (England) Regulations 2003 require authorities to make a scheme for payment
of allowances to councillors and to review their members’ allowances scheme on an annual
basis, taking into account the advice of the Independent Panel on the Remuneration of
Councillors in London which is organised by London Councils on behalf of all London
authorities and is required to review members’ allowances every 4 years as a minimum. The
panel published their most recent report in January 2018, which recognises the pressures
within local government and the difficult job that councillors are doing, but doesn’t
recommend any structural changes to the scheme and continues to recommend provision for
annual adjustments in accordance with the annual local Government pay settlement.

15.2

The members scheme in Sutton currently pays slightly below the Panel’s recommendations.
This has been reviewed and it is proposed this remains unchanged for 2019/20 subject to the
annual local government pay settlement (which would take effect from 1 April 2019). The full
scheme is attached at Appendix H.

16.

Capital Programme 2019/20 - 2022/23

16.1

Appendix I sets out the Council’s Capital Strategy including the recommended detailed
capital programme for capital investment in the borough the period 2019/20 to 2022/23 of
some £163.362m. The capital strategy is a new requirement under the updated Prudential
Code and Treasury Management Code of Practice (both issued in December 2017).

16.2

The programme is being funded by a mixture of capital receipts from the sale of surplus sites,
grant funding and prudential borrowing. In a continuation of the agreed current policy it is
proposed that any new prudential borrowing for the next 4 years agreed through the capital
programme review is only on an ‘invest to save’ basis whereby either revenue savings or
additional income can pay for the financing costs, unless specifically and formally agreed by
Strategy and Resources Committee.

16.3

The programme reflects the Council’s priorities and objectives with major investment in
housing and school places as well as rolling programmes to improve highways, pavements
and street lighting. The Council is also investing in measures to prevent encampments and
fly tipping, improvement and expansion of existing travellers sites, parks improvements and
continuing a programme to develop the capability to deliver services digitally with expected
consequent improvements in customer service and efficiency.

Page 53

Agenda Item 6

16.4

The assumed level of prudential borrowing to finance the capital programme is £58.259m,
as detailed in Appendix I. This includes General Fund prudential borrowing of £18.057m,
£11.557m of investment in commercial property in line with the Investment Property Portfolio
approach agreed by Members in 2015 and and £6.5m for Temporary Accommodation
Modular Build borrowing. The financing costs for borrowing to fund the purchase of
commercial properties will be funded through additional rental income. Total borrowing also
includes £40.202m undertaken for the HRA for the new build programme (Phase one and
two) and property acquisitions for temporary accommodation. Allowance for the financing
costs for all borrowing approvals has been made in revenue estimates for 2019/20.

16.5

The outline HRA capital programme has been drafted on the basis of the existing Housing
Revenue Account 30 year business plan. This expenditure over the 4 years (2019/20 to
2022/23) is financed by HRA borrowing of £40.202m, right to buy receipts of £11.827m,
Major Repairs Reserve funding of £28.674m, Leaseholders Contributions £0.993m, Grant
£6.5m and revenue contributions of £1.180m. The Housing capital budget includes provision
for the completion of the initial phase for the programme of new council house building and
the start of second phase of new build partially funded by GLA grant together with borrowing
and right to buy receipts totalling £25.126m. The programme also includes a programme of
works to council housing stock of £30.847m. Finally, the Council plans to continue to
undertake further residential property acquisitions to be used for temporary accommodation
totalling £33.403m.

16.6

The outline education capital programme is shown within the capital strategy. This includes
capital provision for works to maintain school buildings funded by the capital maintenance
grant and plans for school expansions. All medium term planned primary expansions are now
complete except for the expansion at Hackbridge Primary School which has been delayed.
The delivery of expansion of secondary and further SEND provision is now largely being
achieved through free school provision at the new Harris Academy at Belmont and plans for
‘Free School 1’ and the proposed ‘Free School 2’ at Rosehill. Funding for school expansions
is largely through the basic need grant allocations from the Department for Education (DfE).
The Council’s final Basic Need allocation of £1.698m is due to be received in 2019/20. The
allocation for 2020/21 has been confirmed as zero. This will result in a balance of unallocated
Basic Need funding of £4.6m available to fund any identified pressures.

17.

Treasury Management Strategy

17.1

The proposed Treasury Management Strategy for 2019/20 is attached at Appendix J. This
includes the annual investment strategy for surplus cash and borrowing including a policy
statement on the minimum revenue provision required to be set aside to repay debt. Under
the prudential code for capital finance, the Council can take a local decision on the level of
borrowing that it considers appropriate to support new capital investment. In taking such a
decision the Council has to determine that any such borrowing is affordable (by reference to
the impact on the revenue budget), prudent and sustainable.

17.2

In order to support any decision on prudential borrowing, local authorities are required to set
a number of prudential indicators before the beginning of the financial year. These range
from the setting of local limits on prudential borrowing to those that relate to treasury
management activities. Monitoring against the indicators will be undertaken throughout the
financial year and quarterly reports submitted to the Audit and Governance Committee. The
indicators may be revised, following approval by Full Council, at any time during the year.

Agenda Item 6

Page 54

18.

Additional detail on Council Tax and Business Rates

18.1

The provisional Business Rate multipliers for 2019/20 are shown below:
● Small Business Multiplier – 49.1p per £ (48.0p in 2018/19).
● Standard Multiplier – 50.4p per £ (49.3p in 2018/19).

18.2

The final policies for the Crossrail Business Rates Supplement in 2019/20 are expected to be
communicated in late January 2019. It is not anticipated however that the revised £70,000
rateable value threshold introduced in April 2017 will change. Further information will be
provided in the final budget report when received.
Tax Base

18.3

The Council Tax Base calculation takes account of the Council Tax Reduction (CTR) scheme
which treats Council Tax support as a discount on the tax bill. The CTR scheme remains
unchanged for 2019/20 as agreed by Housing Economy and Business Committee on 19
June 2018. The Council Tax base has been set by the Strategic Director – Resources, under
delegated authority, on 20 December 2018 at 73,245.7 (Band D equivalents). This compares
to 72,737.1 in 2018/19, an increase of 0.7%.

18.4

In order to meet the Council Tax Requirement with a Tax Base of 73,245.7 (Band D
equivalents), the Sutton Band D Council Tax for 2019/20 is proposed at £1,373.81, an
increase of £65.29 (4.99%) compared to 2017/18 (£1,308.52). The increase comprises
£26.17 (2%) for the Adult Social Care Precept and £39.12 (2.99%) for general purposes. This
amounts to £65.29 for the Sutton element in total and is equivalent to £1.26 a week for a
Band D property.
Greater London Authority Precept

18.5

The GLA precept for 2018/19 was £294.23 at Band D. In the draft consolidated budget
published for consultation purposes on 20 December 2018 the Mayor of London proposed to
increase the precept by £26.28 (8.9%) to £320.51 for 2019/20. This equates to 51p per week.
The Mayor states that this increase will provide additional resources to support a number of
crime fighting and crime prevention measures. This includes funding new officers, specialist
investigators to disrupt gang violence and cutting-edge equipment for officers on the frontline,
such as digital fingerprinting, rapid drug testing, technology to help with digital investigations,
and advanced techniques to combat child sexual exploitation online. There is also a modest
increase that will be allocated directly to the London Fire Brigade. This provisional figure has
been taken into account in the proposals set out in this report. The draft budget is due to be
considered by the GLA on 25 February 2019.

18.6

The proposed GLA precept means that the total Band D Council Tax (including Sutton’s own
requirement and the GLA precept) for 2019/20 will be £1,694.32. This compares with
£1,602.75 in 2018/19, an increase of £91.57 (5.7%) or £1.76 a week for a Band D property.

Page 55

Agenda Item 6

Council Tax Resolution
18.7

The budget requirement for 2019/20 inclusive of the growth and savings proposals and a
draft of the formal Council Tax resolution is at Appendix K. This resolution is based on a
Council Tax increase of 2% for the social care precept and a further 2.99% for general
purposes. It takes into account the provisional precept notification from the GLA. The wording
of the resolution is based on CIPFA Guidance and reflects amendments to the Local
Government Finance Act 1992 enacted in the Localism Act 2011 and the Local Government
Finance Act 2012. The resolution will be finalised and revised as necessary before
consideration by Full Council on 25 February 2018.

19.

Stakeholder Engagement

19.1

Engagement with Sutton’s residents forms an important part of the Council’s budget setting
and commissioning process. This is particularly important given the changes to services
being proposed or implemented as part of the Council’s change programmes.

19.2

This year the Council continued with its Sutton’s Future engagement approach. The first
phase from 2014-16 engaged residents on how we should save make the savings required of
us. The second and current phase, seeks input on how we should save £18m by 2019/20.

19.3

Engagement was undertaken over 2 weeks in February/March 2018 in every ward of the
borough. The aim was to target areas of high footfall and to try to engage the widest range of
people. Follow up engagement was also done over the summer at all libraries.

19.4

The aim of the engagement was to inform residents of the issues face the council and what’s
been achieved so far. Officers listened to both positive and negative feedback and asked
people to complete the survey to register these views and also on which services are
important, voluntary work.

19.5

In addition during 2018/19 the Council’s consultation hub has hosted a number of
consultations in the following areas:
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

19.6

Sutton Parks and Open Spaces Strategy
Sutton’s Future
Council Tax Reduction Scheme
Sustainability Strategy
Parking Strategy
Beddington Park Enforcement Trial
Sutton's Statement of Licensing Policy Consultation
Local Implementation Plan Public Consultation
Air Quality Action Plan
Sutton Joint Carers Strategy & Delivery Plan
Sutton Online Residents’ Panel Recruitment
Proposed Highway Improvements
Early Help Strategy
National Funding Formula
Spencer Nursery School

In total there were over 8,800 responses to consultations carried out during 2018/19.

Agenda Item 6

20.

Page 56

Impacts and Implications
Financial

20.1

Financial implications are covered in the report.
Legal

20.2

The Local Government Act 2003 requires the Chief Finance Officer to report to Council as
part of the budget process on the robustness of the estimates and the adequacy of the
proposed financial reserves. The Council is required by the Local Government Finance Act
1992 to make specific estimates of gross revenue expenditure and anticipated income
leading to the setting of the overall budget and Council Tax. The amount of Council Tax must
be sufficient to meet the Council's legal and financial commitments, ensure the proper
discharge of its statutory duties and lead to a balanced budget. The proposed budget and
timetable will meet the Council’s duty to set a balanced budget and Council Tax.

20.3

The Localism Act 2011 provides for a Council Tax referendum to be held if an authority
increases its relevant basic amount of Council Tax in excess of principles determined by the
Secretary of State. The LGFS published in December 2018, announced that a referendum
must be held if Council Tax for general spend is to be increased by 5% or more. Council Tax
for general spending requires a referendum if it rises by 3% or more alongside a maximum
2% Adult Social Care Precept. The setting of the Adult Social Care Precept must not exceed
a rise of 6% over 3 years from 2017/18. As the proposed increases are less than that, the
proposals in the report would not require a referendum.

20.4

In considering the budget for 2019/20, members must consider the ongoing duties under the
Equality Act 2010 to have due regard to the need to eliminate unlawful discrimination,
harassment and victimisation; and advance equality of opportunity between people who
share a protected characteristic and those who do not; and foster good relations between
those who share a protected characteristic and those who do not. Members must consider
how the decisions will contribute to meeting these duties in light of other relevant
circumstances such as economic and practical considerations.

20.5

It is a statutory requirement under the Localism Act 2011 to approve the Pay Policy
Statement on an annual basis.

20.6

The Local Government and Housing Act 1989 and the Local Authorities (Members’
Allowances) (England) Regulations 2003 require authorities to make a scheme for payment
of allowances to councillors and to review their members’ allowances scheme on an annual
basis having regard to the recommendations of an independent remuneration panel.

Page 57

21.

Agenda Item 6

Appendices and Background Documents
Appendix
letter

Title

A

Outcomes Based Commissioning Plan 2019/20

B

Gross Budget Trail

C

Resource Shortfall Tracker

D

Pay Policy Statement 2019/20

E

Growth

F

Savings

G

G1 - HRA Estimates 2019/20
G2 - HRA three year budget forecast 2019-2021
G3 - HRA savings

H

Members’ Allowances Scheme 2019/20

I

I1 - Capital Strategy
I2 - Capital Programme
I3- HRA Stock Improvements 2019/20
I4 - ECOB Programme

J

Treasury Management Strategy 2019/20

K

Council Tax Resolution 2019/20

Background documents
Strategy and Resources Committee of 16th July 2018 - Commissioning and Financial
Planning 19/20 to 21/22 Report (Item 10)

Agenda Item 6

Page 58

Audit Trail
Version

Final

Date: 30 January 2019

Consultation with other officers
Finance

Yes

Victoria Goddard
Alicia Attoe

Legal

Yes

Fiona Thomsen
Tracy Swan

Equality Impact Assessment
required?

No

N/A

APPENDIX A

Page 59

London Borough of Sutton
Outcomes Based Commissioning Plan 2019/20

Agenda Item 6

Outcomes Based Commissioning Plan 2019/20 - Appendix A
Agenda Item 6

Introduction

The Council continues to face unprecedented financial pressures as a result of grant reductions, new (underfunded) burdens from central government and increased
demand for services as a result of demographic pressures. There are a number of areas where there are growing risks to the Council’s ability to meet its statutory
obligations, including Homelessness, SEN provision, Homecare services and services for Looked After Children.
Between 2010/11 and 2018/19 the council has identified and delivered £83.5m of savings to date, with another £11.4m of savings planned over the next three years.
The Council’s previous approach of reviewing and recommissioning on a service by service basis has delivered substantial savings while maintaining services, but it is
time to refine our approach. The Council has adopted its new corporate plan ‘Ambitious for Sutton’ which sets out a clear vision for the kind of place we want Sutton to
be. Our ambitious and exciting plans are underpinned by our shared values and will ensure that Sutton has a reputation as a great place to live, work and raise a
family. Reviewing and re-commissioning services has already resulted in the council being able to meet the challenges that austerity has presented. In order to
continue to be able to address the ongoing reduction in funding and associated budget gap, it is the time for a refined approach that is set out in this plan. This means
looking at a number of service areas together, rather than on a directorate by directorate basis, under five new outcome-based themes.

Page 60
This Outcomes Based commissioning Plan sets out the activity that the Council will undertake during 19/20 to deliver these outcomes. The Plan continues to form an
integral part of the Council’s performance management framework and progress will be monitored through the quarterly Performance and Finance report which is
presented to the Strategy and Resources Committee.

2

Outcomes Based Commissioning Plan 2019/20 - Appendix A

Table of Outcomes, Commissioning Activities and Measures of Success
Lead Outcome

Priority area

Area improvement and renewal schemes,
co-designed with residents and businesses
delivered in key priority areas across the
borough:

1

Being Active
Citizens

The physical
environment is
maintained and
improved for all
residents

3

Being Active
Citizens

The physical
environment is
maintained and
improved for all
residents

Plan

Measure of Success

Quarter to be
completed

Localised plan / programme of activity Q1 - Q4
compiled and agreed

A new area renewal scheme for Rosehill in St
Helier including shopfront and public space
improvements
A new area renewal scheme for Clockhouse
including shopfront and community space
improvements

Plan

Continue the Beddington improvement
programme including major TfL scheme on
Beddington Lane and related local
improvements

Do,Review

Investment in the Boroughs’ heritage and
protect it for future generations, working with
local community groups to:

Plan, Do

Assessment made of possible
interventions

Q1 - Q4

Q1-4
Completion of the TfL Major Scheme
at Beddington and related local
improvements

Deliver our town centre Heritage Action Zone
(HAZ) enhancing and protecting our listed
buildings

Continue the Sutton HAZ projects
successfully in partnership with
Historic England, Successful Sutton
and CADHAS in accordance with the
Delivery Plan

3

Assistant
Director of
Economic
Development
Assistant
Director Housing,
Planning and
Regeneration
Assistant
Director of
Transportation,
HIghways and
Regulatory
Services
Assistant
Director of
Economic
Development
Assistant
Director of
Housing
Assistant
Director of
Wellbeing

Agenda Item 6

Sutton High Street Partnership
Scheme in Conservation Area (PSiCA)
historic buildings renovation
progressed.

Q4

Responsible
Assistant
Director

Page 61

2

4

Current
Key Commissioning Activity (as in Corporate stage(s) in the
Plan)
Commissioni
ng Cycle

Outcomes Based Commissioning Plan 2019/20 - Appendix A

5

Q4

Carshalton Village Conservation Area
Review and Management Plan
scheduled for HEB March 2019 to
agree for consultation
Protect and renovate our historic buildings, by
continuing to bid for Heritage Lottery funds to
maintain and improve our historic buildings

6

Being Active
Citizens

The physical
environment is
maintained and
improved for all
residents

Plan, Do

Continue to regenerate council estates providing Plan, Do
a better environment for current and new
residents,including the 7 potential regeneration
estates named in the Sutton Local Plan
2016-31: Beech Tree Place
Benhill
Chaucer Gardens
Collingwood Estate
Elm Grove
Rosebery Gardens
Sutton Court

Numbers of visitors to Whitehall and
Honeywood museum

Q4

Progress with programme delivery
Q4
including resident engagement and
establishment of residents' steering
groups, procurement of legal and
commercial advisers, options appraisal
and further work on feasibility and
viability

Assistant
Director of
Housing,
Planning and
Regeneration

All options and proposals are subject to
feasibility, viability and resident support.
Continue to reduce litter and fly tipping across
the borough through:
8
Being Active
Citizens

9

The physical
environment is
maintained and
improved for all
residents

Do

Reduction of Litter and Fly-tipping
across the borough

Q4

The effective contract management of the
borough’s street cleaning contract

Delivering a programme of education and
enforcement to encourage people to look after
their local area

Do

4

Increase in Fixed Penalty Notices for
Littering and Fly-tipping

Q4

Page 62

7

Promotion of the ongoing and
completed projects, historic building
grant schemes

Agenda Item 6

Restoration and protection of heritage properties Plan, Do
in Carshalton and Cheam, including a
management plan for each area

Assistant
Director of
Environment &
Community
Safety
Assistant
Director of
Transportation,
HIghways and
Regulatory
Services

Outcomes Based Commissioning Plan 2019/20 - Appendix A
Invest in transport infrastructure across the
borough:
10

Number of new electric vehicle
charging points

Q1-4

Assistant
Director of
Transportation,
Highways and
Regulatory
Services

Plan

Approval of Options paper at March
2019 E&N committee, delivery tbc'd
following committee

Q1-4

Assistant
Director of
Transportation,
Highways and
Regulatory
Services

Undertake detailed consultation on
preferred route

Q2

Undertake review of funding sources
for the tram

Q2

Support TfL in the preparation of a
Transport Works Act Order (TWAO)
submission

Q4

Delivering our electric policy promoting electric
vehicles and providing charging points
Deliver an electric bike scheme to encourage
sustainable travel across the borough

11
Being Active
Citizens

The physical
environment is
maintained and
improved for all
residents

12

Continue to work collaboratively with Transport Plan, Do
for London and London Borough of Merton to
develop the Tramlink extension to Sutton
including a comprehensive public consultation of
the different options for the route of the tram

Being Active
Citizens

The physical
environment is
maintained and
improved for all
residents

Do

New regeneration areas
New housing development
Retail, office and industrial development and
employment opportunities
Infrastructure provision
The protection of green space
Reducing pollution and climate change and
improving transport

Discussion and communication with
Q1-4
delivery partners / investors / Members
/ residents on various options for the
delivery of the Local Plan.

Assistant
Director of
Economic
Development

Assistant
Director of
Economic
Development

Page 63

Implementation of the Local Plan to deliver:

13

Do

Assistant
Director of
Housing,
Planning and
Regeneration

Agenda Item 6

5

Outcomes Based Commissioning Plan 2019/20 - Appendix A

Being Active
Citizens

The physical
environment is
maintained and
improved for all
residents

15

Being Active
Citizens

The physical
environment is
maintained and
improved for all
residents

Morden to Sutton - scheme
consultation, detailed design and
delivery

Better connect the Wandle Trail cycle route

Plan

project incorporated into 3 year LIP
delivery plan

A more cohesive, borough-wide approach to
parking management to enable a more
intelligent approach to enforcement:

Existing phase phase 1 Formal Traffic Management
1 - complete
Order consultation

Morden Sutton - Q1-4

Sutton-Worces
Sutton to Worcester Park - feasibility of ter Park Q1-4 Assistant
Deliver two new Quietways working with TfL and
route alignment
Director of
Sustrans, linking Morden underground station
Sutton to
Transportation,
and Sutton town centre and a second scheme
Worcester
Highways and
from Waddon to Worcester Park
Park - phase 1
Regulatory
- Plan
Services
Q1-2

Phase 1 TMO
Q1-2,

Extensive and ongoing consultation with
residents and business on parking issues and
different options to address issues

Next phase 2 Do

Phase 2 - informal first consultation
Phase 2 Q1-2

Schemes implemented to address parking
issues across the borough

Existing phase Phase 1 scheme delivery subject to
1 - Do
TMO process

Phase 1 delivery Q2-3,

Phase 2 - scheme delivery post
Phase 2 - Plan consultation

Phase 2- Q4

Analyse

Q3

Page 64

16

Morden to
Sutton - Do
Waddon to
Sutton - phase
2 2020/21

Agenda Item 6

14

Implement selective road improvement schemes
to reduce congestion and benefit all road users
across the borough including specific schemes
to:

Assistant
Director of
Transportation,
Highways and
Regulatory
Services

17

Increase the amount and range of activities in
our parks:
18
Being Active
Citizens

The physical
environment is
maintained and
improved for all
residents

Review and develop a Parks and Open Spaces
Strategy

6

Progress Parks and Open Spaces
Strategy review

Assistant
Director of
Environment and
Community
Safety

Outcomes Based Commissioning Plan 2019/20 - Appendix A
Do

19

Work with partner organisations, Friends
Groups and Local Committees to increase
external funding contributions to deliver
improvements to parks

Number of bids submitted and amount Q4
of funding secured

Deliver one of the largest Parkland areas in
London through quality landfill restoration in
Beddington

Plan

Action plan for delivery of Parkland
developed

Q4

20

Maintain parks policing and commitment to
supporting Friends Groups, organised activities
and keeping parks safe and free of anti-social
behaviour

Do

Retention of the Parks Police service

Q4

Support community tree-planting schemes with
the aim of achieving over 2,000 new trees
across the borough:

Do

21

22
Being Active
Citizens

The physical
environment is
maintained and
improved for all
residents

24
Being Active
Citizens

The physical
environment is
maintained and
improved for all
residents

25

Being Active
Citizens

The physical
environment is
maintained and
improved for all
residents

Q4

Sponsorship of new trees
Seek funding for planting through planning and
other funding opportunities

Do

Amount of funding secured

Q4

Develop and embed our new Sustainability
Strategy to:

Plan

Adoption of the new Environment
Sustainability Strategy

Q1 2019

Ensure that sustainability is considered in every
aspect of the council’s work

Continue to seek out opportunities to improve
the sustainability of the borough

Do

Promotion of the Solar Together
project

Q4

Aim to become the top UK borough for
recycling:

Do

Maintain the recycling performance of
Household Recycling

Q4

Management of waste collection, street cleaning
and parks contracts to ensure effective delivery
of the service

7

Assistant
Director of
Environment and
Community
Safety

Assistant
Director of
Environment and
Community
Safety

Agenda Item 6

26

Number of new trees planted

Page 65

23

Reduction of anti-social behaviour
incidents in Parks

Assistant
Director of
Environment and
Community
Safety

Outcomes Based Commissioning Plan 2019/20 - Appendix A

28

29

Being Active
Citizens

The physical
environment is
maintained and
improved for all
residents

Communication campaigns to encourage people Do
to reduce waste and increase the amount they
recycle

Plastic Planet campaign implemented

Q4

Commission and deliver a new Energy
Plan, Do
Recovery Facility on behalf of the South London
Waste Partnership and deliver sustainable
renewable energy via SDEN, our decentralised
energy network.

ERF to be operational

Q1

Deliver and commission Phase 1 of
the SDEN

Q1-2

Undertake feasibility for potential
extensions to SDEN

Q1-4

Improve air and water quality within the borough Do
through the development and implementation of
action plans

Deliver more affordable housing to support the
borough’s needs:

31

Being Active
Citizens

The physical
environment is
maintained and
improved for all
residents

Plan, Do

(i) Deliver Phase 1 of the council new build
programme;
(ii) Develop more homes across a range of
tenures through our council-owned company
Sutton Living Ltd;
(iii) Develop proposals for further phases of
council new build homes

Q4

Reach the recycling target of 70% of
materials at the HRRC

Design and Delivery of Phase 1 of the Q4
SUDS in schools project
Produce, consult and publish the Air
Quality Action Plan

Q1-2

Number of homes (i) with planning
permission (ii) under construction (iii)
completed.

Q4

Assistant
Director of
Environment and
Community
Safety
Assistant
Director of
Economic
Development

Assistant
Director of
Transportation,
Highways and
Regulatory
Services

Progress with development of
Wallington Public Hall and Alexandra
Gardens.
Progress with phase 2 of the council
new build programme following bid for
grant to the GLA

8

Page 66

30

Being Active
Citizens

The physical
environment is
maintained and
improved for all
residents

Successful Implementation of HRRC
Policy Review

Agenda Item 6

27

Keep Household Re-Use and Recycling Centre Do
(HRRC) free for residents and and ensure waste
is managed sustainably and the costs of waste
disposal reduced

Assistant
Director of
Housing,
Planning and
Regeneration

Outcomes Based Commissioning Plan 2019/20 - Appendix A
Directly purchase property to use as temporary
accommodation
32

Do

Support Sutton Housing Partnership to achieve
excellence

SHP’s New Deal Programme
implemented.

Ensure effective Implementation of the
Homelessness Reduction Act

New legislative requirements
implemented and negative financial
and resources impact mitigated.

School places are provided for a rapidly
increasing population through the School
Expansion programme:
33

Do, Review

Progress the delivery of a new secondary
school at Belmont , linking our new school in
Belmont with the Institute for Cancer Research
for great career opportunities

34

Review,Plan

Invest in our
young people to
ensure they have
opportunities to
make the best
start in life

Do, Review

Q1-Q4

There are sufficient school places
planned and commissioned so that all
young people resident in the Borough
that apply for a school place in
September 2019 are reasonably
offered one on national offer day

Q2

Completion and handover of Harris
Academy Sutton on Belmont site

Q2

The use of the High Needs Block will
be reviewed. The High Needs Block
budget planning will better reflect the
needs in the Local Area.

Q4

All placements have agreed reviews
completed in partnership with young
people and parents

Q4

Annual reviews completed with case
officers and / or quality assured by
case officer or an EP

Q4

Assistant
Director of
Education and
SEND (KH)

9

Assistant
Director of
Education and
SEND

Agenda Item 6

More children and young people
Ongoing
educated locally where appropriate,
and increasing from the current 85.1%
to be in line with Outer London
Average of 90.8%

Page 67

Ensure that the Local Offer for those with
Special Educational Needs and/ or Disabilities
(SEND) is improved so that needs are met
locally, wherever possible

Being Active
Citizens

Number of additional homes
purchased.

Outcomes Based Commissioning Plan 2019/20 - Appendix A

36

Being Active
Citizens

Invest in our
young people to
ensure they have
opportunities to
make the best
start in life

Appoint developer partner to deliver up Q4
to 100,000 sqm of commercial
research and development space on
the land aquired by the Council.

Improve partnership working with schools to
provide high quality education across the
borough and to tackle issues encountered by
our young people:

Hold regular multi agency meetings to Q4 2019
discuss young people at risk. Safety
plans captured and shared. Mental
health awareness sessions held with
schools. School nurses provide drop
ins in schools to provide safe place.
Pilot programme involving emotional
and mental health wellbeing
practitioners to be rolled out.

Plan and
deliver

Partnership working to reduce self-harming and
ensure young people have the skills and good
mental health to achieve at school
Plan, Do

Work with local businesses to identify
skill needs and and support their
apprenticeship aspirations

Q1-4

Plan, Do

Pilot scheme designed and approved
by stakeholders. Plan for
implementation in development

Q4

Assistant
Director of
Economic
Development

Do

Ensure a proportionate level of
referrals and starts on programme for
LBS residents

Q4

Assistant
Director of
Economic
Development

Plan, Do

No. of young people in Supported
Q4
Internships and progressing in to work
or apprenticeships

Assistant
Director of
Economic
Development

37
Work to ensure all our young people are in
education, work or training

38
Being Active
Citizens
39

40

Develop a Young Entrepreneurs Scheme
Invest in our
young people to
ensure they have
opportunities to
Monitor the South London Partnership Health
make the best
and Work programme and ensure coordination
start in life
with local employment support programmes
Ensure that young people with SEND have
supported employment and apprenticeship
opportunities that prepare them for adulthood

10

Assistant
Director of
Education and
SEND

Assistant
Director of
Education and
SEND

Page 68

Deliver more employment opportunities and
apprenticeships, particularly for Sutton’s young
people, by attracting new businesses into the
borough:

Assistant
Director of
Economic
Development

Agenda Item 6

35

Encourage a university campus in the borough Plan
with the support of the Institute of Cancer
Research (a constituent college of the University
of London), explore options for student
accommodation and an expanded academic
offer on site

Outcomes Based Commissioning Plan 2019/20 - Appendix A
Develop Apprenticeship Schemes specifically
linked to local businesses

Scheme developed and approved with Q4
clear links to local business.

Plan, Do

Being Active
Citizens

Invest in our
Improve opportunities for looked after children,
young people to
providing more apprenticeship places for care
ensure they have leavers.
opportunities to
make the best
start in life

No. of YP applied for apprenticeships Q3
(breakdown across industry).
No. of YP appointed in apprenticeship
roles.
Increase in No. of YP employed by the
council (baseline of 2 in 2018/19).

Do

Being Active
Citizens

Invest in our
Use our enhanced library service to grow the
young people to
readers of the future and narrow the digital
ensure they have divide
opportunities to
make the best
start in life

Numbers of visitors and feedback
Q4
gathered, from library events, including
the Summer Reading Challenge

Being Active
Citizens

Invest in our
young people to
ensure they have
opportunities to
make the best
start in life

Take a whole family approach to addressing
Review
issues for young people, and embed the Family
Group Conference service to empower families
to find their own solutions to emerging
problems.

Number of FGC
Number of FGC that prevented
escalation to statutory services
Feedback from users informs future
planning

Being Active
Citizens

Residents have
access to and
take up good
quality
employment
opportunities
within the
Borough

Work with the Institute of Cancer Research, The Plan, do,
Royal Marsden and Epsom and St Helier NHS review
Trust to deliver world-class, research-led cancer
treatment, with significant benefits for the local
and wider London economy.

Appoint developer partner to deliver up Q4
to 100,000 sqm of commercial
research and development space on
the land acquired by the Council.

Ensure a vibrant town centre through a phased
strategy for delivery of Sutton Town Centre
Master Plan:

Develop indicative scheme for the
Civic Centre site to provide focus for
the Sutton Town Centre masterplan
and enable procurement of developer
partner

41

42

43

44

45

Being Active
Citizens

Improve the Sutton High Street with new
markets, improved facilities and exciting
temporary arts events

Utilise Council assets to deliver
workspace and leisure opportunities

11

Assistant
Director of
People &
Organisation
Development

Assistant
Director of
Wellbeing

Assistant
Director of
Children's Social
Care &
Safeguarding

Assistant
Director of
Economic
Development

Q4
Assistant
Director of
Economic
Development
Assistant
Director of
Wellbeing

Agenda Item 6

46

Residents have
access to and
take up good
quality
employment
opportunities
within the
Borough

Plan,

Q4

Assistant
Director of
People &
Organisation
Development

Page 69

Plan

Outcomes Based Commissioning Plan 2019/20 - Appendix A

48

49

51

52

Promotion of cultural events and
number of opportunities for street and
pop-up arts events.

Q4

Provide support packages for small businesses N/A
and entrepreneurs and ensuring a skilled local
workforce through our Skills Match programme.

COMPLETED.

N/A

Being Active
Citizens

Residents have
access to and
take up good
quality
employment
opportunities
within the
Borough

Being Active
Citizens

Residents feel
Continue to deliver the local time banking
less socially
scheme, Sutton Giving, to actively encourage
isolated and have people to give their time and skills.
access to, and
take up,
volunteering
activities

Recommissioning of VCSE
Infrastructure Support contract
Meet targets for volunteering within
that contract
Agreement with Sutton Plan partners
over next steps for Sutton Plan
partnerships and projects

Q4

Being Active
Citizens

Residents feel
Strengthen partnership relationships across the Do
less socially
borough, including with community groups, the
isolated and have voluntary sector and the wider public sector.
access to, and
take up,
volunteering
activities
Do, Review

Recommissioning of carers contract

Q4

Being Active
Citizens

Residents feel
Ensure there is accessible and good quality
less socially
support for carers across the borough.
isolated and have
access to, and
take up,
volunteering
activities

Do, Review

Being Active
Citizens

Residents feel
less socially
isolated and have
access to, and
take up,
volunteering
activities

Do

The skills match programme finished

Assistant
Director of
Economic
Development

Time and skills given during the course Q4
of the programme

Assistant
Director of
Customers
Commissioning
and Governance

Page 70

50

Improve the marketing of current programme of TBC
activities within the town centre

Agenda Item 6

47

Assistant
Director of
Customers
Commissioning
and Governance

Assistant
Director of
Customers
Commissioning
and Governance

Develop community resilience models which
enable the third sector, carers and local
communities to promote arrangements which
meet local needs and reduce the need for
statutory services

12

Delivery of community cohesion
project as part of Rosehill area
renewal

Q3
Assistant
Director of
Customers
Commissioning
and Governance

Outcomes Based Commissioning Plan 2019/20 - Appendix A

53

54

Being Active
Citizens

Residents feel
Provide a high quality modern library service:
less socially
isolated and have Deliver a cultural hub for Sutton and a new
access to, and
gallery space in Sutton library
take up,
volunteering
activities

Making Informed
Choices

Wide range of
accessible
sources of
information and
advice available
at the right time

Do

Making Informed
Choices

Improve council customer services, by reviewing Plan, Do
how local people contact the council and how
their requests for services are handled. Our
approach will encourage people to do more for
themselves and each other - making the most of
resources available in the community

Further development of shared
Q2
Customer services, procurement and
implementation of new digital platform

Develop Information and Advice services that
Do, Review
help local people stay well and lead full lives, as
their circumstances change:

Pilot new approaches for the delivery
of Information and Advice services to
inform the Making Informed Choices
review

Integrate the information and advice we provide Plan
with other agencies so that information and
advice is joined-up
Simplify access to Information and Advice
services so that local people can easily access
the information they need, when they need it

58

Integrate the information and advice we provide
with other agencies so that information and
advice is joined-up

59

Making Informed
Choices

13

Do

Review of all services that contribute
Q3
to residents making informed choices
with a view to ensuring that residents
can access the information and advice
they require
Development of a new commissioning
strategy to deliver the outcomes
Delivery of SHC Preventative Business
Case with CCG
Accessible Local Offer for young
people leaving care
Improved and co-produced Local Offer
website for Children and Young People
with SEND.

Assistant
Director of
Customers
Commissioning
and Governance

Q4
Assistant
Director of
Education and
SEND

Agenda Item 6

Ensure that all families in the borough have
equal opportunities through access to good
Information, Advice and Support Services, with
an improved and co-produced Local Offer
website for Children and Young People with
SEND.

Assistant
Director of
Customers
Commissioning
and Governance

Q4

Simplify access to Information and Advice
services so that local people can easily access
the information they need, when they need it

57

Wide range of
accessible
sources of
information and
advice available
at the right time

Assistant
Director of
Wellbeing

Page 71

56

Q4

Number of exhibitions and events.
Numbers attending events. Good
satisfaction ratings.

55
Wide range of
accessible
sources of
information and
advice available
at the right time

COMPLETED

Outcomes Based Commissioning Plan 2019/20 - Appendix A

61

Making Informed
Choices

Making Informed
Choices

Residents can
make
well-informed
choices for
sustained change

Do

Work with schools to deliver and promote
healthy living habits in young people:

Analyse

64

Making Informed
Choices

Agreed plan in place with partners for
developing school-wide approach to
promotion of healthy lifestyles

Q1

Agreed plan in place for developing
and enhancing the Life Centre.

Q3

Director of Public
Health

Deliver healthy eating programmes
Tackle obesity and mental health issues
Encourage more Sutton schools to adopt the
Daily Mile programme
Analyse

Residents can
make
Enhance the life skills tours provided to schools
well-informed
Enable additional interactive workshops and
choices for
schools learning materials
sustained change
Enhance the Life Centre’s function as a
community facility and first class library
Leisure services meet the needs of Sutton
residents, enhance the services provided by
other providers, and increase health and
wellbeing:

63

Assistant
Director of
Customers
Commissioning
and Governance

Assistant
Director of
Wellbeing

Analyse

Agree plans to develop more
opportunities to keep older residents
active and healthy

Q4

Page 72

Making Informed
Choices

Q4

Assistant
Director of
Environment and
Community
Safety

Maintain the Life Centre as a place promoting
public protection and fire safety:

62

Review of Local Committees.
Integration of Communications,
Engagement and Insight function
following the creation of the new
Commissioning Unit

Agenda Item 6

60

Wide range of
accessible
sources of
information and
advice available
at the right time

Create opportunities for meaningful resident
involvement in decision making across the
council through effective community
engagement, reviewing the role of Local
Committees

Assistant
Director of
Wellbeing
Assistant
Director of Adult
Social Care

Offer our older residents more opportunities to
Residents can
keep active and healthy
make
well-informed
Review our Leisure services
choices for
sustained change

Review

14

Contract monitor leisure provider to
Q4
ensure there is provision for all Sutton
residents

Assistant
Director of
Wellbeing

Outcomes Based Commissioning Plan 2019/20 - Appendix A
Build on the success of Sutton Hello and the
Plan
Wallington Community Wellbeing Group to work
with community groups to roll out similar
schemes across the borough

Provide a range of community
Q4
prevention services. Work with
Community Action Sutton to build local
infrastructure to support similar
community schemes.

Making Informed
Choices

Residents can
Work with the CCG to embed social prescribing Plan
make
within GP practices as part of the next phase of
well-informed
Sutton Health and Care
choices for
sustained change

An agreed pilot in place across at least Q2
one GP locality

Do

Making Informed
Choices

Residents can
Deliver the Better Contacts project in
make
partnership with London Fire Brigade
well-informed
choices for
sustained change

Continue to monitor referrals made
Q4
and provide support.
Evaluation of impact and consider how
it could be extended to other similar
services

Become the first borough recognised as an
Age-Friendly Borough by Age UK and continue
to develop our status as a Dementia-friendly
borough.

Do

Living Well
Independently

Improve the
resilience of
residents and
communities
so they can live
full and
independent lives

Resources and personnel agreed
Initial engagement and consultation
with stakeholders completed
Sutton specific approach and plan
drafted

Continue to integrate Health and Social Care
services by:

Do

65

66

67

69
Living Well
Independently

Maintaining our excellent START rehabilitation
programme

Review

15

Assistant
Director of
Customers
Commissioning
and Governance

Q4
Assistant
Director of
Customers
Commissioning
and Governance

Reactive model moving to BAU,
Q4
development of Preventative and
Proactive models, successful transition
of Children's Community Services to
in-house.

Assistant
Director of Adult
Social Care

% at home after 91 days, % requiring
no ongoing care, no. of users through
the service

Assistant
Director of Adult
Social Care

Q4

Assistant
Director of
Customers
Commissioning
and Governance
Director of Public
Health

Agenda Item 6

70

Continuing the successful delivery of Sutton
Improve the
Health and Care
resilience of
residents and
communities
so they can live
full and
independent lives

Director of Public
Health

Page 73

68

Assistant
Director of
Customers,
Commissioning &
Governance

Outcomes Based Commissioning Plan 2019/20 - Appendix A

71
Living Well
Independently

Improve the
resilience of
residents and
communities
so they can live
full and
independent lives

Plan, Do

Develop business case with SHC
Q3
partners for implementation of satellite
store, equipment and telecare retail
outlet and assessment centre in high
street location.

Enable people to live longer, more fulfilled and
happier lives in the community through the use
of innovative assistive technology to support
individuals and their carers, to both increase
people’s independence and their ability to
self-support

Review use of the Sutton Inclusion Centre

Assistant
Director of Adult
Social Care

Do

Increase utilisation of centre to 60%

Q4

72

74

75

76

Living Well
Independently

Residents are
supported to live
safely and
Independently in
their community

Design support and provision to ensure that
Review/Plan
young people with SEND are prepared for adult
life and become as independent as they can.

Better allocated funding for Local
Q4
provision in Sutton, to ensure that
Children and Young People with SEND
are well supported in preparation for
adult life

Ensure that all eligible adults in need of social
care receive a personalised service, taking a
partnership approach to delivery.

Review

Ensure reviews target met or
exceeded

Q4

Living Well
Independently

Residents are
supported to live
safely and
Independently in
their community

Implement a revised commissioning model for
housing support services in the borough to
make the best use of resources, maximising
people’s independence.

Do

Successful new contract in place by
April 2019.

Q1

Living Well
Independently

Residents are
supported to live
safely and
Independently in
their community

Living Well
Independently

Residents are
supported to live
safely and
Independently in
their community

Reassessment of the way in which statutory
Do, Review
Adults services tasks are currently organised. A
particular focus will be on:
Practice standards
NHS funded Continuing Healthcare
Developing workforce capacity

16

Assistant
Director
Wellbeing
Assistant
Director of
Education and
SEND

Page 74

73

Agenda Item 6

Develop our support for people to remain
independent and in the community for as long
as possible, reducing the use of nursing care
and hospital admissions:

Assistant
Director of Adult
Social Care

Adults services restructured into
Q3
locality teams and practising strengths
based approaches. support integration
with community health services in 3
localities

Assistant
Director of
Housing,
Planning and
Regeneration

Assistant
Director of Adult
Social Care

Outcomes Based Commissioning Plan 2019/20 - Appendix A
Increase mental health support for young
people:

Review

Tackle self-harming and depression in
secondary school students

77
Keeping People
Safe

Work with
partners to ensure
that local
safeguarding
needs are
identified and
Champion and support improved mental health
addressed
services

Review

78

Deliver Crime and Disorder Reduction Strategy: Do, Review

Continue to manage performance of
Q1 & Q2
Tier 2 CAMHS contract (including
self-harm treatment pathway)
Implement resource and staffing
structure changes required as a result
of additional LBS & CCG funding.
Extend current contractual
arrangement and plan for
recommissioning.

Assistant
Director of
Customers
Commissioning
and Governance

Implement resource and staffing
Q1 & Q2
structure changes required as a result
of additional LBS & CCG funding.
Extend current contractual
arrangement and plan for
recommissioning.

Assistant
Director of
Customers
Commissioning
and Governance
Assistant
Director of
Environment and
Community
Safety

Total Criminal Offences Per 1000
Population

Q4

Assistant
Director of
Environment and
Community
Safety

Resident perception of Crime &
Disorder as measured by SENSOR

Q4

Assistant
Director of
Environment and
Community
Safety

Top 10 indicators being identified. Task Q1
& Finish group in place

Assistant
Director of
Children's Social
Care &
Safeguarding

Delivery of Community Safety Strategy 2017-20

79

Maintain or reduce number of criminal offences
per 1,000 population

Do, Review

80

81

17

Agenda Item 6

82

Keeping People
Safe

Work with
Increase % of people whose perception of crime Do, Review
partners to ensure and disorder has improved
that local
safeguarding
needs are
identified and
addressed
Increase number of domestic abuse referrals
Analyse
and increase reporting on domestic abuse
outcomes

Page 75

Delivery against the Community Safety Q4
Delivery Plan

Outcomes Based Commissioning Plan 2019/20 - Appendix A
Review

Repeat victimisation DA incidents to
MARAC (%)

Q4

83

Assistant
Director of
Customers
Commissioning &
Governance
Reduction in the number of repeat ASB victims

% Police Repeat ASB Callers (Open
Code)

Q4

Keeping People
Safe

Strengthen multi-agency working to improve
Work with
outcomes for children, young people and
partners to ensure
families experiencing domestic abuse and
that local
violence.
safeguarding
needs are
identified and
addressed

Plan

Embed Multi-Agency risk assessment Q1
conferences so that effective triaging
can take place regarding new contacts
for domestic abuse
Q4
Increase number of domestic violence
specialist risk assessments on cases
where domestic abuse is a feature

Reduce the number of young people becoming
looked after:
Deliver the edge of care London social impact
bond

86

Keeping People
Safe

Do

Number of residential placements do
not exceed 15

Q4

Number of LAC (non UASC) reduces

Q4

Number of Families engaged
successfully with Positive Family
Partnership

Services are
redesigned and
ensure vulnerable
residents are
supported and
kept safe

18

Assistant
Director of
Environment and
Community
Safety

Page 76

Do, Review

84

85

Assistant
Director of
Environment and
Community
Safety

Agenda Item 6

Reduction in number of repeat domestic abuse
incidents

Assistant
Director of
Children's Social
Care &
Safeguarding

Assistant
Director of
Children's Social
Care &
Safeguarding

Outcomes Based Commissioning Plan 2019/20 - Appendix A
Young people remain with a primary caregiver

Do

87

Reduction in numbers of Looked After Q4
Children
Increase in Special Guardianship
Orders
Increase in Family Group Conferences

Access to high quality intensive interventions
that would not be viable to commission on a
stand-alone basis

88

89

Keeping People
Safe

Services are
Maintain high quality residential and nursing
redesigned and
care establishment provision locally.
ensure vulnerable
residents are
supported and
kept safe

Do

No of Families successfully supported Q4
by Integrated Youth Service and
Positive Family Partnership

Review

80% of Care Homes are rated good or Q4
above by the Care Quality
Commission

Reactive model moving to BAU,
Q4
development of Preventative and
Proactive models, successful transition
of Children's Community Services to
in-house.

Maintain our position as one of the top London
boroughs for hospital discharges

90

Assistant
Director of Adult
Social Care

Page 77

Pursue opportunities for further integration of
Do
adult social care, health services, Clinical
Commissioning Group, Children’s Services and
other partners:

Assistant
Director of
Customers
Commissioning
and Governance

Assistant
Director of
Customers
Commissioning
and Governance
Director Public
Health

Ensure a strong role in local health care

91

Keeping People
Safe

Do

Assistant
Director of Adult
Social Care
Assistant
Director of
Customers
Commissioning
and Governance

Agenda Item 6

Services are
redesigned and
ensure vulnerable
residents are
supported and
kept safe

Reactive model moving to BAU,
Q4
development of Preventative and
Proactive models, successful transition
of Children's Community Services to
in-house.

Director of Public
Health

19

Outcomes Based Commissioning Plan 2019/20 - Appendix A

92

Reduction in EHC Needs Assessment Q4
requests (ie because of the
effectiveness of prior involvement of
professionals)
Timeliness of person-centred advice
for an EHC Needs Assessment

Q4

Assistant
Director of
Education and
SEND

Agenda Item 6

Ensure a strong Local Area Partnership that
Plan, Do
enables the borough to have a comprehensive
Local Offer that promotes high quality outcomes
for children and young people with SEND.

Accuracy and relevance of information
on the Local Offer Website

93

Keeping People
Safe

Develop a revised transition procedure, process Review, Plan,
Services are
and guide for young people and families.
Do
redesigned and
ensure vulnerable
residents are
supported and
kept safe

94
Keeping People
Safe

95

Services are
redesigned and
ensure vulnerable
residents are
supported and
kept safe

Q2

Assistant
Director of
Education and
SEND
Less CiN
Less CP
Increase in EH
Increase in TF successful claims

Q4

Continue to deliver the Troubled Families
agenda which includes tackling issues
associated with poverty, housing, criminal
activity, and education by taking a multi-agency
approach
System review of commissioned services with a Analyse
focus on early help and prevention of statutory
intervention that is aligned to locality teams

20

Assistant
Director of Adult
Social Care

Integrated Children's Services
Q4
following a children's review that brings
together Children's Centres, Early
Help, School Nursing, Health Visiting
and Child and Adolescent Mental
Health Services

Page 78

Redesign Early Help Services across the
Do
council and partners, with jointly commissioned
evidence-based strategies for early intervention:

Refreshed transition procedure in
place and operational, published on
website

Assistant
Director of
Children's Social
Care &
Safeguarding &
Director of public
health

Outcomes Based Commissioning Plan 2019/20 - Appendix A

96

Keeping People
Safe

Services are
redesigned and
ensure vulnerable
residents are
supported and
kept safe

Implement LAC Commissioning Strategy
recommendations to reduce the cost of
placements and improve placement processes.

Do, Review

Increased inhouse foster carers
leading to reduction in the use of
residential placements

Q4
Assistant
Director of
Customers
Commissioning
and Governance

More competitive priced fostering,
residential and semi independent
provision
Implement new process for managing
placement processes

97

Keeping People
Safe

Services are
Build, maintain and restore relationships through Do
redesigned and
implementing a Restorative Practice Model
ensure vulnerable across children’s social care.
residents are
supported and
kept safe

Delivery of agreed Smart Place initiatives

98

Smarter Ways of
Working

Renewed Digital Strategy approved
by members joint with Kingston
Digital platform delivered for priority
agreed services, account feature
available for residents
Providers engaged to introduce
affordable high-speed broadband to
Sutton’s social housing estate

Re-design
services to
increase
efficiency and
utilise digital
opportunities
wherever possible

Internet of Things network
established in the borough and first
use case live. Plan established for
future phases
Deliver and evaluate the Independent
Living pilot to support older people to
live independently

21

Q1
Q2

Q1

Q3

Assistant
Director of
Customers
Commissioning
and Governance

Q2

Q2

Q2

Agenda Item 6

Implement recommendations from
DA Smart Place report (being
delivered to DA Programme Board
Feb ‘19)

Assistant
Director of
Children's Social
Care &
Safeguarding

Page 79

Deliver the second phase of the digital
Plan, Do,
programme through focusing on exploitation of Analyse,
new platforms, a review of high cost and high
Review
volume customer journeys and taking
opportunities to create a ‘smart place’ including:

Enhanced offer of Restorative Practice Q4
that incorporates Trauma informed
practice

Outcomes Based Commissioning Plan 2019/20 - Appendix A

Continued modernisation of library network

Review, Do

Staff floor walking as routine. London
Libraries Consortium go live to new
library management system on 7/3/19

Continue to re-design service areas to deliver
greater efficiencies and new ways of working

Plan

List of prioritised service areas aligned Q3
to the new Digital Platform delivery.

Analyse,
Review

Finalise project and ensure system is
operating as expected.

Q3

Number of visitors visiting planning
public access

Q4

99

Q4

100

101

Smarter Ways of
Working

Number of customers signed up to the Q4
public access

New model for delivery of customer service
function delivered. Including:
102

Smarter Ways of
103 Working
104
105

Review

Shared customer contact centre with Kingston
and new Customer Service team structure

Re-design
services to
increase
Digital platform business case to replace our
efficiency and
legacy CRM
utilise digital
opportunities
wherever possible Launch of Customer Access Strategy

Q4

Do

Implement new digital platform
Q1/Q2
Integrate applications - book it and pay
for it

Do

Deliver Customer Access Strategy

Q4

Continued improvement in channel
shift
Deliver Digital Inclusion project

Q2

New outcomes performance framework with
Review
focus on first time resolution, reducing avoidable
contact and enabling channel shift across
services

22

Implement further phase of shared
customer service in Revenues &
Benefits
Consider other areas of customer
contact to incorporate into shared
service

Q4

Assistant
Director of
Customers
Commissioning
and Governance

Assistant
Director of Digital
and ICT

Page 80

Improve the Planning Service’s customer
Re-design
service and ensure that new ICT platform is
services to
utilised to its full extent
increase
efficiency and
utilise digital
opportunities
wherever possible

Assistant
Director of
Wellbeing

Agenda Item 6

Develop and gain approval for the
future Smart Place approach & work
plan for the Council

Assistant
Director of
Customers
Commissioning
and Governance

Outcomes Based Commissioning Plan 2019/20 - Appendix A

106

107

109

Q1

Smarter Ways of
Working

Deliver an agreed
programme of
transformation
through the
Smarter Council
programme to
make a significant
contribution to the
council’s savings
gap

Effectively manage high value and
Plan, Do,
transformative projects and programmes,
Review
ensuring appropriate scrutiny and challenge
through the Corporate programme management
office:

Deliver all currently agreed projects on Q4
time
Savings delivered
Review current approach and
Q1
implement revised programme
monitoring arrangement

Continue to explore new delivery models for a
Plan
range of services including staff spin outs, local
authority trading companies, shared services
and social enterprises as and when appropriate

Outcomes agreed and plans in
progress - as required (demand led)

Smarter Ways of
Working

Deliver an agreed
programme of
transformation
through the
Smarter Council
programme to
make a significant
contribution to the
council’s savings
gap

Ensure appropriate and consistent governance
of shared services and other new delivery
models, including a review of current
arrangements:

New governance arrangements with
RBK for shared services embedded
Review of governance for other
delivery models: LATCs and major
contracts

Q2

Smarter Ways of
Working

Deliver an agreed
programme of
transformation
through the
Smarter Council
programme to
make a significant
contribution to the
council’s savings
gap

Review completed and any
recommendations implemented

Q2

SLAs with other directorates agreed
Q4
and work plans agreed and delivered
Positive feedback for L&D programme
from CU staff

Deliver all currently agreed projects on time
Savings delivered
New projects to be fully incorporated in current
programme

Review,
Analyse, Plan

23

Assistant
Director of
Customers
Commissioning
and Governance

Q4
Assistant
Director of
Customers
Commissioning
and Governance

Assistant
Director of
Customers
Commissioning
and Governance

Agenda Item 6

Independent review of constitution to ensure our
overall governance remains fit for purpose for
the council’s commissioning and service
Plan, Do
delivery arrangements

Assistant
Director of
Customers
Commissioning
and Governance

Page 81

108

Commissioning Unit structure fully
recruited to and implemented

Smarter Ways of
Working

Re-design
Development of Commissioning Support Unit
Do, Review
services to
with new model for council wide Commissioning
increase
and Contract management.
efficiency and
utilise digital
opportunities
wherever possible

Outcomes Based Commissioning Plan 2019/20 - Appendix A

Smarter Ways of
Working

113

114

Smarter Ways of
Working

Do

Updated OD Strategy
Develop staff so
that they have the Outcomes based commissioning
Do
skills to operate in
a smaller but
more
entrepreneurial
workplace
Effective and ongoing working with community Plan, Do
groups across the borough to understand issues
and help meet challenges faced

Develop staff so
that they have the
skills to operate in
a smaller but
more
entrepreneurial
workplace

Q4

Implement the council’s apprentice levy to
deliver apprentice opportunities across the
authority particularly in those areas that have
historically been difficult to recruit to.

Plan, do

24

Re launch of combined OD and
People Strategy

Q1

Assistant
Director of
People and
Organisational
Development

All appropriate staff in the new
Commissioning Unit are able to
commission an outcomes based
service which contributes to the
Corporate Priorities

Q4

Assistant
Director of
Customers
Commissioning
and Governance

Voluntary Infrastructure Support fund Q4
KPIs delivered
Citizen Commissioners used in OBCR
projects to understand issues

Assistant
Director of
Customers
Commissioning
and Governance

Levy fully utilised, hard to fill posts
recruited to. Model in place.

Page 82

Smarter Ways of
Working

Achieve target to increase income by
£140k

Assistant
Director of Asset
Planning,
Management and
Capital Delivery

Delivery of Organisational Development (OD)
strategy and Workforce Strategy through
Smaller Bigger Different programme, including:

111

112

Review, Do

Agenda Item 6

110

Deliver an agreed Increase income from the investment property
programme of
portfolio through acquisition and adopting a
transformation
more commercial approach.
through the
Smarter Council
programme to
make a significant
contribution to the
council’s savings
gap

Q4
Assistant
Director of
People &
Organisational
Development

Outcomes Based Commissioning Plan 2019/20 - Appendix A
Continue to deliver improved communication,
lobbying and public affairs work across the
organisation and wider partners:
115

Outcome based council wide communications
plan delivered

Smarter Ways of
Working
116

Develop staff so
that they have the
skills to operate in
a smaller but
Opportunity Sutton Public Affairs and Marketing Plan
more
Strategy delivered
entrepreneurial
workplace

117

Smarter Ways of
Working
119
120

Campaign for improved public transport,
including buses, Crossrail and Tram, especially
to help develop the London Cancer Hub (LCH)

N/A

Deliver the Children’s Transformation
Workstream (new operating model and
workforce capability):

Review

Develop staff so Increase staff retention, thereby reducing
that they have the agency and recruitment costs
skills to operate in
a smaller but
more
Increase in multi-disciplinary teams
Assess
entrepreneurial
workplace
Work in an open systemic way with families and Do
partner agencies
Rollout of the Restorative Programme

121

Implement new Adults’ social services operating TBC
model and workforce capability:
Increase staff retention, thereby reducing in
agency staff and recruitment cost

25

Communications and engagement
plans for each OBCR and Sutton's
Future communications campaign
delivered

Q4

Assistant
Director of
Customers
Commissioning
and Governance

Marketing Strategy developed

Q4

Assistant
Director of
Economic
Development

Sutton Link preferred consultation

Q3

Develop position on Metroisation

Q4

Assistant
Director of
Economic
Development

Strengthen the communication and
recruitment campaign for new staff

Q4

Review the financial package re:
remuneration
Reduction in staff vacancy / increase in
retention rate
Child and Adolescent Mental Health
Service integration

Q4

Fewer complaints

Q4

Increase in number of staff completed
3 day course

Q4

Agency costs and usage decline from
current position

TBC

Assistant
Director of
Children's Social
Care &
Safeguarding

Assistant
Director of
People and
Organisational
Development

Agenda Item 6

Smarter Ways of
Working

Develop staff so
that they have the
skills to operate in
a smaller but
more
entrepreneurial
workplace

Do

Review of communications, insight and Q4
engagement functions implemented

Page 83

118

122

Review

Outcomes Based Commissioning Plan 2019/20 - Appendix A
Plan

New programme approach approved
and available for delivery

Q1 19/20

Redesign of Children’s Social Care and
Safeguarding Operating Model:

Review

Increase in Partnership working

Q4

Management information report to be
produced to show comparisons from
2020 to 2019 and previous years

Q4

Review of Transition Points

Q1

123

124

Assistant
Director of
People and
Organisational
Development

Agenda Item 6

Rollout of new Learning & Development
Programme

Implementation of Locality Model for Children’s
Social Care and Safeguarding
Reduce the number of team changes for
children, young people and their families
125
Smarter Ways of
Working

127

Reduction in unsuitable high cost placements

128

Increase in Family Group Conference activity
which correlates to decreases in CIN, CP and
LAC cases

Review

Partnership attendance at
Multi-agency planning meetings
Placements are managed within
allocated budget

26

Analyse

Increase in inhouse foster placements Q4

Do

balance budget on residential spend

Q1

Do

Reduction in Children In Need
Reduction in Child Protection Plans
Reduction in Looked After Children

Q4

Assistant
Director of
Children's Social
Care &
Safeguarding

Page 84

126

Develop staff so
that they have the
skills to operate in
Reduction in statutory work and costly
a smaller but
placements
more
entrepreneurial
workplace

Page 85

Agenda Item 6
Appendix B

MTFP - Gross Budget Trail

Budget brought forward
Changes and Variations
Inflation
Other changes and variations in current year budget process
Other changes and variations in previous year budget process
Investments and Growth
Growth from previous year's budget processes
General provision for demand led growth
Provision for policy led investment - building to £3m pa by 2021/22
Use of growth provisions
Investment and growth identified in current year budget process
Savings
Savings from previous year's budget processes
2019/20 Savings
Grant Funded Expenditure and Funding
Enhanced Better Care Fund expenditure
Expenditure against Adult Social Care Grant
Expenditure against other specific grants
Reserves
Contribution to/ (from) reserves in previous year's budget process
Contribution to/ (from) reserves in current year's budget process

Gross Council Budget Requirement
Less Dedicated Schools Grant
Less other specific grants
Section 31 Grants - compensation for NNDR reliefs etc
Net Council Budget Requirement

2019/20
£'000

2020/21
£'000

2021/22
£'000

2022/23
£'000

277,686)

282,768)

274,473)

273,804)

4,278)
(99)
(7)
4,172)

3,995)
230)
0)
4,225)

3,643)
0)
0)
3,643)

3,716)
0)
0)
3,716)

277)
2,000)
1,000)
(3,000)
5,970)
6,247)

180)
1,000)
1,000)
0)
(154)
2,026)

34)
1,000)
1,000)
0)
(34)
2,000)

0)
1,000)
0)
0)
(20)
980)

(7,027)
619)
(6,408)

(2,321)
(1,225)
(3,546)

0)
(1,160)
(1,160)

0)
0)
0)

1,318)
(894)
(263)
161)

0)
0)
0)
0)

0)
0)
0)
0)

0)
0)
0)
0)

2,000)
(1,089)
911)

0)
1,089)
1,089)

0)
0)
0)

0)
0)
0)

282,769)

286,562)

278,956)

278,500)

(104,859)
(30,554)
(3,178)

(104,859)
(27,212)
(3,178)

(104,859)
(27,069)
(3,178)

(104,859)
(25,988)
(3,178)

144,178)

151,313)

143,850)

144,475)

100,626)
0)
26,712)
15,731)
529)
580)
144,178)

101,307)
1,500)
16,699)
19,718)
0)
0)
139,224)

101,887)
0)
16,699)
20,112)
0)
0)
138,698)

102,556)
0)
16,699)
20,514)
0)
0)
139,769)

0)

12,089)

5,152)

4,706)

2019/20
£
1,373.81)
73,246)
100,625,642)

2020/21
£
1,373.81)
73,742)
101,307,038)

2021/22
£
1,373.81)
74,163)
101,886,429)

2022/23
£
1,373.81)
74,650)
102,555,584)

4.99%
8.93%
5.7%
1.26)
0.51)
1.76)

0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00)
0.00)
0.00)

0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00)
0.00)
0.00)

0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00)
0.00)
0.00)

1,373.81)
320.51)
1,694.32)

1,373.81)
320.51)
1,694.32)

1,373.81)
320.51)
1,694.32)

1,373.81)
320.51)
1,694.32)

Funding
Council Tax
Revenue Support Grant
Retained Business Rates (NNDR)
NNDR Top Up Grant
Collection Fund surplus - Council Tax
Collection Fund surplus - NNDR

Revised Budget Gap as at 11 February 2019

Council tax
Council tax (LB Sutton)
Council tax base (after provision for non-recovery)
Precept
Rate of Council Tax increase (Sutton element including ASC Precept)
GLA rate of Council Tax Increase
Combined Council Tax increase
£ per week increase (Sutton element)
£ per week decrease (GLA element)
£ per week increase (combined)
Sutton
GLA
Total Band D Council Tax

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 87

Agenda Item 6
Appendix C

MTFP - Resource Shortfall Tracker

Budget Gap as at 26 February 2018

2019/20 over
2018/19

2020/21 over
2019/20

2021/22 over
2020/21

2022/23 over
2021/22

Total

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

2,400)

7,411)

0)

0)

9,811)

0)
0)

0)
0)

3,909)
1,000)

3,988)
1,000)

7,897)
2,000)

1,000)
1,000)
(792)
3,608)

0)
1,000)
289)
8,700)

0)
1,000)
938)
6,847)

0)
0)
385)
5,373)

1,000)
3,000)
820)
24,528)

0)
530)
530)

0)
161)
161)

(266)
0)
(266)

(272)
0)
(272)

(538)
691)
153)

131)
(230)
(99)

0)
230)
230)

0)
0)
0)

0)
0)
0)

131)
0)
131)

Investment and Growth
Investment and growth identified in previous year budget process
Use of growth provision
Investment and growth identified in current year budget process
Sub total

0)
(3,000)
5,970)
2,970)

0)
0)
(154)
(154)

34)
0)
(34)
0)

0)
0)
(20)
(20)

34)
(3,000)
5,762)
2,796)

Savings
Adjustment to published savings in 2019/20 budget process
New savings proposals in 2019/20 budget process
Sub total

2,256)
(1,637)
619)

(832)
(393)
(1,225)

(910)
(250)
(1,160)

0)
0)
0)

514)
(2,280)
(1,766)

Estimated Funding Changes
Miscellaneous post July 2018 estimated funding changes
Collection Fund surplus - Council Tax
Collection Fund surplus - NNDR
Additional Social Care Funding - £650m
Allocation of £180m 2018/19 Levy Account Surplus
Sub total

(106)
(529)
(580)
(1,997)
(550)
(3,762)

(250)
529)
580)
1,997)
550)
3,406)

311)
0)
0)
0)
0)
311)

294)
0)
0)
0)
0)
294)

249)
0)
0)
0)
0)
249)

Reserves
Contribution to/ (from) reserves in 2019/20 budget process
Sub total

(1,089)
(1,089)

1,089)
1,089)

0)

0)

0)

0)

0)
0)

Council Tax
2.99% Council Tax increase
Council Tax Base changes
Sub total

(2,868)
91)
(2,777)

(16)
(102)
(118)

(17)
(563)
(580)

0)
(669)
(669)

(2,901)
(1,243)
(4,144)

0)

12,089)

5,152)

4,706)

21,947)

Extend MTFP two years - provision for inflation
Extend MTFP two years - provision for growth
and demand on existing budgets
General additional provision for demand led growth in 2019/20
Policy led investment - building to £3m pa by 2021/22
Estimated funding changes
Budget Gap as at July 2018
Changes and Variations
Inflationary changes
Reduction in Inflation provision estimated as at July 2018
2019/20 adjustment to Provision for Inflation
Sub total
Other Changes and variations
Alterations from recharges from General Fund
HEB and other miscellaneous adjustments (one year)
Sub total

Revised Budget Gap as 11 February 2019

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 89

Agenda Item 6
Appendix D

Pay Policy Statement 2019/20
1.

Introduction

1.1

The Council is committed to transparency of pay, and best value for money to
residents in terms of the pay bill to the workforce and quality of services provided to
residents.
London Borough of Sutton monitors the Council’s benchmark position regularly in
London utilising data sets from London Councils, and in particular the annual chief
officers’ salary survey. This information is used when reviewing pay and grading
structures, in combination with data on turnover, recruitment and retention.

1.2

This pay policy statement sets out the Council’s current position in the labour
market and pay benchmarking, pay ratios, the current pay structure and
arrangements, dealing with data transparency and senior officer termination
payments.

2.

Pay benchmarking

2.1

In terms of the senior pay benchmarks derived from the London Councils database,
the Council is positioned in the mid/lower range for senior pay for the 32 boroughs.
In some cases for the most senior roles the Borough pays the lowest rates in the
whole of London.

2.2

The pay benchmarks are reviewed annually to ensure the Council continues to
provide good value for money and that senior managers are not paid in excess of
local, regional and national labour markets, as appropriate to the job.

3.

Pay ratios and Fair Pay in the Public Sector

3.1

The Council ensures all staff are required to demonstrate they are performing to
appraisal objectives in order to qualify for incremental pay increases.

3.2

The Council makes comparison of the highest paid with the median (recommended
in the Government’s transparency guidelines). The ratio of the Chief Executive’s pay
to median employee is 1:4.5 (December 2018). The Hutton report suggested the
ratio for the FTSE top 250 private sector companies was 1:38.

Agenda Item 6

Page 90
Appendix D

3.3

Mandatory employer transparency reporting regulations on the gender pay gap
were implemented in April 2017. Organisations employing more than 250
employees are required to report their gender pay gap figures annually for 31 March
each year by the following 31 March (for public sector organisations) and publish
the figures and report on the council website. At 31 March 2017 the gender pay gap
was 5.4% in favour of men based on mean hourly rates and -0.4% based on median
hourly rates in favour of women. The mean average gender pay gap of London
Boroughs for the same period was 3.5% in favour of men and the median average
gender pay gap of London Boroughs was 1.2% in favour of men. The gender pay
gap in the UK is estimated to be 17.9% which London Borough of Sutton is well
below
(Source: Office of National Statstics
https://www.ons.gov.uk/employmentandlabourmarket/peopleinwork/earningsandwor
kinghours/bulletins/genderpaygapintheuk/2018)
London Borough of Sutton’s gender pay gap report and action plan is published on
the following link:
https://www.sutton.gov.uk/genderpaygapreport

4.

Current pay structures and arrangements

4.1

From 1 April 2016 the Council grades all NJC posts based on a single Hay job
evaluation scheme throughout.The Council uses pay ranges from:
• The Joint National Council (JNC) for LA Chief Executives, and the JNC for LA
Chief Officers pay agreement arrangements and
• The National Joint Council (NJC) Greater London Provincial Council (GLPC)
Outer London pay agreement.

4.2

Some other employees are paid on nationally determined pay scales such as:
Soulbury, Youth & Community, Teachers and local conditions.

4.3

From 1 April 2016 all NJC employees, Chief Officers and the Chief Executive are
placed on grades with incremental progression on an annual basis. Progression
through the grade is dependent upon the employee’s appraisal outcome taking into
account whether they have met their annual performance objectives, their
behaviours and an assessment of their overall contribution.

Page 91

Agenda Item 6
Appendix D

4.4

Senior Employees receive no performance related pay or bonuses. They receive no
overtime or pay in lieu of leave. From 1 April 2018 they contribute a percentage of
their salary to the local government pension scheme based on their salary band:
Salary Band

%

£45,201 - £61,300

8.5%

£61,301 - £89,400

9.9%

£89,401 - £105,200

10.5%

£105,201 - £157,800

11.4%

Over £157,801

12.5%

Sutton’s employer contribution to the pension fund for all contributing members is
17.2% (not including deficit contributions). In some years the Chief Executive also
receives election expenses of £4k to £5k when general, local or European elections
occur. Annual cost of living increases are determined nationally. Any sums relating
to conference speeches or non-executive directorships of other public bodies are
paid to the Council.
4.5

The Council’s Executive Committee gave approval to the current senior manager
pay and grading structure, including Chief Officers, in March 2008. All chief officer
recruitment is dealt with via the proportionate cross-party Council’s appointments
sub-committee (a sub-committee of full Council) at which the salary package is
considered and approved. These arrangements enable prompt member-level
decision making to meet operational demand.

4.6.

A two year pay deal was agreed by the NJC/GLPC effective from 1 April 2018. As
part of this agreement, from 1 April 2019, a new GLPC pay spine will take effect. As
a result of the assimilation advice, some of the current pay grades in the lower
portion of the pay spine will require minor changes, which do not disadvantage staff
financially to ensure compliance with equal pay requirements. The proposed
changes are currently being reviewed by trade unions and senior management with
a view to implementation from 1 April 2019.

4.7

As at 1 April 2018, a 2 year pay deal of 2% in each year was agreed by the JNC for
Strategic Directors and the Chief Executive. This is a similar percentage increase to
that agreed for officers on the main GLPC pay scales.

4.8

Following the implementation of the Hay based job evaluation scheme and new pay
and grading structure in April 2016 an Equalities Impact Assessment was
completed. The Equalities Impact Assessment of the proposals indicate that there
was no significant potential for adverse impact on any of the equalities groups.

4.9

The Council has adopted the London Living Wage as the minimum rate of pay for its
employees (excluding apprentices).

Page 92

Agenda Item 6

Appendix D
4.10

The Council deducts Income Tax at source for all direct employees, and when it
engages contractors/interims it seeks the fullest assurance that their affairs are
properly managed and will ask them to commit to this as part of the contractual
agreement. The Council implemented the off payroll intermediaries legislation
(commonly known as ‘IR35’) in the public sector with effect from 6 April 2017 as
required.

5.

Transparency arrangements

5.1

Since 2009/10, the Chief Executive’s remuneration, that of the Strategic Directors,
and any officer earning over £100k, have been the subject of a published statement
on the Council’s website. This information will continue to be updated on an annual
basis. Other salary and budget information is published in the annual statement of
accounts, available from the Council’s website.

5.2

The Council publishes via its Internet site:
●

●

●

all senior employee salaries with: names (where required), title, salary band and
information including job descriptions that will cover span of control and
managerial responsibilities
on an annual basis a schedule of all council employees earning £50,000*, or
more, in accordance with the recommended code of practice for data
transparency
structure charts as recommended by the government code of practice for data
transparency

6.

Termination payments

6.1

For Chief Officers, the Council reports to Strategy and Resources Committee all
termination payments and the rationale for such a termination arrangements for
these matters to be approved by members of the Council. These arrangements in
regards to severance payments enable prompt member-level decision making to
meet operational demand.

6.2

The Council will continue to review and publish our policy on the exercise of
discretions under local authority regulations covering compensation for early
termination of employment, redundancy and pension enhancements. We will
consider our policy on the remuneration of chief officers who returned to a local
authority.

6.3

The Government has proposed a cap on termination payments in the public sector
at £95,000, and for the recovery of exit payments in certain circumstances where an
employee subsequently takes up work with another public body. An implementation
date for this legislation is still to be confirmed.

Page 93

Agenda Item 6
Appendix E

2019/20 Growth Proposals
Description
Notes

Leaving Care (LC) The historic base budget position for the LC budget is inadequate
Service - base issue and current spending exceeds budget by approx £1m. In 17/18,
total budget for LC was £1.1m, with total spend of £2.8m, therefore
overspend of £1.7m. £0.7m of the overall budget was spent on
staffing including Social Worker and Personal Advisor posts. £2.1m
spent on direct client expenses including accommodation. In 18/19
budget growth of £0.7m was applied to LC budgets with an
assumption that demand would fall, but the pressure has continued.

2019/20
over
2018/19
£
1,012,000

Leaving Care
Service - increase
in the number of
Unaccompanied
Asylum Seeking
Children (UASC)

The number of UASC clients supported is partly due to the number
of referrals Sutton receives through the Home Office (HO). New
clients are allocated to London boroughs on a rota basis. Sutton
had around an average 20 clients in 17/18 but since April have
received 12 new referrals. 32 is currently the maximum number of
clients that Sutton can support therefore new referrals will only be
received once an existing UASC client reaches the age of 18.
Accommodating and supporting costs an average £1.2k per week,
Sutton can claim some of the direct client costs back from the HO
through the UASC <18 grant (subject to grant criteria being met /
audit). In overall terms the costs are £2m pa, but Home Office
funding is only £1m pa. It is likely that an additional 1.0 FTE Social
Worker will be required to support these additional clients.

402,000

Leaving Care
Service - new
responsibilities
around supporting
Care Leavers aged
21-25

From April 2018 The Children & Social Work Act 2017 introduced a
new statutory duty on local authorities, to provide Personal Advisor
(PA) support to all care leavers up to the age of 25, if they want this
support. The service anticipates that this can be covered with a PA
post that will need to be created in order to support these clients on
an ongoing basis, at a total cost of £50k pa.

50,000

Adults - domiciliary
care pressures

Estimated effect of contractually-guaranteed unit cost increases
linked to rising national living wage plus increases as a result of a
tendering exercise of contracts covering 70% of all the
commissioned domiciliary care, where existing contractors have
withdrawn within the contract period.
Corporate contingency to fund estimated increases in demand for
care arising in 19/20 from demographic pressures, clients
transitioning from Children's Social Care, or increases in the
complexity of care needs. It is anticipated that there will be some
increase in the number of care hours required to be commissioned,
but this is difficult to predict and can be volatile year on year. The
fund will be held corporately until the increased demand is
evidenced.

1,251,500

SEND Transport Traveller and
Alternative
Provision

The number of traveller and alternative provision pupils has
increased by 20 in 18/19 leading to increased costs of providing
travel assistance.These pupils will continue to require support going
forward and the costs cannot be contained within existing budgets.

156,000

Shortfall in
indexation

Indexation for the Sutton contribution to Shared Environmental
Service for highways contracts has been underfunded for 2018/19.

40,000

Contingency
against increase in
demand for care
arising from
demographic
pressures, clients
transitioning from
Children's Social
Care, or increases
in the complexity of
care needs

Shortfall in Income - There is an income expectation of £55k from Sutton Market.
Sutton Market
Currently there are only 8 traders paying approx £10.50 per pitch
per day. Additionally, there are 3 traders, at the top of the High
Street, paying £2,382 per annum (based on a 6 month temporary
trading licence).
Shortfall in income - Historic income target in connection with verification of weights and
weights and
measures. This service is no longer provided.
measures
Parkmap 2019/20
Parkmap software 19/20 license cost as part of the the Shared
license
Environment Service 50% contribution. No growth bid has been
previously made.
Create an additional CMT agreed an additional FTE post would provided for the
FTE post within the necessary capacity to continue to deliver Emergency Planning ,
EP Service
Business Continuity Management and Event Safety, whilst
(Emergency
supporting the implementation of standardisation project plans and
Planning Assistant). procedures
Environmental
Negotiations are ongoing with the contractor and our partners which
Services Contract
are due for completion in the summer of 2019. This is a provisional
amount to cover any changes to the services subject to discussions.

1,000,000

25,000

10,000

20,200

36,000

500,000

2020/21
over
2019/20
£

750,100

2021/22
over
2020/21
£

2022/22
over
2021/22
£

Agenda Item 6

Page 94

Rental income from Three high street retail units are due for lease renewals in 2019 and
commercial
one is empty due to insolvency. Rents for retail units in Sutton have
property holdings
gone down, reflecting the current condition of UK High Street retail,
and this is reflected in the anticipated cost pressure reported
against the Investment Property Portfolio (IPP) in 19/20. The current
projection is based on advice from the council's agents and reflects
both a reduction in the annual rent plus an expectation that the
Council will need to offer rent free periods to existing and new
tenants. There is however, every expectation that the units will be
fully let although the overall rental income, when the free rent
periods work through could be lower. It is anticipated that IPP
income will increase by over £1m in 20/21 and £40k in 21/22 from
rent reviews including out of borough.
Reduction in
Housing Benefit
Income

The council derives an income from the creation and collection of
housing benefit overpayments. Managed migration of the HB
caseload to UC will commence in July 19 and end by March 22.
This will lead to a reduction in HB overpayments (income). With the
residual HB caseload will be pensioners and supported housing,
which are less subject to changes that create large overpayments.
Income will need to be kept under constant review. This is an
adjustment to previous listed cost pressures of £0.150m, £0.100m
and £50k (19/20, 20/21 & 21/22 respectively).

Opposition Group
Leadership
Business Support

The Conservative Group has requested an Opposition Group
Leadership Business Support Officer to more effectively enable the
opposition function to be carried out now they are a larger group
following the elections. This is proposed as 0.6 FTE (£25k).

Transaction Fees Change in EU
legislation

In 2015 EU legislation changed the cap on credit and debit card
interchange fees. The change means that charges are no longer
capped at a flat rate, but instead are calculated on the basis of a %
of the transaction value. This has increased the charges made to
LBS. Although the changes came into effect in the UK in June 2015,
the Council entered into a new banking arrangement at the same
time and as a result had a 2 year period of free banking. This period
has now ended meaning a return to paying interchange fees and
this is at a higher rate than seen previously as a result of the
change in the calculation of the charges.
Rental income from The previous tenant vacated Oct 17. No new tenant has been found
Russettings first
and there are issues as to the suitability of the 1st floor for any
Floor
occupier as there is no disability access. This is the expected
income from rent with no inflationary increase applied.
ICT - increased
contract cost for the
RBK/ LBS use of
Microsoft.

The Council extensively uses Microsoft products in order to deliver
services. The current three year contract comes to an end in
January 2019. Extensive negotiations have been taking place over
the past three months to ensure that the impact to the Council on
the changes to the Microsoft licensing arrangements is minimised.
The current budget for the contract in 18/19 is £0.364m. In 19/20 a
£12k inflation increase has been included to take the budget up to
£0.376m. Currently Digital & IT has a best estimate at what the
future contract cost will be has led to a predicted contract cost of
£0.600m. The new contract cost would require the growth of £0.300
m of growth to be split £0.150m:£0.150m between LBS and RBK.

539,000

-1,053,900

-40,000

150,000

250,000

25,000

53,000

38,000

150,000

Counter Fraud Hub Annual subscription cost for London Counter Fraud Hub, which is
expected to go live in 19/20. This is expected to result in improved
detection of fraud and recovery of losses across a number of
services including council tax and housing rents.

54,400

Wellbeing - Leisure Provision for additional costs anticipated to arise following
contract increases. amendments to the existing contract.

73,200

-20,000

Public Health Staffing

This relates to the expansion of the Public Health team which is now
funded from the delivery of savings from the Children's Services
transition from Royal Marsden and contained within the overall
public health grant.

120,000

CC&G Commissioning
resources for new
policy priorities

One off growth for two years in Commissioning for resources
required to support development of new policy priorities in relation
to Children's Commissioning: development of an Ambitious for
Sutton's Children strategy, support for PH to recommission
Children's Community Health Services and delivery of
commissioning elements of SEND WSOA following critical Ofsted.

175,200

-175,200

CC&G Commissioning /
clienting resource
for new policy
priorities

Growth (partly one off for two years) in Commissioning resource to
develop our capacity and systems for clienting and performance
managing our range of new delivery models, such as spinout
companies, shared services and major outsourced contracts. It is
anticipated that following completion of the OBCRs and
development of appropriate systems for contract monitoring and
clienting, this work will at least in part become BAU and can be
subsumed within establishment commissioning resources.

179,000

-69,000

CC&G Commissioning

Specialist safeguarding post transferred into Commissioning Unit,
previously funded from Government Transition Grant awarded for 2
years (funding now ended).

60,000

Page 95
Total

Agenda Item 6
5,969,500

-153,800

-34,200

-20,000

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 97

Agenda Item 6
Appendix F

Directorate

Ref

Description of Saving and impact

Adjustments to savings agreed in 2018/19 budget process
Resources
1 Finance Shared Service - Bring forward £0.130m
planned savings originally for 2019/20 and 2020/21.
This has been delivered one year early due to
savings taken from shared budgets under NSU in
Kingston. Total savings has increased from £0.230m
originally planned over 2 years to £0.240m in 1 year.
2

Adjustment as this is part of the digital programme
that is now under Chief Executives.
Total Resources Adjustments

Peoples

3

Reshaping of Early Help provision to create
efficiency.

4
5
6
7
8

Children's Safeguarding transformation.
Children's centres (staffing).
Residential Placements.
No Recourse to Public Funds.
SEN Transport savings - reprofile of the SEN
Transport savings plan to reflect the increase in
EHCPs from 1,500 as originally assumed to 1,658
currently in place. There has been reduced
envisaged progress from independent travel training
as well as some personnel changes within the SEN
Transport Service affecting speed of some of the
activity being implemented. The new profile
assumes a higher level of reduction to the average
unit costs of providing assistance than was originally
envisaged.

9

Redesigning of service delivery that maximises
Universal Services, Early Help, and focuses more
on targeted provision.
Greater use of in-house foster carers.
Total Peoples Adjustments

10

Chief
Executives

(140,000)

2020/21
over
2019/20 £’
000

2021/22
over
2020/21
£'000

2022/23
over
2011/22
£'000

Total

£’000

(130,000)

10,000

(135,000)
5,000

(135,000)
(130,000)

0

0

(284,000)
(1,800,000)
75,000
(700,000)
(30,000)
(375,000)

(1,654,000)

(125,000)
(284,000)

(50,000)
(383,000)
(50,000)
419,000

902,000

114,000

(1,800,000)
125,000
1,083,000
80,000
158,000

(274,000)

274,000

(522,000)
910,000

0

522,000
158,000

11

Revised operating model for Customers,
Commissioning and Governance.

(283,000)

(283,000)

12

Policy and Research Team (Estimate 17/18 £253,600)

(126,800)

(126,800)

13

Professional Development Team (Estimate 17/18
£208,900)

(57,000)

(57,000)

14

Principal Social Worker/ Head of Youth Offending
Team restructure.

(17,500)

(17,500)

15

Review of training course fees in Professional
Development Service - replaced with new savings
for Commissioning Unit.
Management - replaced with new savings for
Commissioning Unit.

(30,000)

(30,000)

(43,000)

(43,000)

17

Restructure of Strategic Support Services - replaced
with new savings for Commissioning Unit.

(25,000)

(25,000)

18

Restructure of Strategic Support Services - saving to
be transferred to Corporate ICT as proportionate
saving from budget transferred along with 2 staff
from Social Care Systems Support team.

(25,000)

(25,000)

16

EH&R

2019/20
over
2018/19
£’000

19
20
21
22

Total Chief Executives Adjustments

(607,300)

Reprofile SDEN savings.
Reduce housing support services (Band B).
Cut remaining Housing Support Services (Band C).
Housing Support Services.
Total EH&R Adjustments

(124,000)
(129,000)
253,000
0

60,000

(2,256,300)

832,000

Grand Total Adjustments

0

0

0

(607,300)

0

0

60,000
(124,000)
(129,000)
253,000
60,000

910,000

0

(514,300)

60,000

Page 98

Agenda Item 6

New savings proposals
Chief Exec
23 Wellbeing - Ludlow Lodge.
24 Wellbeing - Preventative Grants.
25 Public Health - contract savings.
26 Public Health - Children's Community Services.
27 CC&G - Review of non-staffing budgets to identify
efficiencies.

Peoples

20,600
172,800
70,000
120,000
50,000

(108,000)

28

CC&G - Review of training course fees in
Professional Development Service.

(30,000)

30,000

29

CC&G - Phase 2a of Commissioning Unit
restructure.

(190,000)

190,000

30

CC&G - Phase 2b of Commissioning Unit
restructure.

100,000

100,000

31

CC&G - Efficiencies arising from Customer Digital
Platform (supported by Evolve digital programme)

135,000

135,000

Total Chief Executive’s new proposals
Contribution towards packages of care for Looked
After Children and Children with Disabilities from
Health partners.

780,400
(100,000)

Contribution towards packages of care for Adults
from Health partners.
Total Peoples new proposals
Review of supplier payment terms and Accounts
Payable processes to generate income stream.

(100,000)

35
36
37

Review of Facilities Management Client Services.
Rental income - Denmark Road Offices.
Legal Services SLLP - reduced demand, efficiencies
and additional commercial income.

(56,000)
(155,000)
(20,000)

38
39
40

ICT - Phase 1 Savings
ICT - Phase 2 Savings
Re-organisation of management within Business
Services.

41
42
43

HR - deletion of posts and budget efficiencies.
HR restructure and digital transformation.
Finance Transformation - digital & service redesign.
Total Resources new proposals

(147,500)

32

33

Resources

(20,600)
(64,800)
(70,000)
(120,000)
(50,000)

34

200,000
(20,000)

108,000

0

0

888,400
100,000

100,000
0
(25,000)

(30,000)

0

0

200,000
45,000
56,000
155,000
70,000

(20,000)

(98,000)
(90,000)
(70,000)

98,000
90,000
70,000

656,500

100,000
130,000
285,000

100,000
130,000
250,000

0

147,500
200,000
260,000
1,191,500

Grand Total - new proposals

1,636,900

393,000

250,000

0

2,279,900

Grand total - All adjusted and new Savings

(619,400)

1,225,000

1,160,000

0

1,765,600

Page 99

Agenda Item 6
Appendix G1

Draft - Housing Revenue Account Estimates
2018-19 ORIGINAL ESTIMATE
HRA TOTAL

LB SUTTON

2018-19 FULL YEAR FORECAST

SHP
MANAGED

HRA TOTAL

LB SUTTON

2019-20 ESTIMATE

SHP
MANAGED

HRA TOTAL

SHP
MANAGED

LB SUTTON

INCOME
Dwelling Rents (Gross)
Dwelling Rents (Void Loss)

Dwelling Rents- Net
Non Dwelling (Garage) Rents-Gross
Non Dwelling (Commercial) Rents-Gross
TOTAL RENTAL INCOME
Tenant Charges for Services
Older Person Housing Charges
Leaseholder Charges for Services
Tenants Water Account Income
Water Fees & Commissions
Heating Account Income

TOTAL INCOME

(32,331,000)
173,200
(32,157,800)

(32,331,000)
173,200
(32,157,800)

0

(32,454,743)
274,648
(32,180,095)

(32,454,743)
274,648
(32,180,095)

(496,000)
(260,000)
(32,913,800)

(496,000)
(260,000)
(32,913,800)

0

(488,607)
(281,883)
(32,950,584)

(488,607)
(281,883)
(32,950,584)

(834,100)
(392,400)
(1,300,000)
0
0
(263,600)

(834,100)
(392,400)
(1,300,000)
0
0
(263,600)

(836,310)
(392,919)
(1,540,629)
884
0
(278,277)

(836,310)
(392,919)
(1,540,629)
884
0
(278,277)
0
(35,997,835)

(35,703,900)

(35,703,900)

0

(35,997,835)

811,500
2,434,500
4,091,400
7,337,400

0
0
(40,000)
(40,000)

811,500
2,434,500
4,131,400
7,377,400

811,500
2,434,500
4,075,583
7,321,583

(55,817)
(55,817)

6,785,400
2,019,200
528,600
6,077,300
0
350,900
0
277,800
0
0

2,146,300

4,639,100
2,019,200
382,600

6,771,521
2,017,943
551,689
6,077,300
0
350,900
0
276,168
0
0

23,376,600

8,958,300

14,418,300

(12,327,300)

(26,745,600)

14,418,300

6,410,400
6,411,800
0
(4,000)
(8,000)

6,410,400
6,411,800
0
(4,000)
(8,000)

482,900

(13,935,400)

0

(33,158,300)
208,200
(32,950,100)

(33,158,300)
208,200
(32,950,100)

0

0

(496,000)
(265,500)
(33,711,600)

(496,000)
(265,500)
(33,711,600)

0

(857,000)
(392,400)
(1,266,000)
0
0
(278,200)

(857,000)

0

(392,400)
(1,266,000)
0
0
(278,200)

0

(36,505,200)

(36,505,200)

0

811,500
2,434,500
4,131,400
7,377,400

804,500
2,413,400
3,754,100
6,972,000

0
0
(41,400)
(41,400)

804,500
2,413,400
3,795,500
7,013,400

2,132,421
(1,257)
169,089
6,077,300
0
350,900
0
276,168
0
0

4,639,100
2,019,200
382,600

6,888,300
2,016,300
552,600
6,860,000
0
348,000
0
310,600
0
0

2,260,300

4,628,000
2,016,300
382,600

23,367,104

8,948,804

14,418,300

23,947,800

9,907,500

14,040,300

(12,630,731)

(27,049,031)

14,418,300

(12,557,400)

(26,597,700)

14,040,300

6,410,400
6,411,800
0
(4,000)
(8,000)

6,410,400
6,411,800
0
(4,000)
(8,000)

3,338,000
6,443,000
0
(4,000)
(8,000)

3,338,000
6,443,000
0
(4,000)
(8,000)

179,469

(14,238,831)

(2,788,400)

(16,828,700)

14,040,300

(2,951,954)

0

EXPENDITURE
Housing Repairs and Maintenance
Administration
Planned & Cyclical Works
Responsive Repairs

General Management
Special Services
Older Persons Housing
Depreciation
HRA Subsidy Payment to DCLG
Increase in Provision for Bad Debts
Rents, Rates, Taxes and Other Charges
Heating Account Expenses

Tenants Water Account Costs
General Contingency Provision

TOTAL EXPENDITURE
Net Cost of Services
Revenue Contribution to Capital
Supported Capital Debt Management Costs
Set aside for Debt Repayment
Interest on Cash Balances
Interest Receivable on Resident Debt

Net Operating Expenditure

HRA Surplus b/f as at 1 April
of which:
HRA Working balance
Heating Account
Adjustment: Deficit/(Surplus) for the year
Transfer to / (from) Reserve

HRA Surplus c/f as at 31 March

146,000
6,077,300
0
350,900
0
277,800
0
0

14,418,300

14,418,300

(2,638,968)

(3,131,423)

(2,951,954)

(2,125,343)
(513,625)

(2,583,068)
(548,355)

(2,401,489)
(550,464)

482,900
0

179,469
0

(2,788,400)
0

(2,156,068)

(2,951,954)

(5,740,354)

170,000
6,860,000
0
348,000
0
310,600
0
0

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 101

Agenda Item 6

HRA 3 Year Budget Forecast - year on year changes
Annual Budget - Year on Year Changes

Reduction/ (increase) in rental income
Income from acquisitions and New Build
Loss of income from water commission charge
Reduction/(Increase) in service charges and non dwelling
rents
Changes in General Management and other charges
Increase/ (Decrease) in revenue contributions to capital
costs
Depreciation & Debt management adjustments
Other minor changes
2018/19 Savings Proposals
Forecast Year on Year (Surplus)/Deficit
Forecast Cumulative (Surplus)/ Deficit
Forecast Working Balance per Year
Approved Closing Working Balance for 2018/19
Adjustment to 2018/19 opening balance for 2017/18 Outturn
2018/19 Forecast (Surplus)/ Deficit variation against
approved planned deficit of £482.9k
Revised Forecast Opening Working Balance for the Year
Forecast (Surplus)/ Deficit for the Year
Forecast Closing Working Balance

APPENDIX G2
2019/20 over
2018/19
£'000

2020/21 over
2019/20
£'000

2021/22 over
2020/21
£'000

372)
(1,142)
0)
295)

(776)
(193)
0)
(62)

(895)
(261)
0)
(42)

129)
(3,072)

3)
948)

(155)
306)

814)
510)
(694)
(2,788)
(2,788)

200)
(109)
(182)
(171)
(2,959)

211)
(373)
(42)
(1,251)
(4,210)

2019/20
£'000
(2,156)
(492)
(303)

2020/21
£'000

2021/22
£'000

(2,952)
(2,788)
(5,740)

(5,740)
(171)
(5,911)

(5,911)
(1,251)
(7,162)

Minimum working balance required (5%)

(1,825)

(1,879)

(1,939)

Working Balance shortfall/ (surplus)

(3,915)

(4,032)

(5,223)

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 103

Agenda Item 6

HRA Savings Options 2019/20 to 2021/22

APPENDIX G3
2019/20 over
2018/19

2020/21 over
2019/20

2021/22 over
20/21

Total

Environment, Housing & Regeneration - HRA savings via reduced SHP management fee
Additional income from increased TA management fees
Restructured Establishment
Phase 1
Restructured Establishment
Phase 2
Return on Digital Transformation - contracts
Return on Digital Transformation - implementation of
self-service options

50,000)

50,290)

100,290)
0)

213,000)

213,000)

20,000)
10,000)

20,000)
10,000)

100,000)

100,000)
44,000)
0)
0)
0)
0)
200,000)

Deliver Repairs Contract Efficiencies
Gas Servicing Contract Efficiencies
Rental of Ground Floor of Sutton Gate
Cost of HR Shared Service
Shared IT Costs - Phase 1
Re-base to standard contingency

100,000)
44,000)

Reduce costs of voids
Additional savings on Deliver Repairs Contract
Efficiencies

100,000)
200,000)

200,000)

Gas Servicing Contract Efficiencies
Restructured Establishment
Phase 2

(44,000)

(44,000)
0)

Restructured Establishment
Phase 3

(38,218)

(38,218)

5,000)

5,000)
0)
290)

Removal of Freephone
Reduction in Training Budget
Additional income from increased TA management fees

Agreed/Committed Savings

290)

693,938)

182,325)

0)

876,263)

42,000)

42,000)

42,000)

918,263)

New Savings
AdditionaL TA Income due 2021/22
TOTAL SAVINGS

693,938)

182,325)

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 105

Agenda Item 6
APPENDIX H

SECTION 6 - MEMBERS’ ALLOWANCES SCHEME
PART 1 - CURRENT MEMBERS ALLOWANCES' SCHEME
This outlines the arrangements in Sutton for paying allowances to Councillors and
other persons who are Committee members. The amounts are reviewed from time to
time following a report from an Independent Remuneration Panel established by
London Councils. The current amounts are set out in below in Appendix A.
1. Basic Allowance
All Councillors receive a monthly basic allowance. Councillors are entitled to receive
it from the date on which they make a declaration of acceptance of office until they
cease to be a Councillor. Basic allowance is paid to recognise the time devoted to
carrying out the responsibilities as an elected Councillor, attending and preparing for
meetings, representing the Council on outside bodies, representing individual
constituents and representing local community interests. It also covers the cost of
travelling within the borough and other incidental costs, e.g. use of private
telephones. The allowance will be increased or decreased by the amount of the
annual local government pay settlement each year. A job profile for a Councillor is
set out in Appendix B to this scheme.
2. Special Responsibility Allowance
Councillors who have special responsibilities within the Council are eligible to claim
special responsibility allowances. The posts that attract special responsibility
allowance and the amount paid are set out in Appendix A to this scheme.
Councillors may only claim special responsibility allowance in respect of one post.
Where two or more posts are held, only the higher or highest qualifying allowance is
paid. The allowance will be increased or decreased by the amount of the annual
local government pay settlement each year. Job profiles for those Councillors who
receive special responsibility allowance are set out in Appendix B.
Where Councillors who receive special responsibility allowance payments are unable
to perform their duties due to sickness, maternity or paternity leave, they are allowed
to continue to claim their allowance. The allowance will also be paid to any other
Councillor who is carrying out the duties on their behalf, subject to the condition that
no Councillor can receive more than one special responsibility allowance.
3. Conferences
Councillors may not claim an allowance to attend a conference. However, where the
attendance has been approved by the Council, the conference fees, travel and
subsistence costs incurred are reimbursable.

Agenda Item 6

Page 106
APPENDIX H

4. Mayor’s and Deputy Mayor’s Allowance
The Mayor and Deputy Mayor receive separate allowances as set out in Appendix A
to this scheme.
5. Co-optees’ Allowance
The Co-optees’ allowance will not be paid to members of the Council’s Committees
and Sub-Committees who are not Councillors. However, Co-Opted Members are
entitled to claim a travel allowance when on Council business both inside and
outside the borough.
6. Travel and Subsistence
Councillors may only claim reimbursement of travel costs when the journey goes
outside the London Borough of Sutton.
The Council can reimburse subsistence to a set limit when the meeting attended or
duty carried out is on a list of approved duties. These are only payable when the
expense has been incurred.
The current schedule of approved duties in Sutton for which Members can claim is
set out in Appendix C. The travel and subsistence allowances mirror those paid to
officers and will automatically be increased or reduced in line with any change in the
officer allowances scheme.
7. Support for a Councillor with a Disability
The Council will provide support for disabled Councillors, where appropriate, by
actively discussing an individual’s needs and putting in place the necessary support
mechanisms wherever practicable. Some of these mechanisms may include support
outside of this scheme, for example in providing transport support within the
Borough.

Page 107

Agenda Item 6
APPENDIX H

8. Dependent Carers’ Allowance
The Council has also agreed to the payment of an allowance to Members to cover
the cost of providing care for children or dependents whilst engaged on approved
Council duties. The amount of allowance will be £10.20 per hour subject to a
maximum weekly payment of £76.50, equivalent to 7.5 hours care per week. This
allowance may only be claimed in respect of caring for children aged 15 or under or
in respect of other dependents where there is medical or social work evidence that
care is required. Only one weekly payment may be claimed in respect of the
household of each member, except in special circumstances to be judged by the
Council’s Audit and Governance Committee. The allowance will only be paid as a
reimbursement of incurred expenditure against receipts. It will not be payable to a
member of the claimant’s own household. Any dispute as to entitlement and any
allegation of abuse will be referred to the Council’s Audit and Governance
Committee for adjudication.
9. How to Claim for Travel, Subsistence and Dependent Carers’ Allowances
To ensure prompt payment Members are asked to submit their fully completed claim
forms monthly alongside any other claims they may submit. They should be sent to
committeeservices@sutton.gov.uk . The ultimate responsibility for the accuracy of
any claims rests upon each individual claimant. A record of all payments made is
open to public inspection and the right to examine claims is exercised from time to
time by the press and public. The Chief Internal Auditor (020 8770 5260) will be
pleased to answer any questions on this aspect. Any claim must be made within six
months of the date of incurring the expenditure.
10. Payments made direct to Bank Accounts
As payments will be made monthly all claimants are requested to provide an account
into which the payments can be paid at the end of the month.
A payment slip will be sent to claimants showing the amount paid into their account,
together with the appropriate deductions.
Members with pay queries should contact the HR Helpdesk on 020 8770 5751 or
email hrhelpdesk@sutton.gov.uk
11. Taxation
Tax will be deducted in accordance with instructions received from HMRC. Claimants
will be supplied with a statement of tax deducted at the end of the tax year. If
members have queries relating to taxation they should contact the Inland Revenue
directly.

Agenda Item 6

Page 108
APPENDIX H

12. Amendments to this Scheme
Any amendments made to this scheme will be automatically backdated to 1 April of
the year in question.
13. Claiming Allowances from more than one Authority
Where a Councillor is also a member of another authority, that Councillor may not
receive allowances from more than one authority in respect of the same duties.
14. Foregoing the Allowances
Any person entitled to receive an allowance may, by notice in writing to the Chief
Executive, elect to forgo their entitlement or any part of their entitlement to
allowances.
15. Time Limits for claiming Allowances
All claims for travel, subsistence or dependent carers’ allowances must be made
within six months of the date of incurring the expenditure.

PART 2: APPENDIX A – ALLOWANCES: RATES
The current rates for allowances for Members are as follows:
Basic Allowance
Each Councillor

Per Annum

Special Responsibility Allowance
Leader of the Council
Deputy Leader of the Council
Principal Opposition Group Leader
Mayor
Deputy Mayor
Lead Member for Finance
Standing Committee Chairs
Standing Committee Vice-Chairs
Audit and Governance Committee Chair
Audit and Governance Committee Vice-Chair
Licensing Committee Chair
Local Committee Chair
Pension Committee Chair
Planning Committee Chair
Planning Committee Vice-Chair
Scrutiny Committee Chair
Scrutiny Committee Vice-Chair

Per Annum

£10,945

£42,890
£29,218
£15,836
£11,154
£3,014
£18,678
£18,678
£9,510
£9,510
£5,576
£10,935
£9,510
£5,576
£12,889
£9,510
£12,889
£9,510

Page 109

Agenda Item 6
APPENDIX H

Dependent Carers Allowance
£10.20 per hour subject to a maximum weekly payment of £76.50.
Travel and Subsistence
For journeys outside of the London Borough of Sutton, Councillors are expected to
use public transport and claim the fare.
Motor Mileage Allowance
All cars
45p per mile
All motorcycles
24p per mile
Day Subsistence Allowances
Breakfast Allowance (more than 4 hours away from normal place of residence
£4.75
before 11 am)
Lunch Allowance (more than 4 hours away from normal place of residence,
£6.55
including the lunchtime between 12 noon and 2 pm)
Tea Allowance (more than 4 hours away from the normal place of residence
£2.58
including the period 3 pm to 6 pm)
Evening Meal Allowance (more than 4 hours away from normal place of
£8.11
residence ending after 7 pm)

The rate of level of mileage allowances will be automatically updated to reflect any
changes to HMRC approved rates for business mileage incurred in a privately owned
vehicle.
Overnight Subsistence Allowance
Pay the actual cost of the accommodation.

PART 3 - APPENDIX B - COUNCILLOR ROLE PROFILES
Purposes
1.

To participate constructively in the good governance of the area.

2.

To contribute actively to the formation and scrutiny of the authority’s policies,
budget, strategies and service delivery.

3.

To represent effectively the interests of the ward to which the Councillor was
elected, and deal with constituents’ enquiries and representations.

4.

To champion the causes which best relate to the interests and sustainability of
the community and campaign for the improvement of the quality of life of the
community in terms of equity, economy and environment.

5.

To represent the council on outside bodies, such as a charitable trusts and
neighbourhood associations.

Agenda Item 6

Page 110
APPENDIX H

Key Tasks
1.

To fulfil the statutory and locally determined requirements of an elected
member of a local authority and the authority itself, including compliance with
all relevant codes of conduct, and participation in those decisions and
activities reserved to the Full Council (e.g. setting budget, overall priorities,
and strategy).

2.

To participate effectively as a member of any Committee or Panel to which the
Councillor is appointed, including related responsibilities for the services
falling within the Committee’s (or Panel’s) terms of reference, human resource
issues, staff appointments, fees and charges, and liaison with other public
bodies to promote better understanding and partnership working. This could
include the chairing of Sub-Committees or task groups set up by the
Committee.

3.

To participate in the activities of any outside body to which the Councillor is
appointed, providing two-way communication between the organisations.
Also, for the purpose, to develop and maintain a working knowledge of the
authority’s policies and practices in relation to that body and of the
community’s needs and aspirations in respect of that body’s role and
functions.

4.

To participate in the scrutiny or performance review of the services of the
authority including, where the authority so decides, the scrutiny of policies and
budget, and their effectiveness in achieving the strategic objectives of the
authority.

5.

To participate, as appointed, in the area – and service-based consultative
processes with the community and with other organisations.

6.

To represent the authority to the community, and the community to the
authority, through the various forums available.

7.

To develop and maintain a working knowledge of the authority’s services,
management arrangements, powers/duties, and constraints, and to develop
good working relationships with relevant officers of the authority.

8.

To develop and maintain a working knowledge of the organisations, services,
activities and other factors which impact upon the community’s well-being and
identity.

9.

To contribute constructively to open government and democratic renewal
through active encouragement to the community to participate generally in the
government of the area.

10.

To participate in the activities of any political group of which the Councillor is a
member.

Page 111

Agenda Item 6
APPENDIX H

11.

To undertake necessary training and development programmes as agreed by
the authority.

12.

To be accountable for his/her actions.

Role Profiles of Councillors who receive Special Responsibility Allowances
Leader of the Council
Purpose
To provide political leadership, to propose a policy framework and budget and to
have overall responsibility for key functions within the agreed policy framework.
Key Tasks
To undertake the functions of a Councillor and also:
● to provide leadership within the Council;
● to undertake responsibility for developing and proposing overall strategy,
budget, policy arrangements and service reviews;
● to represent the Council in the community and in discussions and
negotiations with regional, national and international organisations and
others in relation to the pursuit of matters of interest to the authority and its
community;
● to chair Strategy and Resources Committee and to take responsibility,
individually or collectively, for any specific portfolio that is allocated,
including providing a political lead on and proposing new policy, strategy,
programming, budget and service standards, as well as acting as
spokesperson for the authority.
Deputy Leader of the Council
Purpose
To fulfil the purposes of a Councillor and also:
● to take responsibility within Strategy and Resources Committee on the
basis of individual or collective or joint responsibility for a service or function
of the authority;
● to assist the Leader of the Council as the designated Deputy Leader.
Key Tasks
To undertake the functions of a Councillor and also:
● to assist the Leader of the Council in the formal processes of the authority
and matters of leadership of the authority including
o developing and proposing overall strategy, budget, policy
arrangements and service reviews and
o representing the authority in the community and in discussions and
negotiations with regional, national and international organisations and
others in relation to the pursuit of matters of interest to the authority
and its community;

Agenda Item 6

Page 112
APPENDIX H

o to participate in Strategy and Resources Committee and to implement
agreed policies by taking responsibility, individually or collectively, for
any portfolio that is allocated, including providing a lead on and
proposing new policy, strategy, programming, budget and service
standards as well as acting as spokesperson within and outside the
authority for the service/function
Leader, Principal Opposition Group
Purpose
To carry out the functions of a Councillor and also:
● to lead the principal opposition group on the Council
Key Tasks
To undertake the tasks of a Councillor and also:
● to lead the Council’s formal opposition, including scrutiny of the majority
group’s administration of the authority and act as spokesperson for the
opposition group of which he/she is leader;
● to co-ordinate the participation of the principal opposition group in the
business of the Council by organising that group’s members, liaising with
officers and other political groups as appropriate.
Committee Chairs
Purpose
To carry out the functions of a Councillor and also:
● to lead the work of their Committee of the authority.
Key Tasks
To undertake the functions of a Councillor and also:
● to participate fully in the work of the Committee they chair and to implement
agreed policies by taking responsibility, individually or collectively, for the
work of that Committee including providing a lead on and proposing new
policy, strategy, programming, budget and service standards as well as
acting as spokesperson within and outside the authority for the
services/functions that are within the responsibilities of the Committee.
● to lead the work of the Committee of the authority and to chair that
Committee, including working with officers to determine a programme of
work.
Lead Councillors
Purpose
To carry out the functions of a Councillor and also:
● to take responsibility on the basis of individual or collective responsibility, for
a specific service or function of the authority;

Page 113

Agenda Item 6
APPENDIX H

Key Tasks
To undertake the functions of a Councillor and also:
● to participate in the relevant Committee and to implement agreed policies
by taking responsibility, individually or collectively, for any portfolio that is
allocated including providing a lead on and proposing new policy, strategy,
programming, budget and service standards as well as acting as
spokesperson within and outside the authority for the service/function.
Committee Vice Chairs
Purpose
To carry out the functions of a Councillor and also:
● to deputise for and support the Chair of the Committee and take
responsibility for any tasks that the Chair asks to be undertaken.
Key Tasks
To undertake the functions of a Councillor and also:
● To deputise for and support the Chair of the Committee
● To undertake and take responsibility for any specific tasks that the
postholder is asked to carry out
Chairs of Local Committees
Purpose
To carry out the functions of a Councillor and also:
● to lead the work of a Local Committee of the authority;
Key Tasks
To undertake the functions of a Councillor and also:
● to lead the work of a Local Committee of the authority and to chair that
Committee, including
● working with officers to determine a programme of work,
● representing the area within and outside the authority as necessary.
Chair of Scrutiny Committee
Purpose
To carry out the functions of a Councillor and also:
● to lead the work of the Scrutiny Committee of the authority that is geared to
the delivery or review of a service or the discharge or review of a function of
the authority, Safer Sutton Partnership or the Health Service;
Key Tasks
To undertake the functions of a Councillor and also:
● to lead the work of the Scrutiny Committee of the authority geared to the
monitoring, review and scrutiny of a service or function of the authority
● to chair that Committee including working with officers to determine a
programme of work of monitoring and performance reviews.
● to lead the work on health scrutiny geared to the monitoring, review and
scrutiny of a service or function of the authority or health authorities in the
borough and of the policies and decision making of the authority; or

Agenda Item 6

Page 114
APPENDIX H

●
●

to lead the work on crime and disorder, geared to the monitoring, review
and scrutiny of a service or function contained in the Police & Justice Act
2006.
to lead the work on flood risk management function as contained within the
Localism Act 2011.

Chair of Planning Committee
Purpose
To carry out the functions of a Councillor and also:
● to lead the work of the Planning Committee of the authority in taking
decisions on planning applications and other planning regulatory matters.
Key Tasks
To undertake the functions of a Councillor and also:
● to lead the work of a Planning Committee of the authority in considering
and taking decisions on planning applications and other such planning
regulatory matters that are the responsibility of that Committee
● to chair that Committee, including working with officers to determine a
programme of work.
Chair of Licensing Committee
Purpose
To carry out the functions of a Councillor and also:
● to lead the work of the Licensing Committee of the authority in taking
decisions on licensing and gambling applications.
Key Tasks
To undertake the functions of a Councillor and also:
● to lead the work of a Licensing Committee of the authority in considering
and taking decisions on licences and gambling applications that are the
responsibility of that Committee
● to chair that Committee, including working with officers and partners to
determine a programme of work.
Chair of Pension Committee
Purpose
To carry out the functions of a Councillor and also:
● to lead the work of the Pension Committee that is responsible for all matters
relating to the Council’s Pension Fund.
Key Tasks
To undertake the functions of a Councillor and also:
● to lead the work of the Pension Committee of the authority responsible for
all matters relating to the Council’s Pension Fund.
● to chair that Committee including working with officers to determine a
programme of work.

Page 115

Agenda Item 6
APPENDIX H

Chair of Audit and Governance Committee
Purpose
To lead the work of the Audit and Governance Committee that is responsible for
promoting and maintaining high standards of conduct and probity for all Councillors,
co-opted members, other members of Council Committees and joint Committees,
members of Council sponsored bodies, and Council representatives on other
organisations, assisting those members to observe Sutton’s Code of Conduct, and
considering allegations of breaches of Sutton’s Code of Conduct.
Key Tasks
To lead the work of the Audit and Governance Committee and also:
● to chair that Committee including working with officers to determine a
programme of work.
● promote and maintain high standards of conduct and probity for all
Councillors, co-opted members, other members of Council Committees and
joint Committees, members of Council sponsored bodies, and Council
representatives on other organisations,
● assisting those members to observe Sutton’s Code of Conduct.
Vice Chair of Audit and Governance Committee
Purpose
To carry out the functions of a Councillor and also:
● to lead the work of an Audit Committee of the authority that is geared to
carry out the Audit Committee function, based on CIPFA guidance.
Key Tasks
To undertake the functions of a Councillor and also:
● to lead the work of an Audit Committee of the authority geared to carry out
the Audit Committee function, based on CIPFA guidance.
● to chair those parts of the agenda relating to audit matters, including
working with officers to determine a programme of work.
The Mayor
Purpose
To carry out the functions of a Councillor and also:
● To carry out an ambassadorial and promotional role on behalf of the
borough.
● To uphold and promote the purposes of the Constitution and to interpret the
Constitution when necessary.
● To preside over meetings of the Council so that its business can be carried
out efficiently having regard to the rights of Councillors and the interests of
the community.
● To promote public involvement in the Council’s activities.
● To attend civic and community functions as the civic representative.

Agenda Item 6

Page 116
APPENDIX H

The Deputy Mayor
Purpose
To carry out the functions of a Councillor and also:
● To deputise for the Mayor in the following duties
o To carry out an ambassadorial and promotional role on behalf of the
borough.
o To uphold and promote the purposes of the constitution and to interpret
the constitution when necessary.
o To preside over meetings of the Council so that its business can be
carried out efficiently having regard to the rights of Councillors and the
interests of the community.
o To promote public involvement in the Council’s activities.
o To attend civic and community functions.

PART 4 - APPENDIX C - LIST OF APPROVED DUTIES FOR
CLAIMING CARERS ALLOWANCE, TRAVEL AND SUBSISTENCE
1. Attendance previously approved by the Committee concerned at meetings with
representatives of other local authorities, Government departments and other
official bodies.
2. Meetings that a Councillor is appointed to attend as a representative of a local
authority association.
3. Attendance at any Public Inquiry when giving evidence on behalf of the Council.
4. Conferences that a Councillor is appointed to attend.
5. Meetings of all other bodies to which Councillors are appointed as a
representative of the Council or a Committee. These include: Committees and
Sub-Committees of the Council, Joint Committees with other local authorities,
Advisory Committees, Joint Committees with Staff, working panels, steering
groups, advisory groups and outside bodies (appointed to by the Council).

Page 117

Agenda Item 6

Appendix I1 Capital Strategy
Introduction
1. In 2017 the Prudential Code and Treasury Management Code were revised to
include a new requirement for local authorities to prepare a capital strategy report
which will provide the following:
●
●
●

a high-level long term overview of how capital expenditure, capital financing
and treasury management activity contribute to the provision of services
an overview of how the associated risk is managed
the implications for future financial sustainability

2. The aim of the capital strategy is to outline the overall long-term policy objectives and
resulting capital strategy requirements, governance procedures and risk appetite.
The capital strategy is reported separately from the Treasury Management Strategy
Statement with non-treasury investments being reported through the former.
3. The strategy sets out in detail the recommended capital programme for the next four
years for approval by Full Council. It also includes summarised information up to
2029/30 to show the full quantum of expenditure commitments over the medium
term. The strategy sets out the long term context in which capital expenditure,
investment and resourcing decisions are made to contribute towards the
achievement of key objectives and priorities.
4. Further work will be undertaken in future years to stretch the horizon of the capital
programme review process to provide a more developed view of capital expenditure
requirements beyond four years in line with other key strategies such as the Asset
Management Plan and Housing Revenue Account Business Plan.
Influences on Capital Strategy
Internal Influences
5. Capital investment is guided and prioritised by the Council’s key objectives as set out
in its new Corporate Plan ‘Ambitious for Sutton’. These plans are underpinned by the
Council’s shared values and will ensure that Sutton continues to enhance its
reputation as a great place to live, work and raise a family.
6. These corporate aims and objectives are taken into consideration when determining
appropriate capital investment and asset disposal programmes. Five key priorities in
the corporate plan are:
●
●
●
●

Being Active Citizens
Making Informed Choices
Living Well Independently
Keeping Individuals & Communities Safe

1

Page 118

Agenda Item 6

●

Smarter ways of working

7. More detail on each of the priorities above can be found in the full corporate plan
document.
8. Other key influences on capital expenditure plans are
●
●
●
●
●

The Sutton Local Plan
Economic Development Plan
Asset Management Plan
Local pressures such as school places
Local initiatives such as the Digital Strategy

External Influences
9. There are a range of external influences which also feed into the capital planning
process shaping capital expenditure priorities and influencing the level of capital
resources available to fund the programme.
10. London Plan & Sutton Local Plan -The London plan supports many of the
Council's own strategic priorities. It designates Sutton Town Centre as an Opportunity
Area, with the capacity to provide 5,000 new homes and 3,500 new jobs, both of
which are possible over the 22 year period of the plan. It also supports a tram
extension to Sutton Town Centre, for which the Council continues to lobby for as a
necessary improvement in Sutton's and South London's transport infrastructure to
enable growth. It also references the London Cancer Hub as one of London's
sector-specific growth opportunities.
11. Local Economy -the level of resources available to fund the capital programme are
affected by the local economy. Payments through the Community Infrastructure Levy
(CIL) and S106 are directly linked to development together with values achieved for
capital receipts from the sale of council owned vacant land or buildings. The level of
right to buy receipts are affected by the local housing market and government
housing policy.
12. Austerity -The Council’s capital investment ambitions are made against a backdrop
of austerity and significant central government funding reductions. It is therefore vital
that the Council’s capital strategy ensures that assets are utilised in the most
appropriate way to deliver corporate objectives, meet statutory requirements and
sustain core infrastructure but also support the delivery of savings or income
generation in the revenue budget.
13. External Funding Arrangements -The Council currently receives funding from
external agencies such as TFL and the GLA which support the capital programme.
The priorities of these funding agencies contribute towards shaping the programme
and as such affect the level of resources available to the programme as a whole.

2

Page 119

Agenda Item 6

14. Shared Services -the Council has a number of established partnerships in place for
the delivery of shared services with other local authorities. The most relevant in terms
of capital expenditure programmes include the shared IT & environmental services
with the Royal Borough of Kingston Upon Thames and the South London Waste
Partnership (SLWP) which is a partnership of four London boroughs (Sutton,
Kingston, Merton & Croydon) for the delivery of improved and cost effective waste
management services.
15. Commercial Activity / Ambition -The Council is involved in a number of commercial
ventures including commercial property investment through the Council’s Investment
Property Portfolio, working in partnership with the Institute of Cancer Research (ICR)
to deliver ambitions for the London Cancer Hub and providing financial support
through loans and equity shares to two wholly owned subsidiaries of the Council’s
holding company Opportunity Sutton, Sutton Decentralised Energy Network (SDEN)
and Sutton Living.
Capital Budget Setting & Capital Prioritisation
16. Each year the Council reviews its capital expenditure plans and priorities for the next
four years in order to agree a capital programme. This is undertaken alongside the
revenue budgeting process in order that the impact of both is considered.
17. As part of the annual capital budget setting process services are required to
complete a capital bid request form with details of the capital expenditure that that
they require. These forms are required to be completed for all new schemes, for
existing schemes which are uncommitted (i.e. have not incurred expenditure and are
not contractually committed) and for all rolling programmes of expenditure including
growth to existing rolling programmes.
18. Each year a cross service officer review group is brought together to review,
challenge and score bids submitted by Directorates for capital expenditure over the
next four year period. The criteria against which the bids are scored are as follows:
●
●
●
●
●
●

The scheme is essential for the delivery of the Council’s Corporate Plan
objectives
The scheme is required to meet statutory requirements
The scheme is required to sustain core infrastructure
There is a reputational risk attached to not undertaking the proposed
expenditure
The scheme has the ability to lever in match funding to partially fund the
scheme
The capital expenditure on the proposed scheme achieves cost avoidance in
the Council’s revenue budget

3

Agenda Item 6

Page 120

19. Officers submitting the bid are asked to state which of the six criteria the capital
expenditure satisfies. Each bid can satisfy more than one criteria. Each criteria is
weighted by the review group and bids are scored 1-5 against the criteria that applies
to them. An overall score for each scheme is achieved by adding up the individual
weighted scores against each individual criteria. Schemes are then ranked according
to their total scores. These scores are then used to draw up a prioritised list for
consideration by the Corporate Management Team (CMT). If there are further
questions on any particular schemes, the review group can undertake a more in
depth review session with key officers. Examples where this has happened in the
past are highways maintenance rolling programme growth and digital strategy
expenditure.
20. This prioritisation process supports the Council in making decisions about which
schemes to progress, especially when capital resources are limited.
21. Member engagement throughout the capital review process helps to set the overall
strategic direction for the programme and provide the context against which it is
being agreed.
Capital Resources
22. Capital resources available to fund the capital programme are reviewed annually as
part of the wider capital programme review process. This includes a review of
projected capital receipts from the disposal of council assets, available resources
from government or third party grants, S106, Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL),
right to buy receipts and sums set aside in reserves.
23. Assumptions within the Asset Management Plan feed into this review in terms of
asset use and the planned disposal of surplus assets. On the HRA assumptions
within the Business Plan are reviewed such as numbers of RTB sales which affects
the levels of resources available through the general RTB sum, allowable debt, and
net RTB receipts.
24. A general principle applied to the capital programme is that prudential borrowing is
only undertaken for schemes that either generate savings or additional income to pay
for the associated capital financing costs. General borrowing to support the
programme is not undertaken due to the related impact on the revenue budget.
Revenue Implications from Capital Schemes
25. Services are required to identify and record any potential revenue implications from
capital schemes as part of the capital bidding process. These are then taking into
consideration during the scheme prioritisation process and reflected in the medium
term revenue budgets where necessary.

4

Page 121

Agenda Item 6

Capacity to Deliver Schemes
26. The capacity to deliver capital schemes is initially assessed through the capital
programme review bidding process. Services are required to highlight key risks for
the scheme and capacity would be part of this assessment. The finance team also
have close contact with project managers delivering schemes. Any capacity issues
are highlighted and followed up through the in year capital monitoring processes.
Governance
27. The Strategy & Resources Committee have oversight of the capital programme with
the capital budget, in year monitoring and outturn position all being considered
during the year. The Strategy and Resources Committee review and approve the
capital programme before it is finally approved by Full Council. HEB Committee
consider and agree the HRA Business Plan of which capital expenditure plans is a
part.
28. Council approval of the programme gives an allocation to budget managers in the
capital programme. Separate approval is required for any significant changes to the
profiling or nature of that spend in year in line with financial rules set out in the
Council’s financial regulations.
29. Once approved the programme is managed by officers and reported to Strategy and
Resources Committee on a quarterly basis. Key issues are any reported under or
over spends projected for schemes together with changes in the profiling of spending
over the four year budget period. In all cases the impact of scheme outcomes
including timings are assessed and in the case of projected scheme overspends
options to reduce the additional expenditure are considered including re-engineering
or scaling back projects or trying to secure third party external funding to reduce the
pressure on scheme budgets.
30. In all events the Council will continually look to ensure that quarterly projections are
as accurate as possible and a rigorous process is applied to ensure that budget
managers are made accountable and the appropriate approvals are obtained (as
referenced to the financial regulations) for any changes to the Council agreed four
year programme.
Asset Management Plan
31. The Corporate Asset Management Strategy 2015/19 was approved by the Strategy &
Resources Committee on 9 February 2015. The strategy covers all of the council’s
property with the exception of housing and schools. The plan is due to be reviewed
and updated in 2019.

5

Agenda Item 6

Page 122

32. It categorises council property into operational buildings and non-operational
buildings. Operational buildings are those from which Council services are delivered
and non operational properties are those which are held for other reasons such as
income generation or socio-economic purposes e.g. accommodation for voluntary
and community sector organisations.
33. With the backdrop of the reduction in public expenditure, the key challenges identified
for the Corporate Asset Management Strategy were:
●
●
●
●

●

to manage a reduction in the number of buildings used by the Council to both
save money and to reflect the ways in which service delivery is changing
to generate additional income from council-owned buildings
to find cost effective ways of meeting additional requirements for some types
of accommodation e.g. schools
to ensure that buildings retained by the Council are efficiently serviced and
maintained, are appropriate for the new ways that services are to be delivered
and can accommodate the use of appropriate technology, and;
to facilitate developments on both Council and non-Council owned land that
contribute to economic growth of the borough

34. Progression on all key targets and milestones under the Corporate Asset
Management Strategy were reported to Strategy and Resources Committee most
recently on 29 October 2018.
Commercial Property Acquisitions -Investment Property Portfolio (IPP)
35. In February 2015 Strategy and Resources Committee took the decision to set up an
Investment Portfolio of properties to be managed commercially. This would include
existing investment buildings but also set criteria for expanding that portfolio by
undertaking commercial property acquisitions. The Strategy and Resources
Committee then gave approval to principles for the Investment Property Portfolio
(IPP) in September 2015.
36. The twin aims of the strategy for the Investment Property Portfolio are to:
●
●

Support the economic viability of the borough; and
Deliver a secure medium to long term investment return to help sustain the
delivery of council functions

37. In delivering the strategy the following priorities are to be used to guide the growth of
the Investment Property Portfolio:
●
●

Acquisitions that help attract and sustain economic activity and investment in
the borough
Arrangements that help manage risks and contribute towards achieving a
balanced portfolio including acquisitions in or out of the borough

6

Page 123

Agenda Item 6

Possible risks for the Council
38. Property investment has its own specific risks, the principal ones being property risks,
financial risks and corporate risks. The arrangements set out in this policy are
designed to help minimise these risks.
a) Property Risks – the property market is cyclical and is affected by the wider
economic environment. There are also property risks that are specific to a building
due to its location, condition and quality of tenants. Mitigation proposed in this policy
for these risks include diversifying the portfolio (portfolio mix) to include investments
that perform differently over the economic cycle. The evaluation criteria, diversity of
location, due diligence tests, approval processes and accountability for
implementation are also proposed to address property specific risks.
b) Financial Risks – the primary financial risks are borrowing levels, interest rates
movement, ongoing ability to service debts, the general investment market conditions
and its effect on rental income. Proposals include the creation of a special reserve for
the IPP and a funding strategy that allocates debt and all associated costs to the IPP
so that the net revenue benefits to the Council is transparent and can be
benchmarked.
c) Corporate Risks – effective operational delivery requires staff with the requisite
expertise, effective arrangements for asset management and the recognition of the
reputational risks that can come from inappropriate tenants, and from legal and
environmental breaches. The council has adopted a statement on ethical investments
to guide the acquisition of property and management of relationships with tenants.
Operational delivery will be managed through the accountability offered by an officer
board and the reporting requirements on the performance of the IPP to the Strategy
& Resources Committee.
Portfolio Mix
39. The current weighting of the classes of property in the IPP, by rental income, is
(October 2018) Industrial 28%, Retail 25%, Offices 42%, and Leisure 4% with most of
the Council’s property located within the borough and a few just across the borough
boundaries with neighbouring authorities and one out of the borough.
40. Over the life of the strategy, a balanced and diversified portfolio will be achieved by:
a) Selling low value assets and reinvesting capital receipts in directly managed
property with good rental growth potential

7

Agenda Item 6

Page 124

b) Acquiring properties inside the borough, and also outside the borough where
a case can be made that it is in the best interests of the council to seek lawful
departure from the requirements of the Statutory Guidance on Local Authority
Investments and the CIPFA Prudential Code (where such acquisitions are
funded through borrowing).
c) Achieve a balanced portfolio where no single class of property is larger than
60% and none smaller than 10%.
Governance
41. Strategy and Resources Committee have set the policy arrangements for the IPP and
receive an annual report on performance of the portfolio.
42. Operational management including acquisitions is delegated to officers, acting within
their delegated powers as set out below.
●
●

That the Chief Executive is granted delegated powers to authorise
acquisitions up to £5m
That the urgency procedure is used for acquisitions over £5m

43. An officer board (chaired by the Strategic Director of Resources) is to be accountable
for the performance of the IPP and is charged with making recommendations to the
Chief Executive for acquisitions. The officer board is to also include:
●
●
●
●

Assistant Director, Asset Planning, Management and Capital Delivery
Assistant Director, Housing and Regeneration
Assistant Director, Customers Commissioning & Governance
Assistant Director, Economic Development & Programme Director London
Cancer Hub .

44. Disposal of assets in the IPP is to be undertaken in accordance with the Council’s
standing orders for asset disposals. The officer board will make recommendations to
the appropriate officer where, due to disposal value, it is within officer delegated
powers, and to the Strategy & Resources Committee where outside officer delegated
powers.
IPP Activity
45. To date the Council has undertaken five acquisitions with a total value of just over
£53m. Four acquisitions have been inside the borough and one in Oxford, Oxfam
Headquarters. The annual gross rental income being achieved for these five
properties is £3.07m and the annual net rental (after financing costs) is just over £1m.
As at 31 March 18 there was £0.8m in the ringfenced IPP reserve.

8

Page 125

Agenda Item 6

46. A target of increasing the gross income from the IPP by 50% or £1.6m by 2019/20
was previously agreed alongside evaluation criteria for the portfolio. This target has
been surpassed as the increase in gross income currently stands at £3.07m per
annum.
47. Five key indicators are used to monitor performance of the portfolio. Performance
against these indicators was last reported to the Strategy and Resources Committee
on 29 October 2018 as follows:
48. Total Return -which is the annual increase in net capital value (expressed as a
percentage) plus net income growth (expressed as a percentage of the capital value)
Total Portfolio
Year

Asset Value
(£’000s)

Net Asset
Value
Growth (%)

Income
Return (%)

Total Return
LBS (%)

UK All
Property
Total Return
(IPD Index)
(%)

2015/16

£42,666

1.94%*

5.31%*

7.25%*

13.1% (Dec
2015)

2016/17

£75,739

1.72%*

3.78%*

5.50%*

3.5% (Dec
2016)

2017/18

£93,935

4.14%

3.61%

7.76%

11.3% (Dec
2017)

* restated values following change in methodology
By Property Type -2018 Outturn
Property
Type

Asset Value
(AV) (£’000s)

AV as (%) of
Total
Portfolio

Net Asset
Value
Growth (%)

Income
Return (%)

Total Return
(%)

Offices

£39,062

41.82%

1.56%

2.12%

3.68%

Leisure

£4,177

4.47%

0.34%

6.82%

7.16%

Industrial

£26,420

28.29%

13.54%

4.96%

18.50%

Retail

£23,736

25.41%

0.21%

4.14%

3.93%

9

Page 126

Agenda Item 6

Effective Return - Income receivable less costs, expressed as a percentage of capital
value
Year

Asset Value (£’000s)

Net Income (less
interest, minimum
revenue provision
and management)

Effective return (%)

2015/16

£44,156

£2,320

5.25%*

2016/17

£2,934

£2,934

3.84%*

2017/18

£3,242

£3,242

3.56%

* restated values following change in methodology
Growth in Asset Value and Gross Income - Percentage increase per year
Year

Asset Value
(£’000s)

Asset Growth
(%)

Gross Income
(£’000s)

Income Growth
(%)

2015/16

£44,156

1.89%

£2,809*

0.75%*

2016/17

£77,229

74.90%

£4,565*

65.77%*

2017/18

£93,395

20.93%

£5,883

17.29%*

Vacancy Rate - Expressed as a percentage of vacant space and potential rent loss
compared with total lettable space and overall rent.
Year

Nr of
Properties

Nr Vacant

Vacant
Lettable
Space

Vacancy
Rate (%
lettable
space)

Rent Loss
(if vacant
for whole
year)

Vacancy
Rate (% of
total rent)

April 2016

121

2

9,458 m2

0.87%

N/A

N/A

April 2017

111*

2

2,384 m2

0.26%

£195,003

3.34%

April 2018

111

5

2,036 m2

0.22%

£109,000

1.85%

49. Performance of the portfolio against all indicators is strong. The total return of the
Council’s IPP has been compared with the Investment Property Databank (IPD) UK
All Property Index published by MSCI Inc, which is an acknowledged property
investment benchmark indicator. The Council calculates its own total returns. The
formula has been adjusted this year to improve accuracy resulting in the restatement
of affected indices (previous years) to ensure like for like comparison.

10

Page 127

Agenda Item 6

Four Year Capital Programme - 2019/20 to 2022/23
50. The proposed capital programme for 2019/20 to 2022/23 is set out in detail in
Appendix I2. This includes details of the corporate, education and housing capital
programmes. Each are now considered in detail below.
Corporate Capital Programme 2019/23
51. The Corporate Programme sets out planned capital expenditure totalling £41.105m
over the next four years as shown in the table below. This includes expenditure on
one-off schemes of £21.794m and rolling programmes of £19.311m.

Planned Corporate Capital
Expenditure

2019/20

2020/21

2021/22

2022/23

TOTAL

£’000

£’000

£’000

£’000

£’000

19,129

12,128

4,975

4,873

41,105

Prudential Borrowing

5,057

6,200

200

100

11,557

General Capital Receipts Reserve

2,610

1,593

490

1,506

6,199

Right to Buy Receipts

4,847

1,942

0

747

7,536

CIL

859

702

2,653

888

5,102

Private Developers

100

100

100

100

400

13,473

10,537

3,443

3,341

30,794

5,656

1,591

1,532

1,532

10,311

19,129

12,128

4,975

4,873

41,105

Capital Resources

Total General Capital Resources
Specific Funding
Total Corporate Resources
Contractually Committed Schemes

52. All existing capital schemes that are underway or contractually committed and are
due to continue into 2019/20 to 2022/23 are excluded from the capital programme
bidding process and form a first call on available capital resources. These schemes
are included in the proposed capital programme and are included within the table
above.

11

Agenda Item 6

Page 128

Rolling Programmes
53. Rolling programmes of expenditure ensure that assets are replaced or maintained in
an appropriate and timely fashion. This represents a significant underlying, ongoing
capital expenditure pressure for the council to continue business as usual. Each year
the cost of rolling programmes is approximately £3.369m.
54. Key rolling programmes for the Council include highway asset maintenance,
pavement improvements and resurfacing, street lighting works, public realm and
expenditure on corporate buildings. As part of the annual capital programme review
services are required to submit capital bids for all rolling programmes including the
continuation of programmes into the fourth year of the budget (currently 2022/23) and
any growth over and above normal levels of provision over the four year budgeting
period. These programmes are then assessed against the criteria set out in para 18
along with any new capital schemes to ascertain whether these schemes are
targeted at key priority areas and whether planned expenditure is at appropriate
levels.
55. As part of the 2019/23 review bids were submitted to continue all rolling programmes
over the next four years. In addition two bids were received for rolling programme
growth for highways asset maintenance and priority repairs grants following
demonstrated need in both of those areas.
56. Expenditure on Corporate and Operational Buildings -The capital programme
includes a rolling programme of Expenditure to Corporate and Operational Buildings
(ECOB). Planned spend on the programme is £759k in 2019/20, £808k in 2020/21
and £762k in 2021/22 and 2022/23. An element of the works undertaken under this
programme are planned but some are responsive in nature. A prioritisation process is
used by the property service to determine which works are carried out and in which
priority order. An outline programme of works for 2019/20 is shown at Appendix I4.
57. Public Realm -The programme includes a rolling programme of public realm
expenditure. These resources are governed by local committees to ensure funds are
directed towards local priorities in each area. The capital programme includes
funding of £200k per annum over the 4 year programme which will be used by local
committees alongside other resources such as CIL, to deliver high priority public
realm improvements.

12

Page 129

Agenda Item 6

New Schemes
58. A number of new schemes were put forward for consideration as part of the 2019/23
capital programme review. Following the challenge and prioritisation exercise new
schemes totalling £3.292m have been included within the proposed four year capital
programme. This includes prevention measures for encampments & fly tipping, works
to Sutton Cemetery, replacement of equipment at Sutton Life Centre, sustainable
drainage systems in Sutton Schools, housing estate regeneration enabling fund,
works to gypsy and travellers sites, renewal of bridge height signs, replacement flood
lights at the David Weir Centre and moving traffic offence equipment.
Transport for London Schemes
59. Transport for London (TfL) have confirmed the boroughs allocation for the 2019/20
financial year. Sutton is allocated £1.059m for Corridors of which £0.169m is revenue
funding, £0.1m for the Local Transport Fund and £0.050m to complete the
Beddington Gateway Major Scheme. In December 2018 TfL published their Business
Plan for the period 2019/20 to 2023/24 setting out how TfL will continue to invest in
vital transport improvements in London and deliver the Mayor’s Transport Strategy,
against a backdrop of some significant financial challenges. Funding for other
schemes including Bus Priority and Cycling and LIP Liveable Neighbourhoods are
expected in March.
Invest to Save Schemes
60. All capital schemes that have the potential to either increase income or release
revenue savings are considered as potential invest to save schemes. Under these
arrangements schemes are assessed over the life of the asset that is being created
or maintained or enhanced through the production of a business case. Sufficient
additional income or savings must be generated to cover any related capital financing
costs associated with prudential borrowing. Typically this will be interest costs and
minimum revenue provision (MRP) on an annuity basis. On completion of the
scheme, the service budget is reduced by the level of capital financing cost.
61. As part of the business case the full revenue impact of proposed schemes is
assessed including additional costs or income from the capital expenditure both in
the short and longer term. Any cost avoidance projected as part of the business case
is used to support the proposals but cannot be taken into account when assessing
whether there is sufficient additional income or savings to cover any capital financing
costs.
62. Schemes agreed as part of this year’s capital programme review are phase 2 of the
energy efficiency and carbon reduction programme at Civic Offices and Denmark
Road and Street Lighting LED Lights.

13

Agenda Item 6

Page 130

Corporate Capital Programme Resources
63. Resources available over the next four years to fund the capital programme have
been projected. Beyond this period these are difficult to forecast.
64. Capital Receipts - The potential capital receipts available to support the capital
programme have been reviewed. The review has looked at whether the planned
receipts are still achievable, reviewed their values and identified any new receipts
which could provide additional resources.
65. Borrowing - Borrowing for invest to save schemes over the four year period totals
£11.557m. The borrowing represents total borrowing rather than ‘external’ borrowing.
This is because the borrowing requirement for the next four years from these
schemes will be assessed and planned for as part of the wider treasury management
strategy. In the past this has resulted in cash balances being used as ‘internal
borrowing’ as this is the most cash efficient use of resources in the current interest
rate environment. Interest rates on cash invested are low and counterparty risk is
relatively high so the treasury strategy that has been implemented is to maximise
internal borrowing where possible.
66. External borrowing is the process of going to an external financial institution to obtain
money. The Council has the option to borrow from the Public Works Loan Board
(PWLB) which provide favourable interest rates to public bodies, other financial
institutions or more recently other local authorities (generally for short term
borrowing).
67. A possible alternative source of debt finance in the future will be to borrow via a bond
issued by the Municipal Bond Agency (MBA). This will be subject to the MBA
achieving a source of finance and issuing its first bond. The agency is an
independent body with its own governance structure, accountable to its local
authority shareholders and the LGA. It raises money on the capital markets by
issuing bonds to financial institutions that are then lent on to participating local
authorities. It is expected that the bond will be issued at interest rates lower than the
PWLB and is expected to provide a viable alternative to the PWLB.
68. Minimum Revenue Provision - Where capital expenditure has been funded through
the use of borrowing, the Council is required to set aside an amount from revenue
each year to provide for the eventual repayment of this debt. The Council is required
to provide an annual policy statement on how the new methodology has been
implemented. This is set out in Annex 2 of the Treasury Management Strategy
(Appendix J). There is no requirement for the HRA to make a minimum revenue
provision but there is a requirement for a charge for depreciation to be made.

14

Page 131

Agenda Item 6

69. Right to Buy Receipts - under Right to Buy (RTB) arrangements the Council retains
three shares of the capital receipt and the balance goes to Government. The three
shares relate to (1) general element (2) allowable debt and (3) net retained receipts.
The Council receives the general element (old 25% retained receipt element),
allowable debt element and the net retained receipt (for new homes under agreement
with the MHCLG). The general element can be applied against any capital
expenditure and the Council has previously taken the decision to apply this funding
as a resource for the capital programme. The element that is retained for debt
repayment can be used to repay debt or can also be used as a resource to apply
against the capital programme. A total of £7.536m from the general element and
allowable debt is being applied within the 2019/23 corporate programme. The
retained RTB element is largely being used to fund property acquisitions for use as
temporary accommodation, the remaining works on the initial local authority new
build housing programme and the planned second phase due to begin in April 2020.
70. Community Infrastructure Levy & S106 - From 1 April 2014 the Council has
charged the new Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) on liable developments. The
CIL is split into three parts
●
●
●

Admin portion (5% for administering the scheme)
Neighbourhood portion (between 15 and 25% allocated locally to areas where
new development has taken place)
Borough portion (remaining 70 to 80% must be applied against infrastructure
expenditure as listed in Regulation 123 list)

71. Total CIL received to date is £4.231m with a further £4.371m projected to be received
by the end of 2022/23. The projection for the borough portion has been applied to the
capital programme in line with the revised Regulation 123 list, this includes setting
aside 50% of all town centre receipts and 10% of all other receipts towards the
possible Tram extension.
72. The programme also includes £0.060m of specific s106 funding which has been
received for Nature Conservation Schemes of £0.011m and Beddington Park HLF
Scheme of £0.049m.
73. Government Grants - grant funding received for towards the capital programme is
limited but includes Transport for London (TFL) funding of £1.040m, Disabled
Facilities Grant (DFG) of £6.925m, London Business Rate Pool Grant £1.7m, Lottery
Funding of £0.113m and minor grants £0.253m. In each case the Council must apply
these resources according to any specific grant conditions attached to the funding. A
total of £10.031m is being applied across the 2019/23 programme.
74. Private developers - a sum of £100k per annum is included within capital
programme resources which relates to an annual payment back from the developer
on the Oakleigh temporary accommodation scheme.

15

Agenda Item 6

Page 132

75. Revenue Funding -The Council can use revenue resources directly to fund capital
schemes and this has been used in the past. However given the pressure on revenue
budgets this practice is now generally restricted to the use of earmarked revenue
reserves which have been set up to support capital.
Housing Revenue Account Business Plan
76. The capital programme for housing including both expenditure within the general fund
and HRA is shown in the table below.
2019/20
£’000

2020/21
£’000

2021/22
£’000

2022/23
£’000

HRA
Works to Council Dwellings

7,944

7,396

7,635

7,872

11,628

8,896

6,376

6,503

Phase 1 New Build Programme

700

0

0

0

Phase 2 New Build Programme

1,783

21,284

1,359

0

5,600

0

0

0

Traveller Sites Improvements

114

0

750

750

Estate Regeneration

734

121

0

0

5,000

0

0

0

33,503

37,697

16,120

15,125

10,119

19,787

5,744

4,552

3,992

3,893

1,991

1,951

0

6,500

0

0

790

130

130

130

6,860

7,059

7,270

7,485

294

207

235

257

Property Acquisition

General Fund
Temporary Accommodation

Strategic Regeneration

Total Expenditure
Resources
HRA
Borrowing
RTB
Grant
Revenue
MRR
Leaseholder Contributions

16

Page 133

Agenda Item 6

General Fund
Capital Receipts

1,414

0

525

525

0

0

0

0

Borrowing

6,500

0

0

0

Grant

3,534

121

225

225

33,503

37,697

16,120

15,125

RTB

Total Resources
Housing General Fund

77. Strategic Housing and Regeneration Fund - There are a number of plans set out
in the local plan for housing estate and town centre regeneration across the borough.
Some of these schemes will involve an element of land assembly for long term
ambitions to be achieved. The majority of these regeneration schemes are at an early
stage in terms of assessing viability and do not have fully worked up plans and
business cases. To allow progression of these plans in the future funding has been
set aside which could be accessed for approved projects that align to the strategic
aims of the council in it’s regeneration policy objectives and to help deliver the Sutton
Town Centre Master Plan. As part of the capital programme review a sum of £5m has
been set aside for this purpose. This has been funded through £3.3m from the
London Business Rate Pool grant, £0.8m HRA capital receipts and £0.9m prudential
borrowing. Officers are working on outline guidance and parameters for the
allocation of this fund.
78. Estate Regeneration Enabling Fund -The Council was previously successful in
securing MHCLG grant funding of £0.942m for estate regeneration. Since then the
Mayor of London has issued further guidance on good practice standards for estate
regeneration which are likely to increase the cost of this preparatory work including
the need for resident ballots. An additional capital allocation of £0.5m has been
allowed for in the capital programme for the increased cost of this work.
79. Improvements to Traveller and Gypsy Site Provision -There is new expenditure
within the capital programme for the improvement and expansion of existing
travellers sites to satisfy the council statutory requirements (£1.5m). This assumes
that the Council will secure funding from the GLA of £0.45m to support these
expenditure plans.

17

Agenda Item 6

Page 134

80. Temporary Accommodation -The Council has previously approved capital
investment in the construction of modular build temporary accommodation. This
scheme is funded partially by right to buy receipts and prudential borrowing on an
invest to save basis with rental income covering the capital financing costs. A total
budget of £5.6m is included within the programme for potential schemes. The general
fund will also benefit from cost avoidance savings within bed and breakfast
accommodation budget.
81. Property Acquisitions -The Council is undertaking a programme of residential
property acquisitions to be used for temporary accommodation. This programme
was agreed by HEB Committee in June 2017. The properties were previously due to
be purchased through the HRA initially with additional provision available in the
general fund under invest to save arrangements to ensure that the HRA borrowing
cap was not exceeded. However now that the borrowing cap on the HRA has been
lifted it is planned to switch all property acquisitions through HRA borrowing and RTB
receipts and the HRA business plan will now reflect this assumption. As a result the
general fund capital provision will be removed and the HRA capital provision
increased.
Housing Revenue Account
82. The Council’s 30 year HRA Business Plan sets out plans for maintaining and
investing in, its housing stock of 5,900 rented and 1,500 leaseholder properties.
Each year the 30 year housing revenue account business plan is reviewed to take
account of any changes to factors including reflecting changes to housing policy,
economic assumptions such as building cost inflation and interest rates and changes
to local conditions such as stock condition and levels of RTB sales.
83. Each year an exercise is undertaken to review building stock condition to ascertain
levels of stock investment required over the next four years (in detail) but also over
the longer term. This information is then used to determine a suitable programme of
major works to council properties, balancing the need to hold a sufficient level of
revenue reserves and ensure that revenue is set aside for the repayment of the
£141m HRA subsidy loan which is due to mature in 2041/42.
84. The HRA Programme of capital expenditure over the next four years 2019/20 to
2022/23 is £89.376m. This consists of £30.847m on major works to Council housing
stock, £25.126m on new build programmes and £33.403m on property acquisitions.
This is to be funded by a range of different sources. £28.674m Major Repairs
Reserve, £40.202m of borrowing, £11.827m RTB receipts, £6.5m grant or
contributions, £0.993m leaseholders contributions and £1.180m revenue
contributions.

18

Page 135

Agenda Item 6

85. Major Works to Council Housing Stock - Following the end of Decent Homes grant
funding, ongoing works to Council Properties are being funded through the Major
Repairs Reserve funding and revenue contributions. The Major Repairs Reserve is
increased each year by the level of depreciation charged on existing assets. An
outline housing capital programme of stock repairs and improvements for 2019/20 to
2022/23 is shown above for the first four years on the basis of the Housing Revenue
Account Business Plan. Over the four year period planned works are financed by
Major Repairs Reserve (MRR) of £28.674m, revenue contributions to capital of
£1.180m and Leaseholder contributions of £0.993m. Appendix I3 sets out the
proposed programme of capital expenditure in detail for member approval.
86. New Build Programme -The four year housing business plan includes outstanding
work on the investment in new build housing at the Ludlow Lodge site, Richmond
Green and Fellowes Road. It also includes planned works as part of phase 2 of New
Build development which is benefiting from grant from the homes for Londoners GLA
grant.
87. Property Acquisitions - As explained above there is provision within HRA budgets
for property acquisitions for temporary accommodation. This will release cost
avoidance savings for the general fund in its bed and breakfast accommodation
revenue budgets. Given the restrictions around the borrowing cap the programme
was initially agreed to be financed by RTB receipts and surplus HRA revenue for
purchases from the HRA and RTB receipts and prudential borrowing for further
purchases by the general fund. However now that the borrowing cap on the HRA has
been lifted it is planned to switch all property acquisitions to HRA borrowing and RTB
receipts and the HRA business plan will now reflect this assumption.
88. Right to Buy (RTB) Receipts -Under the new RTB arrangements introduced for
2012/13 the Council signed up to an agreement with Government for the use of net
RTB receipts for the provision of new housing. It is estimated that £36.087m of net
RTB receipts will have been retained through that agreement by the end of 2022/23.
89. A total of £11.827m net retained RTB receipts are being applied to the HRA capital
programme over the next four year period. £1.806m is being applied to the new build
programme and £10.021m to property acquisitions.
90. Headroom Borrowing Cap -Under HRA Reform a ceiling was set for the level of
borrowing that the HRA would be able to undertake to support the HRA business
plan. This ceiling was set at £173.9m for Sutton. The Council took out a loan to meet
the self financing payment set to effectively ‘buy out’ of the subsidy system. This
totalled £141m. After other adjustments this left £14.8m remaining headroom
borrowing. The Council was subsequently successful in bidding for local growth
funding to increase that remaining headroom by £5.307m. The Council took the
decision to use this remaining borrowing capacity to support its plans for providing
new build housing at Fellowes Road, Richmond Green and Ludlow Lodge.

19

Agenda Item 6

Page 136

91. A further £0.9m is being applied to the strategic housing and regeneration fund to
bring the total available to £5m as outlined in para 77 above.
92. As part of Budget 2018 Government announced plans to remove the HRA borrowing
cap. This was subsequently implemented through revisions to capital regulations
brought in during October 2018. Officers are now reviewing plans for the HRA in light
of this significant change. Recommendations will be brought to HEB in March 2019
for implementation.
Education Programme
93. The main elements of the education capital programme are the school expansion and
build programme, works to maintain school buildings and devolved formula capital to
schools. The details of the outline programme for 2019/23 are shown in the table
below.
2019/20

2020/21

2021/22

2022/23

Total

£’000

£’000

£’000

£’000

£’000

Expansion / New Build
Minor Projects for
Primary/Secondary expansions

213

0

0

0

213

Hackbridge Primary

1,121

74

0

0

1,195

Belmont Secondary

13,034

569

0

0

13,603

146

0

0

0

146

14,514

643

0

0

15,157

1,550

700

600

500

3,350

Devolved Formula Capital

732

120

120

120

1,092

Healthy Pupil Capital

101

0

0

0

101

28

28

28

28

112

16,925

1,491

748

648

19,812

SEN Expansions
Total Expansion / New Build
Works to Maintain School Buildings

Corporate Resources - Foster
Carers Adaptations & Computers
for Looked after children
Total Education Programme

20

Page 137

Agenda Item 6

Schools Capital Maintenance
94. Works to maintain school buildings is funded from the Schools Condition Allocation
(SCA) grant received annually from government. Despite schools being in an overall
good condition, surveys from 2012 identified a backlog of over £13m priority works in
schools, the available grant is being used to address the highest priority works.
Schools are invited annually to bid for projects to keep school buildings wind and
watertight and to prevent further deterioration or possible school closures. These will
be reviewed by the AMP Steering Group in January 2019 with the 2019/20 capital
programme agreed by Schools’ Forum by March 2019.
Schools Expansion
95. Funding for primary school expansion has predominantly been through the Basic
Need grant. All medium term planned primary expansions are now complete except
for the expansion at Hackbridge Primary School which has been delayed from the
originally completion date of April 2019. The delay is due to the non performance of
the main contractor (Lakehouse,) as a result of their serious financial problems. A
notice of termination has been issued by the Council. The process can be challenged
by Lakehouse, but once it has been contractually accepted (14 Days), the Council
will be legally able to put a plan of action in place with a third party contractor to
reprogramme & complete the contract. The likely time scale is difficult to predict, but
the process of appointing a third party contractor & re-engaging the sub-contractors
is likely to take circa 3 months. Additional costs will be incurred & at this time it is
impossible to give an indication of these. The costs will have to be met from the
unallocated basic needs grant that is still available.
96. The delivery of expansion of secondary and further SEN provision is now largely
being achieved through free school provision at the new Harris Academy at Belmont
and plans for ‘Free School 1’ and the proposed ‘Free School 2’ at Rosehill. The
delivery of the Harris Academy was led by LBS and was partially funded by the
Education, Skills and Funding Agency/Department for Education (ESFA/DfE),
including the costs associated with temporary school provision at Cumbrian House
pending completion of the new build school. Plans for ‘Free School 2’ are being led
by the ESFA/DfE and would expect to be fully funded by them, although it would
appear likely that the ESFA/DfE will make a request to the Council to support the
funding of any temporary provision in 2020 prior to the delivery of the new provision
in 2021.
97. The Council’s final basic need allocation of £1.698m is due to be received in 2019/20.
The allocation for 2020/21 has been confirmed as zero. As such it is thought that the
Council shouldn’t expect to receive any further basic need funding in the foreseeable
future. The government therefore expects that any new school places are delivered
through free schools or expansions funded by the ESFA, although it remains a
Council responsibility.

21

Agenda Item 6

Page 138

98. Announcements for funding to improve school building condition, (Schools Condition
Allocation), and Devolved Formula Capital are still to be confirmed, but are to be
awarded on the same basis as for 2018/19, according to numbers of maintained
school pupils. These numbers are decreasing each year as schools convert to
Academy status and the actual grant allocations will reduce accordingly.
99. The resources currently being applied to the Education programme over the next four
years are summarised in the table below.
Education Capital Programme Schemes & Projected Resources

Total Planned Education
Expenditure

2019/20

2020/21

2021/22

2022/23

Total

£’000

£’000

£’000

£’000

£’000

16,925

1,491

748

648

19,812

28

28

28

28

112

Basic Needs Allocation

1,698

0

0

0

1,698

Prior Yr Basic Need Grant

7,933

0

0

0

7,933

ESFA funding new free school

8,937

0

0

0

8,937

616

617

0

0

1,233

Schools Condition Allocation

1,550

700

600

500

3,350

Devolved Formula Capital to
Schools

732

120

120

120

1,092

Healthy Pupils Capital Grant

101

0

0

0

101

Total Resources

21,595

1,465

748

648

24,456

Surplus / (Deficit)

4,670

(26)

0

0

4,644

Education Resources
Corporate Resources - Capital
Receipts

Special Provision Fund

22

Page 139

Agenda Item 6

100.There is currently an unallocated remaining balance of basic need funding of
£4.644m. The potential calls on that funding are the cost of the temporary secondary
provision pending development of free school provision at Rosehill and possible
SEND / specialist school provision and the additional costs as a result of the
contractor issues at the new Hackbridge Primary School.
Capital Risk Management
101.There are a number of risks surrounding the capital programme, which inevitably
increase at a time of economic uncertainty. These risks are reviewed and managed
as part of the capital programme review process, in year capital monitoring and
specific project and risk management arrangements for larger schemes.
102.Cost Overspends / Project Timescale Slippage -In the initial stages of
development, major capital projects will have significant uncertainties. For example
these may relate to the planning process, the views / interest of stakeholders who
must be consulted, ground conditions, or the cost of refurbishing or demolishing
existing buildings (e.g. the cost of asbestos removal). As such all major projects
contain a defined contingency provision. The level of this contingency is set with
reference to the type of project, it’s complexity and risk items identified on the risk
register. Typically new build projects are allocated a lower contingency of an average
2.5 to 5% and refurbishment or alternation projects an average of 3.5 to 7%
depending on contract value.
103.Once a scheme begins spend and timescales for completion are monitored as part of
the monthly capital programme monitoring processes.
104.Capital Receipts -The Council has continued to ensure regular review in terms of its
assumptions for the inclusion of new capital receipts into the programme, particularly
given the difficulty around some of the sites. Each year planned capital receipts are
reviewed by the property and finance teams in terms of values, timescales and any
known risk factors that need to be taken into account.
105.Borrowing Costs -A provision for the revenue costs of future prudential borrowing
within the capital programme has been made within the revenue budget. This
allocation has been derived using estimates for interest rates over the coming four
year period. There is a risk that interest rates rise above these estimates affecting the
cost of this borrowing. This risk will be managed through the Council’s Treasury
Management Strategy ensuring that the cost of borrowing to the Council is
minimised.
106.Cost Price Inflation -There is increased uncertainty about the cost of projects due to
potential changes in the cost of materials and labour arising from changes in the
value of the pound relative to other currencies.

23

Agenda Item 6

Page 140

107.Right to Buy projections are incorrect and less net RTB receipts are available
to fund the capital programme (new build and acquisitions) - Prudent
assumptions included within four year projections. Will review each year and adjust
plans accordingly. RTB watch producing projections based on trends, historical data
etc
108.School Place Expansion -The programme to expand the number of primary school
places is now largely complete. However there is still some risk in terms of delivery of
secondary places and any changes to need over the medium term given the low level
of remaining basic need funding.
109.Non Repayment of Loans by Third Parties -There are a number of parameters
built into the arrangements for agreeing loan and equity financing which provide
some protection to the Council. In addition all loan financing is secured against
assets through collateral warranties.
110. The Council undertakes regular monitoring of the financial position of its wholly
owned companies as 100% shareholder. Annual reporting is also required as part of
the loan agreements that are in place. This should provide an early warning of any
potential issues and the Council then has the ability (through the loan arrangements)
to work with the company to find solutions to prevent a loan default.
111. Reduction in Value of Commercial Property -The market value of properties is
ascertained annually as part of the production of the statement of accounts.
Commercial Property investments are intended to be holdings for the medium to
longer term. Risk management mitigation as part of IPP arrangements includes
active management of the portfolio including review of the performance of individual
properties to feed into longer term disposal or refurbishment or reprovision decisions.
The Council has an earmarked reserve in place to assist with any investment needed
in properties. Despite an MRP exemption there is also the ability within revenue
budgets to start MRP provision.
Other Commercial Activity
Opportunity Sutton
112. In July 2013 the Strategy and Resources Committee agreed to set up Opportunity
Sutton Limited (OSL) a parent company with a single initial subsidiary company,
Sutton Decentralised Energy Network (SDEN) and the potential for further
subsidiaries to be added.
113. At that time, the Strategy and Resources Committee also recommended that Full
Council agree the set up a new Council sub committee responsible for decision
making and oversight on behalf of the Council as the sole shareholder and more
broadly to the oversight and governance arrangements. This sub committee is called
the Shareholders Board and its establishment was agreed by full Council in June
2015.

24

Page 141

Agenda Item 6

Sutton Decentralised Energy Network
114. As stated above SDEN is a wholly owned company of the Council and sits under the
holding company OSL. SDEN is a sustainable energy supplier that will provide low
carbon energy to homes and businesses in Sutton. The company will utilise waste
heat from the Beddington Energy Recovery Facility (ERF) and existing landfill gas
engines to reduce fossil fuel use, contributing to Sutton’s goal of becoming a zero
carbon borough by 2025.
115. In November 2015 SDEN had its outline business case agreed for phase one
development of heat infrastructure into the New Mill Quarter development site
managed by Barratts. The business case showed the projected positive cumulative
return for phase one for the company over 25 years of £1.54m. This first phase of
infrastructure is due to be completed in 2019.
116. The company has been trading since December 2017 and to date has a total of 118
customers on its first identified phase. The company is now looking at options for
expanding the network across the borough with longer term ambitions to expand
further across south London.
117. The council has provided SDEN with loan financing for the development of the capital
costs for the heat network but also a repayable short term overdraft facility to cover
immediate operating costs whilst the company builds its customer base. The loans to
the company are at a commercial interest rate despite the company falling outside of
state aid regulations.
Sutton Living
118. In July 2014 the Council’s Strategy and Resources Committee agreed the set up a
wholly owned housing development company, Sutton Living with the intention of
opening up the opportunity to influence the local housing market and make a
contribution to meeting London’s housing need.
119. The specific objectives of the company are:
●
●

●
●

To deliver new housing in the Borough across a range of tenures;
To contribute towards meeting existing and forecast demand for housing both
through the development of sites already identified and through development
on new sites, as yet unidentified;
To support the Council’s Greater London Authority Housing Zone programme;
To contribute to the General Fund through surpluses generated from housing
developed.

25

Agenda Item 6

Page 142

120.The council is currently agreeing loan terms for the company’s first development site,
at Wallington Public Hall. Financing for the scheme is anticipated to be in the form of
a mix of equity and loan financing. The loan will be at a commercial loan rate with
interest accruing and rolling up into the loan during the construction phase. When the
development is complete the financing agreements will be reviewed and a longer
term financing arrangement agreed with the Council including a similar mix of equity
and debt financing. Periods for review and revision will be included. Over the longer
term the intention is that the Council then receive a dividend payment on its equity
share.
Tram Link
121.The Council is working closely with TFL to deliver an extension of the tramlink
network, firstly to Sutton Town Centre and then on to the site for the London Cancer
Hub in Belmont.
London Cancer Hub
122.The Council is working in partnership with the Institute of Cancer Research (ICR) and
supported by the Royal Marsden NHS Trust to create the London Cancer Hub (LCH)
which has the ambition of becoming the world’s leading life science district,
specialising in cancer research and treatment. The Council has now purchased
several tranches of land from the Epsom & St Helier University Hospitals Trust
(E&SHT) as land assembly for the LCH. These land purchases have been funded by
short term borrowing whilst the longer term structure and commercial arrangements
of the LCH are developed.
IFRS 9
123.Each year under International Financial Reporting Standard (IFRS) 9 the council will
review all loan agreements in place to assess whether there are any impairments or
potential defaults on the loans that it has made to third parties. This assessment will
continue a review of all financing arrangements for wholly owned companies such as
Sutton Decentralised Energy Network and Sutton Living. Any assessed future
impairment on these loans will need to be recognised as a charge to revenue.
Appendices
Appendix I2 - Detailed Capital Programme for 2019/20 to 2022/23
Appendix I3 - Programme of Expenditure on Works to Council Properties
Appendix I4 -Programme of Expenditure on Corporate and Operational Buildings

26

CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2019-23
Directorate Sch no

Appendix I2
Scheme name

2019/20
Budget
£'000

2020/21
Budget
£'000

2021/22
Budget
£'000

2022/23
Budget
£'000

TOTAL
£'000

Existing
LBS
£'000

Specific New LBS Funding
Total
£'000
£'000
£'000

HOUSING

C100-8
C130
C131
C132
C160
NEW

EH & R
EH & R

C003
C033

EH & R
EH & R

C170
NEW

HRA
HRA Stock Repair and Improvements
Regeneration of Richmond Green - New Build
Ludlow Lodge - New Build
Fellowes Road - New Build
Property Acquisitions HRA
Phase 2 New Build
GF
Housing the Homeless
Improvements to travellers and gypsy site
provision
Estate Regeneration
Site Assembly

7,944
193
375
132
11,628
1,783

7,396
0
0
0
8,896
21,284

7,635
0
0
0
6,376
1,359

7,872
0
0
0
6,503
0

30,847
193
375
132
33,403
24,426

0
0
0
0
0
0

30,847
193
375
132
33,403
24,426

0
0
0
0
0
0

30,847
193
375
132
33,403
24,426

5,600
114

0
0

0
750

0
750

5,600
1,614

0
114

5,600
450

0
1,050

5,600
1,614

734
5,000

121
0

0
0

0
0

855
5,000

0
0

355
5,000

500
0

855
5,000

33,503

37,697

16,120

15,125

102,445

114

100,781

1,550

102,445

Devolved Grant
Carers Building Adaptations Top Up Fund
Computers For Looked After Children
School Conditions Allocation
Primary Expansions
Secondary Expansions
SEN Expansions
Healthy Pupils Capital Grant

732
18
10
1,550
1,319
13,049
146
101

120
18
10
700
74
569
0
0

120
18
10
600
0
0
0
0

120
18
10
500
0
0
0
0

1,092
72
40
3,350
1,393
13,618
146
101

0
60
30
0
0
0
0
0

1,092
0
0
3,350
1,393
13,618
146
101

0
12
10
0
0
0
0
0

1,092
72
40
3,350
1,393
13,618
146
101

Total Education

16,925

1,491

748

648

19,812

90

19,700

22

19,812

Total Housing

Page 143

EH & R
EH & R
EH & R
EH & R
EH & R
EH & R

EDUCATION
L011
L076
L085
L112
L113-6
L118
L119
NEW

Agenda Item 6

PEOPLE
PEOPLE
PEOPLE
PEOPLE
PEOPLE
PEOPLE
PEOPLE
PEOPLE

Directorate Sch no

Appendix I2
Scheme name

2019/20
Budget

2020/21
Budget

2021/22
Budget

2022/23
Budget

TOTAL

Existing
LBS

Specific New LBS Funding
Total

OTHER SCHEMES

EH & R
EH & R
EH & R
EH & R
EH & R
EH & R
EH & R
EH & R
EH & R
EH & R
EH & R

E002
E003
E004
E005
E018
E058
E062
E119
E145
E170
E191
E220-5
E235
E255
E257

Pavement Improvements/Resurfacing
Renovation Grants
Street Lighting
Highways Asset Maintenance
Mandatory Disabled Facilities Grant
Nature Conservation
Contaminated Land Projects
Priority Repairs Grant

Town Centre Masterplan Delivery

Flood Resistance & Resilience Measures
Heritage Lottery Fund - Beddington Park
Public Realm
CIL Neighbourhood Element
Area Wide Parking Scheme
Structural and Cosmetic Repairs to Multi
Storey Car Parks
E259
Parks Improvements
E260
Beddington Route and Places - Beddington
Village
E261
Beddington Route and Places - Beddington
Industrial Areas
E136
Corridors & Neighbourhoods - TFL
E264
Beddington Gateway - TFL
E220-5 Local Transport For London
NEW
Target Hardening to prevent encampments
and flytipping
E272
Moving Traffic Enforcement Cameras
NEW
Sutton cemetery works
NEW
SuDS in Suttons Schools
NEW
Renewal of bridge height signs

512
60
400
725
2,495
11
50
30
1,383
49
130
200
323
1,843
44

512
0
400
725
1,477
0
0
30
860
0
50
200
323
43
0

513
0
400
725
1,477
0
0
30
0
0
0
200
323
0
0

513
0
400
725
1,477
0
0
30
0
0
0
200
321
0
0

2,050
60
1,600
2,900
6,926
11
50
120
2,243
49
180
800
1,290
1,886
44

1,537
60
1,200
2,155
0
0
0
33
2,143
0
0
1,000
0
1,886
44

0
0
0
0
6,926
11
50
0
100
49
180
0
1,290
0
0

513
0
400
745
0
0
0
87
0
0
0
-200
0
0
0

2,050
60
1,600
2,900
6,926
11
50
120
2,243
49
180
800
1,290
1,886
44

40
48

40
0

40
0

40
0

160
48

120
48

0
0

40
0

160
48

140

0

0

0

140

140

0

0

140

890
50
100
177

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

890
50
100
177

0
0
0
0

890
50
100
0

0
0
0
177

890
50
100
177

280
40
120
100

0
0
90
65

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

280
40
210
165

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

280
40
210
165

280
40
210
165

Page 144

EH & R
EH & R
EH & R
EH & R
EH & R
EH & R
EH & R
EH & R
EH & R
EH & R
EH & R
EH & R
EH & R
EH & R
EH & R

Agenda Item 6

CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2019-23

CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2019-23
Directorate Sch no

Appendix I2
Scheme name

NEW

EH & R

NEW

EH & R
EH & R

NEW
NEW

PEOPLE

C523

Adult Social Services IT Replacement - Care
accounts

CE

R054

RES

R013

RES
RES
RES
RES

R152
R165
R166
NEW

Sutton Life Centre essential projector
replacement programme
Replacement Floodlights at David Weir
Leisure Centre
Energy Efficiency improvements to the IPP
Energy Efficiency and Carbon Reduction
programme

TOTAL

Existing Specific New LBS Funding
LBS
Total
245
0
0
245
245

150

0

0

0

150

0

0

150

150

55
100

55
100

55
100

55

220
300

0
0

220
300

0
0

220
300

36

0

0

0

36

0

36

0

36

Digital Programme

700

0

0

0

700

700

0

0

700

Information Management - Corporate IT
Refresh
Corporate Operational Buildings
Commercial Investment Property Portfolio
Russettings

801

350

350

350

1,851

1,501

0

350

1,851

759
6,000
18
25

808
6,000
0
0

762
0
0
0

762
0
0
0

3,091
12,000
18
25

2,329
0
18
0

0
12,000
0
0

762
0
0
25

3,091
12,000
18
25

Total Other Schemes

19,129

12,128

4,975

4,873

41,105

14,914

22,202

3,989

41,105

Capital Programme Total

69,557

51,316

21,843

20,646

163,362

15,118

142,683

5,561

163,362

eRecruitment system implementation

Page 145

EH & R

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23
Budget
Budget
Budget
Budget
245
0
0
0

Agenda Item 6

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix I3
Proposed HRA Capital Budget 2019 / 20
Programme Area

Project

Decent
2019/20
2019/20
Units
Homes Programmed
Related?
Works
Yes
£150,000

CROHM Energy efficiency
programme

External Works c100

External envelope (windows,
doors, walls, insulation) and
thermal efficiency

Yes

£422,700

275

External Works c100
Internal Works c101

Externals - Roofs
Kitchens, Bathrooms and WCs

Yes
Yes

£230,100
£482,600

20
133

Planned M+E c102

Electrical Upgrades

Yes

£300,000

200

Planned M+E c102

Warden Call Schemes

No

£120,000

3

Planned M+E c102

Heating

Yes

£995,000

498

Planned M+E c102

Communal Legionella Works

Yes

£35,000

Aids and Adaptations c104

Aids and Adaptations

No

£400,000

55

H+S (Fire) c106

Emergency Lighting

No

£175,000

360

H+S (Fire) c106

Fire safety works

No

£2,000,200

450+

Energy efficiency works to be integrated with other
external works To meet the SAP 69 targets set in
the environmental strategy
164 Window Replacements 96 Door Installs.
Additional external repairs arising from window and
roof renewal, and continuing programme of thermal
efficiency improvements arising from CROHM
analysis.
40 Roof replacements
68 Bathroom Installations 59 Kitchen Installations and
6 Box Bathrooms
200 major upgrades to dwelling and block wiring
installations
498 boiler replacements

Page 147

External Works c100

Notes 2019/20

Programme of major repairs arising from tank
inspections
Budget for demand led programme.
Installation of new and upgrade of existing
emergency lighting
Remedial works arising from Fire Risk
Assessments and installation of fire resistant front
entrance doors to 580 flats

Agenda Item 6

Yes

£50,000

Comprehensive Upgrade c109

EnergyLeap

No

£300,000

8

Communal Improvements c110

Communal areas and services

No

£527,400

250

Communal Improvements c110

Environmental Improvements

No

£350,000

300

External Works c100

Alexandra Gardens

No

£250,000

Planned M+E c102

Shanklin Lighting

No

£330,000

Replacement programme for the replacement of
communal lighting throughout the estate

External Works c100

Culvers Lodge

Yes

£200,000

Extensive major works to bring this property back
into the housing portfolio

Programme Management Fees

£626,000
£7,944,000

Demand led works arising from surveys
Match funding for £360k GLA grant for
comprehensive energy upgrades
Highest priority communal flooring upgrades, and
other communal upgrades including removal or
replacement of derelict sheds, potential garage
demolitions, walls and fencing replacements
Environmental and communal improvements
committed at Alcester Court, and other smaller
identified projects
Range of works requested by residents in
conjunction with potential new development works

Page 148

Asbestos

Agenda Item 6

H+S c106

Page 149

Agenda Item 6
Appendix I4

Proposed Expenditure on Corporate & Operational Buildings (ECOB) Rolling Programme

Property

Lead Project
Officer

Consultant/
Contractor

Works Description

Allocation (inc
fees)

2019-20 WORKS
FABRIC REPLACEMENT - C655
Denmark Road
Multiple Sites

Window Replacement
Fire Door replacement

-£
-£

50,000100,000-

MECHANICAL - C653
Mechanical Replacement Contingency
Cheam Resource Centre
Cheam Resource Centre

Contingency
Mechanical Works
Replacement of plumbing

-£
-£
-£

53,60012,400100,000-

ELECTRICAL - C652
Electrical Compliance Works
Denmark Road
Sutton Library
Civic

Contingency
Electrical Works (3 of 5)
Electrical Works (4 of 4)
Electrical Works (2 - 15)

-£
-£
-£
-£

35,00090,00050,000100,000-

Various works following WRA

-£

12,000-

ASBESTOS - C656
Annual Reinspections
HS
Denmark Road
Civic
Emergency Non-Project Asbestos Contingency

Asbestos Re-inspections
-£
Asbestos Removal to ground and first floor corridors
Floor Tile Removal
-£
Non-Project Asbestos Contingency
-£

20,000-

DDA works contingency - C651

Contingency

-£

12,000-

CAPITAL HEALTH AND SAFETY CONTINGENCY C650
General Contingency
Contingency
Totals
Budget 17/18
-£ 760,000.00-

-£
-£

12,000759,000-

LEGIONELLA - C654
Water Risk Remedials

EH

100,00012,000-

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 151

Agenda Item 6

APPENDIX J

TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY STATEMENT, MINIMUM REVENUE
PROVISION POLICY STATEMENT AND ANNUAL INVESTMENT STRATEGY
2019/20
SUMMARY
This appendix addresses the requirements of the prudential and treasury management codes
and sets out the treasury management strategy, borrowing and investment strategies and a
policy statement on the minimum revenue provision required for the repayment of debt.
1.

INTRODUCTION

1.1

Background

1.1.1 The Council is required to operate a balanced budget which broadly means that income raised
during the year will meet planned expenditure. Part of the treasury management operation is to
ensure that the cashflow for this is adequately planned, with cash being available when it is
needed. Where surplus monies are available these are invested in counterparties or instruments
commensurate with the Council’s low risk appetite, providing security and adequate liquidity
initially before considering investment return.
1.1.2 The second main function of the treasury management service is the funding of the Council’s
capital plans. These plans provide a guide to borrowing need, essentially the longer term cash
flow planning, to ensure that the Council can meet its capital spending obligations. This
management of longer term cash may involve arranging long or short term loans, or using
longer term cash flow surpluses. On occasion, when it is prudent and economic, any debt
previously drawn may be restructured to meet Council risk or cost objectives.
1.1.3 The contribution the treasury management function makes to the authority is critical, as the
balance of debt and investment operations ensure liquidity or the ability to meet spending
commitments as they fall due, either on day-to-day revenue or for larger capital projects. The
treasury operations will see a balance of the interest costs of debt and the investment income
arising from cash deposits affecting the available budget. Since cash balances generally result
from reserves and balances, it is paramount to ensure adequate security of the sums invested,
as a loss of principal will in effect result in a loss to the General Fund Balance.
1.1.4 Whilst any commercial initiatives or loans to third parties will impact on the treasury function,
these activities are generally classed as non-treasury activities, (arising usually from capital
expenditure),and are separate from the day to day treasury management activities.
1.1.5 CIPFA defines treasury management as:
‘The management of the organisation’s borrowing, investments and cash flows, its banking,
money market and capital market transactions; the effective control of the risks associated with
those activities; and the pursuit of optimum performance consistent with those risks’

1

Page 152

Agenda Item 6

APPENDIX J

1.1.6 Revised reporting is required for the 2019/20 reporting cycle due to revisions of the MHCLG
Investment Guidance, the MHCLG Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) Guidance, the CIPFA
Prudential Code and the CIPFA Treasury Management Code. The primary reporting changes
include the introduction of a capital strategy, to provide a longer-term focus to the capital plans,
and greater reporting requirements surrounding any commercial activity undertaken under the
Localism Act 2011. The capital strategy is being reported separately (see Appendix I to the
main budget report for 2019/20).
1.2

Reporting Requirements
Capital Strategy

1.2.1 In 2017 the Prudential Code and Treasury Management Code were revised to include a new
requirement for local authorities to prepare a capital strategy report which will provide the
following:
●
●
●

a high-level long term overview of how capital expenditure, capital financing and treasury
management activity contribute to the provision of services
an overview of how the associated risk is managed
the implications for future financial sustainability

1.2.2 The aim of the capital strategy is to outline the overall long-term policy objectives and resulting
capital strategy requirements, governance procedures and risk appetite.
1.2.3 The capital strategy is reported separately from the Treasury Management Strategy Statement;
non-treasury investments will be reported through the former. This ensures the separation of the
core treasury function under security, liquidity and yield principles, and the policy and
commercialism investments usually driven by expenditure on an asset. The capital strategy will
show:
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

The corporate governance arrangements for these types of activities;
Any service objectives relating to the investments;
The expected income, costs and resulting contribution;
The debt related to the activity and the associated interest costs;
The payback period (MRP policy);
For non-loan type investments, the cost against the current market value;
The risks associated with each activity.

1.2.4 Where a physical asset is being bought, details of market research, advisers used, (and their
monitoring), ongoing costs and investment requirements and any credit information will be
disclosed, including the ability to sell the asset and realise the investment cash.
1.2.5 To demonstrate the proportionality between the treasury operations and the non-treasury
operation, high-level comparators are shown throughout this report.
Treasury Management Reporting
1.2.6

The Council is required to receive and approve as a minimum, three reports each year, which
incorporate a variety of policies, estimates and actuals. These reports are required to be
adequately scrutinised by Members before being recommended to the Council. This role is
undertaken by the Audit and Governance Committee, which then reports to Full Council. The
three reports are:

2

Page 153

Agenda Item 6

APPENDIX J

(1) Treasury Management Strategy and Prudential and Treasury Indicators (this report)
covering:
●

Capital plans (including prudential indicators);

●

Minimum Revenue Provision Policy Statement (how residual capital expenditure is
charged to revenue over time);

●

Treasury Management Strategy (how the investments and borrowings are to be
organised) including treasury indicators; and

●

Investment Strategy (the parameters on how investments are to be managed).

(2) Mid Year Treasury Management Report –This report updates members on the progress of
the capital and treasury management positions, amending prudential indicators as necessary
and assesses whether the treasury strategy is meeting needs or whether any policies require
revision. In addition the Audit Committee receives quarterly update reports.
(3) Annual Treasury Report – This provides details of a selection of actual prudential and
treasury indicators and actual treasury operations after the year end compared to estimates
within the strategy.
1.3

Treasury Management Strategy for 2019/20

1.3.1 The proposed strategy for 2019/20 covers the following:
Capital issues
the capital expenditure plans and the associated prudential indicators;
●
the minimum revenue provision (MRP) policy.
Treasury management issues
●
the current treasury position;
●
treasury indicators which limit the treasury risk and activities of the Council;
●
prospects for interest rates;
●
the borrowing strategy;
●
policy on borrowing in advance of need;
●
debt rescheduling;
●
the investment strategy;
●
creditworthiness policy; and
●

1.3.2 These elements cover the requirements of the Local Government Act 2003, the CIPFA
Prudential Code, the MHCLG Minimum Revenue Provision Guidance, the CIPFA Treasury
Management Code and MHCLG Investment Guidance.
1.4

Knowledge & Skills

1.4.1

The CIPFA Code requires the responsible officer to ensure that Members with responsibility for
treasury management receive adequate training in treasury management. This especially
applies to members responsible for scrutiny. Training is provided for all new members
overseeing treasury management and other sessions can be arranged as required.

3

Agenda Item 6

Page 154

APPENDIX J

1.4.2

Officers responsible for treasury management are suitably trained to ensure that the appropriate
level of skills and knowledge are available to the Council. Officers and members are also
supported through the skills and knowledge provided by the Council’s external treasury
management advisors, Link Asset Services, Treasury Solutions. However the Council also
recognises that responsibility for treasury management decisions remains with itself and
ensures that undue reliance is not placed upon its external service providers.

2.

CAPITAL PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS FOR 2019/20 TO 2022/23
The prudential code requires the Council to have set a number of forward looking prudential
indicators to both support and record local decision making with regard to capital expenditure
and treasury management decisions. The full set of indicators is shown in Annex 1. Each is now
discussed in turn.

2.1

Capital expenditure

2.1.1 The Council’s capital expenditure plans are the key driver of treasury management activity. The
first prudential indicator is a summary of the Council’s capital expenditure plans as detailed in
the capital strategy shown in Appendix I to the budget report.
2.2

The Council’s net financing need (Capital Financing Requirement)

2.2.1 The third prudential indicator is the Council’s Capital Financing Requirement (CFR). The CFR is
the total historic outstanding capital expenditure which has not yet been financed from either
revenue or capital resources. It is essentially a measure of the Council’s indebtedness and,
hence, its underlying borrowing need. Any capital expenditure shown within the capital
programme in Appendix I, which has not immediately been paid for through a revenue or capital
resource, will increase the CFR.
2.2.2 The CFR does not increase indefinitely, as the minimum revenue provision is a statutory annual
revenue charge which broadly reduces the indebtedness in line with each asset’s life, and
thereby charges the economic consumption of capital assets as they are used.
2.2.3

Current CFR projections are as follows:

4

Page 155

Agenda Item 6

APPENDIX J

Table 1

£’000

2018/19
Estimate

2019/20
Estimate

2020/21
Estimate

2021/22
Estimate

2022/23
Estimate

General Fund

143,667

150,287

145,457

141,008

135,544

HRA

178,677

188,796

208,583

214,327

218,879

66,555

72,555

78,555

78,555

78,555

388,899

411,638

432,595

433,890

432,978

27,774

22,739

20,957

1,295

(912)

Net financing need for the year

31,281

26,345

24,790

5,144

2,936

Less Minimum Revenue Provision,
Voluntary Revenue Provision and
other financing movements

(3,508)

(3,606)

(3,833)

(3,849)

(3,848)

Movement in CFR

27,774

22,739

20,957

1,295

(912)

Capital Financing Requirement (CFR)

Commercial Activities / Non Financial
Investments
Total CFR
Movement in CFR
Movement in CFR represented by

2.2.4 The tables above demonstrate the size and scope of commercial activity in relation to the
Council’s overall financial position.
2.3

Minimum Revenue Provision Policy Statement

2.3.1 Where capital expenditure has been funded through the use of borrowing, the Council is
required to set aside an amount from revenue each year to provide for the eventual repayment
of this debt. The Council is required to provide an annual policy statement on how the
methodology has been implemented. This is set out in Annex 2.
2.3.2

There is no requirement for the HRA to make a minimum revenue provision but there is a
requirement for a charge for depreciation to be made. In the HRA business plan the Council will
set aside funding in an investment reserve from 2019/20 for the repayment of the HRA self
financing loan of £141m when it matures in 2042.

2.4

Core funds and expected investment balances

2.4.1 The application of resources either to finance capital expenditure or other budget decisions to
support the revenue budget will have an ongoing impact on investments unless resources are
supplemented each year from new sources (asset sales etc.). Estimates of year-end balances,
for each resource and anticipated year-end cash flow balances are taken into account to
establish the likely level of resources available for investment.

5

Page 156

Agenda Item 6
3.

BORROWING

3.1

Current portfolio position

APPENDIX J

3.1.1 The capital expenditure plans set out in Section 2 provide details of the service activity of the
Council. The treasury management function ensures that the Council’s cash is organised in
accordance with the relevant professional codes, so that sufficient cash is available to meet this
service activity and the Council’s capital strategy. This will involve both the organisation of the
cash flow and, where capital plans require, the organisation of appropriate borrowing facilities.
The strategy covers the relevant treasury / prudential indicators, the current and projected debt
positions and the annual investment strategy.
3.1.2 The Council’s actual and projected treasury portfolio position is summarised below. The table
shows the actual external debt, against the underlying capital borrowing need (the CFR),
highlighting any over or under borrowing.
3.1.3

The Council will continue to provide loan finance to a number of council wholly owned
companies, including Sutton Decentralised Energy Network (SDEN) and Sutton Living.

Table 2

£’000

2018/19
Estimate

2019/20
Estimate

2020/21
Estimate

2021/22
Estimate

2022/23
Estimate

267,471

295,881

302,128

329,359

352,891

22,050

(9,000)

3,605

0

(4,500)

Other long term liabilities at 1
April

5,202

6,360

15,247

23,626

23,532

Expected change in other
long term liabilities

1.158

8,887

8,379

(94)

(94)

Actual gross debt at 31
March

295,881

302,128

329,359

352,891

371,829

Capital Financing
Requirement

388,899

411,638

432,595

433,890

432,978

93,018

109,510

103,236

80,999

61,149

External debt
Debt at 1 April
Expected change in debt

Under / (over) borrowing

6

Page 157

Agenda Item 6

APPENDIX J

3.1.4 Within the above figures the level of debt relating to commercial activities / non-financial
investment is:

£’000
Actual debt as at
31 March (£m)
Percentage of
total external
debt (%)

2018/19
Estimate

2019/20
Estimate

2020/21
Estimate

2021/22
Estimate

2022/23
Estimate

54,825

75,298

95,771

95,771

95,771

18.53

24.92

29.08

27.14

25.76

3.1.5 At the end of the third quarter 2018/19, the Council had external debt totalling £287.2m with an
average annual borrowing rate of 3.4%. Of the total, £246.9m has been borrowed from the
Public Works Loan Board (PWLB), £15.0m from other local authorities and £25.3m from
individual banks.
3.1.6 The borrowing from individual banks is through five Lender Option Borrower Option (LOBO)
loans held with four counterparties with interest rates in the range 3.49% to 4.55%. These are
simple structured loans with no complicated mechanisms, which are present in other LOBOS
e.g. inverse floating rate structures. Under these arrangements, the lender has the option to
increase rates but, should it do so, the Council can choose to redeem without penalty. The
Council’s treasury advisors, Link Asset Services, carried out a review of the Councils LOBOs in
2016, the outcome of which was reported orally to the 8 December 2016 Audit Committee. This
review concluded that levels of risk with the Council’s LOBO loans were low, with just a small
risk that the lender may look to increase the interest rate in the future. However, if this happens
the Council has access to the PWLB for refinancing with no penalty applied.
3.1.7

The Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) continues to be the main source of long term loans for
the Council. However, the Council will continue to seek out alternative cheaper options where
possible such as the use of LOBO loans or through the Municipal Bonds Agency. The Council
continues to benefit from the 20 basis points (0.2%) reduction on the interest rates on loans
from PWLB under the ‘certainty rate’ arrangements following the provision of information on the
Council’s plans for long-term borrowing and associated capital spending to Government.

3.1.8

A graph showing the maturity profile of the Council’s long term debt as at the end of the third
quarter 2018/19 is attached at Annex 3. The Council’s loan portfolio will be kept under review to
see if savings can be made by further debt restructuring. No restructuring has been undertaken
during 2018/19 as market conditions have not been favourable. Any opportunities in the coming
year will continue to be explored although this position is not expected to change in the short
term.

3.1.9 The Council approved a temporary borrowing limit of £82.4m for 2018/19. Due to a reduction in
underlying cash balances held by the Council it as been necessary to undertake temporary
borrowing during the first nine months of 2018/19. The total amount of temporary borrowing
undertaken during that time was £135.3m. The average loan was for £3.8m for a duration of 15
days. The temporary borrowing limit for 2019/20 will be set at £85.4m.

7

Agenda Item 6

Page 158

APPENDIX J

3.1.10 Within the range of prudential indicators there are a number of key indicators to ensure that the
Council operates its activities within well-defined limits. One of these is that the Council needs
to ensure that its gross debt does not, except in the short term, exceed the total of the CFR in
the preceding year plus the estimates of any additional CFR for 2019/20 and the following two
financial years. This allows some flexibility for limited early borrowing for future years, but
ensures that borrowing is not undertaken for revenue or speculative purposes. The Strategic
Director of Resources reports that the Council complied with this prudential indicator in the
current year and does not envisage difficulties for the future. This view takes into account
current commitments, existing plans, and the proposals in this budget report.
3.2

Treasury Indicators: limits to borrowing activity

3.2.1 The operational boundary. This is the overall limit which external debt is not normally
expected to exceed. This would usually be a similar figure to the CFR, but may be lower or
higher depending on the levels of actual debt and the ability to fund under-borrowing by other
cash resources.
Table 3

Operational boundary
£’000
Debt
Other long term liabilities
Commercial Activities /
Non Financial
Investments
Total

2018/19
Estimate

2019/20
Estimate

2020/21
Estimate

2021/22
Estimate

2022/23
Estimate

322,344

339,083

354,040

355,335

354,423

4,260

4,674

4,580

4,486

4,392

68,654

83,127

97,601

97,601

97,601

395,258

426,884

456,221

457,422

456,416

3.2.2 The authorised limit for external debt. A further key prudential indicator represents a control
on the maximum level of borrowing. This is a legal limit beyond which external debt is
prohibited, and this limit needs to be set or revised by the full Council. It reflects the level of
external debt which, while not desired, could be afforded in the short term, but is not sustainable
in the longer term. This is the statutory limit determined under section 3 (1) of the Local
Government Act 2003. The Government retains an option to control either the total of all
councils’ plans, or those of a specific council, although this power has not yet been exercised.
The Council is recommended to approve the authorised limit as part of the approval of the
Treasury Strategy and Prudential Indicators.

8

Page 159

Agenda Item 6

APPENDIX J

Table 4

Authorised limit £’000
Debt

2018/19
Estimate

2019/20
Estimate

2020/21
Estimate

2021/22
Estimate

2022/23
Estimate

342,344

359,083

374,040

375,335

374,423

4,260

4,674

4,580

4,486

4,392

68,654

83,127

97,601

97,601

97,601

415,258

446,884

476,221

477,422

476,416

Other long term
liabilities
Commercial Activities /
Non Financial
Investments
Total

3.2.3 To manage interest rate exposure, loans at fixed rates can be arranged up to the authorised limit
at maximum, whilst those at variable rates are limited to 25% of this level. Exposure levels are
monitored on a continuing basis.
3.2.4 Separately, the Council was also limited to a maximum HRA CFR through the HRA self-financing
regime. This limit has now been abolished.
3.2.5 There are three debt related treasury activity limits. The purpose of these is to restrain the activity
of the treasury function within certain limits thereby managing risk and reducing the impact of
any adverse movement in interest rates. However if these are set to be too restrictive they will
impair the opportunities to reduce costs/ improve performance. The indicators are:
●
●
●

Upper limit on variable interest rate exposure. This identifies a maximum limit for variable
interest rates based upon the debt position net of investments;
Upper limit on fixed interest rate exposure. This is similar to the previous indicator and
covers a maximum limit on fixed interest rates;
Maturity structure of borrowing. These gross limits are set to reduce the Council’s
exposure to large fixed sums falling due for refinancing.

The indicators that the Council is asked to approve are shown in Annex 1.
3.3

Prospects for interest rates

3.3.1

Interest rates are dependent on the outlook for inflation which in turn reflects the prospects for
the economy. The Bank of England increased base rate to 0.75% in August 2018 when
Consumer Prices Index (CPI) was above the 2% target at 2.7%. The Monetary Policy
Committee (MPC) took the view that with a falling unemployment rate together with rising
labour costs the economy was experiencing little slack. The MPC expect some excess demand
by late 2019 which was forecast to increase over the next 2-3 years. Over the forecast period
inflation was expected to remain above target until the third year and that was why the decision
was made to increase base rate.

3.3.2 In the Bank of England’s November inflation report the economy was judged to be in balance
with forecast GDP averaging 1.75% over the next 3 years. This is marginally higher than the
forecast growth in supply capacity at 1.5% which creates the excess demand in the economy
and will require further increases in base rate to bring inflation back to target. These increases
in base rate will be gradual as base rate is expected to reach 1.4% in quarter 4 2021. The
economic forecasts assume that the stock of UK government debt purchased by central bank
reserves remains at £435 billion and also the stock of corporate bonds remains at £10 billion

9

Page 160

Agenda Item 6

3.3.3

APPENDIX J

The Bank of England’s forecasts assume a smooth transition out of the European Union. The
MPC has stated that depending on the nature of the UK’s departure, monetary policy could go
in either direction. A successful departure would increase business and consumer confidence
with a corresponding impact on GDP and inflationary pressures. An unsuccessful departure
would likely have the reverse impact except that inflation may increase if Sterling depreciates
further.

3.3.4 In the light of these uncertainties Link Asset Services have provided some forecast rates as
shown in Table 6 below. Their forecast for base rate is higher than that in the Bank of England’s
November report, ending the forecast period at 2.20%. PWLB rates are expected to increase by
around 20 basis points per annum from 2020 to end the forecast period 90 basis points higher
than January 2019.
Table 6. Link Asset Services Interest Rate View
Interest
Rates

3.4

Current Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast
Jan
2019 Mar 2019 Mar 2020 Mar 2021 Mar 2022

Bank Rate

0.75%

0.75%

1.25%

1.50%

2.20%

PWLB 25 yr rate*

2.81%

2.90%

3.20%

3.40%

3.60%

PWLB 50yr rate*

2.66%

2.70%

3.00%

3.20%

3.40%

Borrowing strategy
General

3.4.1

Currently the Council’s actual long term borrowing is well below its CFR limit. This difference
represents the extent to which the Council has been financing capital investment from internal
cash balances. This is a consequence of the Council’s treasury management strategy which
manages the Council’s cash flows in an integrated way so that external borrowing arises as a
consequence of all the financial transactions of the Council and not simply those arising from
capital expenditure. This approach has ensured that debt levels, and the associated revenue
costs of financing that debt, have been kept to a minimum. The Strategic Director of Resources
will monitor interest rates in financial markets and consider necessary action if interest rates
appear to be on an upward trend.
HRA Borrowing

3.4.2 A major influence on the Council’s borrowing strategy in the future is the inclusion of significant
HRA debt through the settlement payment made to Government under HRA Reform (self
financing) in March 2012. The payment totalled £141.1m and significantly increased the level of
debt that the Council holds. The Council was previously limited to a maximum level of HRA debt
called the debt ceiling. This ceiling was set as part of the self financing regime. The ceiling was
abolished as part of announcements in the Chancellor’s Budget.

10

Page 161

Agenda Item 6

APPENDIX J

3.4.3 The Council is applying the two pool option to calculate interest due from the HRA and the
General Fund in relation to external loans. This option splits the Council’s borrowing into two
pools, one for the General Fund and one for the HRA. Within this arrangement the underlying
principles are:
●
●
●

there is no detriment to the General Fund
any solution is broadly equitable for both the HRA and General Fund
the HRA is given a greater degree of independence, certainty and control over its
borrowing charges, subject to the overriding corporate interests of the Council

General Fund Borrowing
3.4.4 Long term funding needs have traditionally been met from the PWLB. However, long term fixed
market loans rates such as LOBOs can often be below the PWLB rates for the equivalent
maturity periods, although it is important that an appropriate balance is maintained between
PWLB and this type of market debt in the debt portfolio. This is because LOBO’s are only fixed
during the initial primary period of the loan (typically 3 to 5 years) and beyond that the lender
has the option to change the interest rate and, should it do so, the Council has the option to
repay the loan. This introduces a level of interest rate risk if the Council has a large proportion of
its debt in the form of LOBOs. The current split between PWLB and market loans is 90/10.
3.4.5 The Local Government Association has been working with local authorities to set up a Municipal
Bonds Agency. The Council has become a shareholder, having invested in the establishment of
the Agency. The Agency is now in operation and is due to be offering loans to local authorities
in the near future. It is envisaged that the borrowing rates will be lower than those offered by
the PWLB. The Council will consider making use of this new option when it becomes necessary
to take on additional external borrowing.
3.4.6 The Council will continue its policy of maintaining a planned and stable maturity pattern for its
loans whilst borrowing as cheaply as possible using all available prudent market instruments.
3.4.7 There is one natural maturity of an existing PWLB loan due in the next three years. The value of
the loan is £95k and it has an existing interest rate of 5.125%. It is unlikely that this will be
replaced, however any refinancing would result in a small revenue saving to the Council and
this has been built into the budget plans.
3.5
Policy on borrowing in advance of need
3.5.1 The Council will not generally borrow more than or in advance of its needs purely in order to seek
to profit from the investment of the extra sums borrowed. A proportion of the increase in the
CFR will be linked to the commercial activity that the authority is carrying out. Borrowing will
take place for this on the basis that the commercial activity will involve acquiring assets with a
value to the authority, generate an income to support service provision and be self financing.
3.5.2 Risks associated with any borrowing in advance activity will be subject to prior appraisal and
subsequent reporting through the mid-year or annual reporting mechanism.

11

Page 162

Agenda Item 6
3.6

APPENDIX J

Debt rescheduling

3.6.1 The Council will continue to look for opportunities to reduce the cost of outstanding debt such as
looking at options involving switching from long term to short term debt or refinancing using
other sources of loan finance such as LOBOs. Any such exercises will be undertaken in line
with the Council’s treasury management strategy and the reasons for any rescheduling will be
either to generate cash savings and/ or discounted cash flow savings, helping to fulfil the
borrowing strategy for 2019/20 or to enhance the balance of the overall debt portfolio.
4.

ANNUAL INVESTMENT STRATEGY

4.1

Current portfolio position

4.1.1

During the first six months of 2018/19 the Council has had surplus funds available for
investment. Available balances totalled £21.9m at the beginning of the year and had risen to
£36.4m at the end of December. During the year these funds were available to lend on a
temporary basis, with the in year fluctuation largely dependent on the timing of payments,
receipt of Council Tax and grants and progress of the capital programme. Interest earned during
the period totalled £0.1m and represented a weighted average interest rate earned by the
Council of 0.68%. This compares favourably with the average of the 7 day and 3 month LIBID
(London Interbank Bid Rate) figure of 0.57%.

4.1.2

In 2019/20 the Council has continued to make use of Money Market Funds (MMFs) to manage
liquidity risk. A 95 day notice account with Santander has also continued to be used. At the
start of the year the rate on this account was 0.60%, this was increased to 0.85% from 1
September.

4.2

Investment policy

4.2.1 The MHCLG and CIPFA have extended the meaning of ‘investments’ to include both financial
and non-financial investments.
This report deals solely with financial investments.
Non-financial investments, essentially the purchase of income yielding assets, are covered in
the Capital Strategy (Appendix I to the Budget Report).
4.2.2

The Council’s investment policy has regard to the following: ●
●
●

MHCLG’s Guidance on Local Government Investments (“the Guidance”)
CIPFA Treasury Management in Public Services Code of Practice and Cross Sectoral
Guidance Notes 2017 (“the Code”)
CIPFA Treasury Management Guidance Notes 2018

4.2.3 The Council’s investment priorities will be security first, portfolio liquidity second and then yield,
(return).
4.2.4 In accordance with the above guidance from the MHCLG and CIPFA, and in order to minimise
the risk to investments, the Council applies robust due diligence comprising minimum
acceptable credit criteria in order to generate a list of high creditworthy counterparties. This also
enables diversification and thus avoidance of concentration risk. The key ratings used to
monitor counterparties are the Short Term and Long Term ratings.
4.2.5

Ratings will not be the sole determinant of the quality of an institution; it is important to
continually assess and monitor the financial sector on both a micro and macro basis and in
relation to the economic and political environments in which institutions operate. The
assessment will also take account of information that reflects the opinion of the markets. To
achieve this consideration the Council will engage with its advisors to maintain a monitor on

12

Page 163

Agenda Item 6

APPENDIX J

market pricing such as “credit default swaps” and overlay that information on top of the credit
ratings.
4.2.6 Other information sources used will include the financial press, share prices and other such
information pertaining to the banking sector in order to establish the most robust scrutiny
process on the suitability of potential investment counterparties.
4.2.7

This authority has defined the list of types of investment instruments that the treasury
management team are authorised to use. This list is shown in Annex 4. This includes the
categories of ‘specified’ and ‘non-specified’ investments.
●
●

4.3

Specified investments are those with a high level of credit quality and subject to a
maturity limit of one year.
Non-specified investments are those with less high credit quality, may be for periods in
excess of one year, and/or are more complex instruments which require greater
consideration by members and officers before being authorised for use.

Creditworthiness policy

4.3.1 The Council applies the creditworthiness service provided by Link Asset Services. This service
employs a sophisticated modelling approach utilising credit ratings from the three main credit
rating agencies - Fitch, Moody’s and Standard & Poor’s. The credit ratings of counterparties are
supplemented with the following overlays:
● credit watches and credit outlooks from credit rating agencies;
● Credit Default Swaps (CDS) spreads to give early warning of likely changes in credit
ratings;
● sovereign ratings to select counterparties from only the most creditworthy countries.
4.3.2

This modelling approach combines credit ratings, credit watches and credit outlooks in a
weighted scoring system which is then combined with an overlay of CDS spreads. The end
product is a series of colour coded bands which indicate the relative creditworthiness of
counterparties. These colour codes are used by the Council to determine the duration for
investments. The Council therefore uses counterparties within the following durational bands:
Yellow (AAA rated Government debt or its equivalent) up to 5 years (unlimited monetary
amount);
Purple £20m, up to 2 years;
Blue £20m, up to 1 year (only applies to nationalised or semi nationalised UK banks);
Orange £17.5m, up to 1 year;
Red £15m, up to 6 months;
Green £12.5m up to 100 days;
No colour - not to be used.

4.3.3

All counterparties and their credit ratings are monitored weekly. The Council is alerted to
changes to ratings of all three agencies through its use of the Link Asset Services’
creditworthiness service. if a downgrade results in the counterparty / investment scheme no
longer meeting the Council’s minimum criteria, its further use as a new investment will be
withdrawn immediately. In addition to the use of credit ratings the Council will be advised of
information in movements in credit default swap spreads against the iTraxx benchmark and
other market data on a daily basis via its Passport website, provided exclusively to it by Link
Asset Services. Extreme market movements may result in downgrade of an institution or
removal from the Council’s lending list.

13

Page 164

Agenda Item 6

4.4

APPENDIX J

UK banks – Ring Fencing

4.4.1 The largest UK banks, (those with more than £25bn of retail / Small and Medium-sized
Enterprise (SME) deposits), were required, by UK law, to separate core retail banking services
from their investment and international banking activities by 1st January 2019. This is known as
“ring-fencing”. Whilst smaller banks with less than £25bn in deposits are exempt, they can
choose to opt up. Several banks are very close to the threshold already and so may come into
scope in the future regardless.
4.4.2 Ring-fencing is a regulatory initiative created in response to the global financial crisis. It
mandates the separation of retail and SME deposits from investment banking, in order to
improve the resilience and resolvability of banks by changing their structure. In general, simpler,
activities offered from within a ring-fenced bank, (RFB), will be focused on lower risk, day-to-day
core transactions, whilst more complex and “riskier” activities are required to be housed in a
separate entity, a non-ring-fenced bank, (NRFB). This is intended to ensure that an entity’s core
activities are not adversely affected by the acts or omissions of other members of its group.
4.4.3 While the structure of the banks included within this process may have changed, the
fundamentals of credit assessment have not. The Council will continue to assess the
newly-formed entities in the same way that it does others and those with sufficiently high
ratings, (and any other metrics considered), will be considered for investment purposes.
4.5

Approved countries for investments

4.5.1

Other than the UK the Council will only use approved counterparties from countries with a
minimum sovereign credit rating of AA- from Fitch Ratings (or equivalent from other agencies if
Fitch does not provide).

4.6

Investment Strategy

4.6.1

Over the last few years the Council has used internal resources where possible to fund capital
expenditure through internal borrowing instead of undertaking external borrowing. This has
ensured the most efficient use of resources since currently the cost of external borrowing
significantly exceeds the level of interest that can be earned on cash investments. However the
Council is now reaching a point whereby internal resources are at the minimum level required to
cover fluctuations in the monthly cash flow requirements. In the future any new capital
expenditure is likely to be funded by external borrowing.

4.6.2

Investments are made with reference to core balances and cash flow requirements and the
outlook for short term interest rates (i.e. rates for investments up to 12 months).

4.6.3

The bank base rate is forecast to increase steadily but slowly over the next few years to reach
2.2% by quarter 1 2022. Bank rate forecasts for financial year ends (march) are as follows:
●
●
●
●

4.6.4

2018/19 0.75%
2019/20 1.25%
2020/21 1.5%
2021/22 2.2%

Given the low investment rate environment and the low level of internal resources available for
longer term investment the Council will continue to use Money Market Funds that are AAA rated
with at least one of the three credit ratings agencies. The Council may also use enhanced

14

Page 165

Agenda Item 6

APPENDIX J

money market funds with a minimum AAA fS1 rating or equivalent. It will also use call accounts
and notice accounts with approved counterparties for deposits placed directly with institutions to
minimise risk.

4.7
Implementation of IFRS 9
4.7.1 As a result of the change in accounting standards for 2018/19 under IFRS 9, the council will
consider the implications of investment instruments which could result in an adverse movement
in the value of the amount invested and resultant changes at the end of the year to the General
Fund.
4.8
Investment returns benchmarking
4.8.1 The Council will use the 7 day and 3 month LIBID as investment benchmarks to assess the
performance of its investment portfolio.
4.9

Heritable Bank investment

4.9.1

On 7 October 2008, Heritable Bank, a UK subsidiary of Landsbanki was put into administration
by the High Court in London. This followed the nationalisation of Landsbanki by the Icelandic
Government during the global banking crisis of Autumn 2008. The Council had a £5.5m on
deposit with Heritable Bank when it was put into administration and these funds were frozen.

4.9.2

Ernst and Young were appointed as the administrators for Heritable Bank and are required to
administer the affairs of the bank and secure the best possible outcome for the creditors of the
bank including the Council. The total funds recovered to date are just over £5.4m, representing
around 98p in the pound. The administrators have retained a reserve to provide for legal costs
and expenses until the conclusion of the administration. They do not intend to make further
distributions to unsecured creditors until all outcomes are fully known.

4.9.3

The Council has initiated a claim against Landisbanki, the parent company of Heritable Bank.
The claim is dependent on the conclusion of the administration of Heritable, after which no
further dividend payments will be made to creditors. If the Council receives any further amounts
from Heritable, these will be offset against the subsequent claim against Landisbanki.

15

Page 166

Agenda Item 6

APPENDIX J

Annex 1 -Summary Prudential Indicators

STATUTORY PRUDENTIAL
INDICATORS (to support the
Council’s capital financing
requirement)

2018/19
Estimate

2019/20
Estimate

2020/21
Estimate

2021/22
Estimate

2022/23
Estimate

£’000

£’000

£’000

£’000

£’000

Capital expenditure:
General Fund

76,596

47,502

13,740

6,473

6,271

HRA

27,531

22,055

37,576

15,370

14,375

Total

104,127

69,557

51,316

21,843

20,646

2.52

2.54

2.71

2.74

2.76

143,667

150,287

145,457

141,008

135,544

66,555

72,555

78,555

78,555

78,555

HRA

178,677

188,796

208,583

214,327

218,879

Total

388,899

411,638

432,595

433,890

432,978

Brought forward 1 April

361,125

388,899

411,638

432,595

433,890

Carried forward 31 March

388,899

411,638

432,595

433,890

432,978

27,774

22,739

20,957

1,295

(912)

Proportion of financing
costs to net revenue stream:
General Fund
Capital Financing
Requirement as at 31 March:
General Fund
Commercial Activities / Non
Financial Investments

Annual change in Capital
Financing Requirement

16

Page 167

STATUTORY TREASURY
MANAGEMENT
INDICATORS

Agenda Item 6

APPENDIX J

2018/19
Estimate

2019/20
Estimate

2020/21
Estimate

2021/22
Estimate

2022/23
Estimate

£’000

£’000

£’000

£’000

£’000

342,344

359,083

374,040

375,335

374,423

4,260

4,674

4,580

4,486

4,392

68,654

83,127

97,601

97,601

97,601

415,258

446,884

476,221

477,422

476,416

322,344

339,083

354,040

355,335

354,423

4,260

4,674

4,580

4,486

4,392

68,654

83,127

97,601

97,601

97,601

395,258

426,884

456,221

457,422

456,416

91,484

91,283

Authorised limit for external
debt:
Borrowing
Other long term liabilities
Commercial / Non Financial
Investments
Total
Operational boundary for
external debt:
Borrowing
Other long term liabilities
Commercial / Non Financial
Investments
Total
Annual borrowing
requirement based on
operational boundary
Total
Upper Limit on investments in
excess of 365 days
Maturity Structure of fixed rate borrowing
Upper
Limit

Lower Limit

Under 12 months

15%

0%

12 months and within 24 months

15%

0%

24 months and within 5 years

45%

0%

5 years and within 10 years

75%

0%

10 years and above

100%

0%

Temporary Borrowing Limit
20% of the operational boundary

79,052

85,377

17

91,244

Agenda Item 6

Page 168

APPENDIX J
ANNEX 2

MINIMUM REVENUE PROVISION POLICY STATEMENT 2019/20

The Council will continue to implement the Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) guidance and assess
its MRP in accordance with the main recommendations contained within the guidance issued by the
Secretary of State under section 21(1A) of the Local Government Act 2003.
The guidance includes specific Options Local Authorities could use for calculating MRP:
●

●

●

●

Option 1 – Regulatory Method – For expenditure incurred before 1 April 2008 and expenditure
incurred on or after that date which is supported expenditure. MRP is equal to an amount
determined in accordance to the former regulations, which broadly equates to 4%
Option 2 – Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) Method - For expenditure incurred before 1
April 2008 and expenditure incurred on or after that date which is Supported expenditure. MRP
is equal to 4% of the non-housing capital finance requirement
Option 3 – Asset Life Method – For capital expenditure financed by unsupported borrowing on
or after 1 April 2008. MRP is based on the life of the asset either using the Equal Instalment
method or Annuity method.
Option 4 – Depreciation Method - For capital expenditure financed by unsupported borrowing on
or after 1 April 2008. MRP is calculated in accordance with the standard rules for depreciation.

Capital expenditure incurred before 1 April 2008 and future Supported Capital Expenditure will be
charged at the rate of 4% or over the remaining useful life of the assets, whichever is most appropriate.
Capital expenditure incurred on or after 1 April 2008 which is funded from prudential borrowing will be
subject to MRP under Option 3 Asset Life Method, which will be charged over a period which is based
on the estimated useful life of the assets. For example, capital expenditure on a new building, or on the
refurbishment or enhancement of a building, will be related to the estimated life of that building.
Estimated life periods will be determined under delegated powers. To the extent that expenditure is not
on the creation of an asset and is of a type that is subject to estimated life periods that are referred to in
the guidance, these periods will generally be adopted by the Council. However, the Council reserves
the right to determine useful life periods and prudent MRP in exceptional circumstances where the
recommendations of the guidance would not be appropriate.
As some types of capital expenditure incurred by the Council are not capable of being related to an
individual asset, asset lives will be assessed on a basis which most reasonably reflects the anticipated
period of benefit that arises from the expenditure. Also, whatever type of expenditure is involved, it will
be grouped together in a manner which reflects the nature of the main component of expenditure and
will only be divided up in cases where there are two or more major components with substantially
different useful economic lives.
This MRP policy is reviewed annually with reference to the level of borrowing that the Council is
undertaking but also the expenditure that the borrowing is supporting.
Where a past overprovision has been identified the Council will spread any resulting reduction in MRP
across multiple years.

18

Page 169

Agenda Item 6

APPENDIX J

There are a number of circumstances whereby the Council will not be making a MRP for the repayment
of debt.
●

The Authority has established two wholly owned companies which will be provided with loans
from the Authority on a commercial basis. Under these arrangements, the cash advances will
be used by the companies to fund capital expenditure and should therefore be treated as capital
expenditure and a loan to a third party. The Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) will increase
by the amount of the loans advanced and under the terms of the contractual loan agreements
are due to be returned in full with interest paid. Once funds are returned to the Authority, the
returned funds are classed as a capital receipt, offset against the CFR, which will reduce
accordingly. As this is a temporary arrangement and the funds will be returned in full, there is no
need to set aside prudent provision to repay the debt liability in the interim period, so there is no
MRP application. The outstanding loan will be reviewed on an annual basis and if the likelihood
of default increases, a prudent MRP policy will commence.

●

The Authority is purchasing commercial property to be held as part of its Investment Property
Portfolio. The properties are held for investment purposes and are managed on a fully
commercial basis. The purchase of these properties will be treated as capital expenditure and
will increase the CFR. The Council is holding these properties solely for investment purposes
and they are leased to tenants on a fully repairing basis. As the Council has the ability to sell
these properties to repay any outstanding debt liabilities related to their purchase, there is no
need to set aside prudent provision to repay the debt liability in the interim period, so there is no
MRP application. The market value of the assets will be reviewed on a regular basis and if the
asset value significantly decreases, a prudent MRP policy will commence.

●

In addition the Council is planning to acquire a number of ex local authority and market stock
properties to be used as temporary accommodation. Initially these purchases will be funded by
revenue from the HRA, however a number of purchases will be financed through prudential
borrowing on an invest to save basis. In this case the purchase of these properties will be
treated as capital expenditure and will increase the CFR. The units funded by prudential
borrowing will be held outside of the HRA and the Council has the ability to sell these properties
to repay any outstanding debt liabilities related to their purchase, there is no need to set aside
prudent provision to repay the debt liability in the interim period, so there is no MRP application
on these purchases. The market value of the assets will be reviewed on a regular basis and if
the asset value significantly decreases, a prudent MRP policy will commence.

●

The Council has purchased land as part of land assembly for the development of a London
Cancer Hub. The land involved is a short term holding and the CFR liability arising from the
purchase will be reduced by setting aside any capital receipt later received through the sale of
the site to a developer. As such there will be no set aside to repay debt through MRP. These
plans will be reviewed annually in light of this treatment of MRP.

Under the new Self-financing regime for the HRA, the Council will not initially be making a MRP for the
repayment of HRA debt.
The application of MRP as outlined above remains sufficiently prudent in light of the magnitude and
maturity of the Council’s debt.

19

Agenda Item 6

Page 170

ANNEX 3 -Debt Maturity

20

APPENDIX J

Page 171

Agenda Item 6

APPENDIX J

Annex 4 -Schedule of Approved Instruments
Colour (and long
term rating where
applicable)

Money and/or %

Time

Limit

Limit

Banks & Building Societies

yellow

Unlimited

5yrs

Banks & Building Societies

purple

£20m

2 yrs

Banks -Building Societies

orange

£17.5m

1 yr

Banks (part nationalised)

blue

£20m

1 yr

Banks & Building Societies

red

£15m

6 mths

Banks & Building Societies

green

£12.5m

100 days

Banks & Building Societies

No colour

Not to be used

Not to be used

Limit 3 category – Council’s
banker (where “No Colour”)

No Colour

£10m

1 day

UK sovereign
rating

unlimited

6 months

n/a

£10m per entity

5yrs

Fund rating

Money and/or %

Time

Limit

Limit

DMADF
Local authorities

Money Market Funds LVNAV

AAA

£10m per fund

liquid

Ultra-Short Dated Bond
Funds with a credit score of
1.25
Ultra-Short Dated Bond
Funds with a credit score of
1.50

Dark pink / AAA

£10m per fund

liquid

Light pink / AAA

£10m per fund

liquid

21

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 173

Agenda Item 6
Appendix K

COUNCIL TAX
RECOMMENDATIONS TO COMMITTEE 11 February 2019
1.

That it be noted that by delegated decision on the 20 December 2018 the Strategic
Director – Resources calculated the amount of 73,246 as its Council Tax Base for the
year 2019/20 in accordance with regulation 3 of the Local Authorities (Calculation of
Council Tax Base) Regulations 2012 made under; sections 31B(1), (3), (4) and (5),
34(4), 42B(1), (3),(4) and (5), 45(3), (4) and (5), 48(3) to (6), 52ZX(5), (7) and (8) and
113(1) and (2) of the Local Government Finance Act 1992.

2.

That the following amounts be now calculated by the Council for the year 2019/20 in
accordance with Sections 31A to 36 of the Local Government Finance Act 1992, as
amended by the Localism Act 2011 :a.

£223,365,000 being the aggregate of the amounts which the Council estimates
for the items set out in Section 31A(2) of the Act;

b.

£122,739,229 being the aggregate of the amounts which the Council estimates
for the items set out in Section 31A(3) of the Act;

c.

£100,625,771 being the amount by which the aggregate at 2(a) above exceeds
the aggregate at 2(b) above, calculated by the Council, in accordance with
Section 31A(4) of the Act, as its council tax requirement for the year;

d.

£1,373.81 being the amount at 2(c) above divided by the amount at 1 above,
calculated by the Council, in accordance with Section 31B(1) of the Act, as the
basic amount of its Council Tax for the year;

e.

Valuation Bands

London Borough of Sutton
Council Tax

Greater London
Authority
Precept

Total

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

£

£

£

A

915.87

213.67

1,129.54

B

1,068.52

249.29

1,317.81

C

1,221.16

284.90

1,506.06

D

1,373.81

320.51

1,694.32

E

1,679.10

391.73

2,070.83

F

1,984.39

462.96

2,447.35

G

2,289.68

534.18

2,823.86

H

2,747.62

641.02

3,388.64

Agenda Item 6

Page 174
Appendix K

f.

Column 2(e)(i) above being the amounts given by multiplying the amount at 2(d)
by the number which, in the proportion set out in Section 5(1) of the Act, is
applicable to dwellings listed in a particular valuation band divided by the number
which in that proportion is applicable to dwellings listed in valuation band D,
calculated by the Council, in accordance with Section 36(1) of the Act, as the
amounts to be taken into account for the year in respect of categories of
dwellings listed in different valuation bands;

g.

That it be noted that for the year 2019/20 the Greater London Authority has
stated the amount shown in column 2(e)(ii) in precept issued to the Council, in
accordance with Section 40 of the Local Government Finance Act 1992, for each
of the categories of dwelling shown.

h.

That, having calculated the aggregate in each case of the amounts at columns
2(e)(i), and 2(e)(ii) above, the Council, in accordance with Section 30(2) of the
Local Government Finance Act 1992, hereby sets the amounts shown in column
2(e)(iii) above as the amount of the Council Tax for the year 2019/20 for each of
the categories of dwellings shown.

i.

That the Council hereby determines that its relevant basic amount of council tax
for the financial year 2019/20, which reflects a 3.99% increase, is not excessive
having considered the Referendums Relating to Council Tax Increases
(Principles) (England) Report 2019/20 which sets out the principles that the
Secretary of State has determined will apply to local authorities in England in
2019/20 whereby the Council is required to determine whether its basic amount
of Council Tax is excessive in accordance with the principles approved under
Section 52ZB of the Local Government Finance Act 1992.

